
                                 AGENDA 
                                                                    

                                              LOS ANGELES REGIONAL  
                                       INTEROPERABLE COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM AUTHORITY 

 

  BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
  Thursday, October 2, 2014  9:00 a.m. 

Grace E. Simons Lodge 
 

1025 Elysian Park Drive, Los Angeles, CA 90012 
   
Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System Authority (the “Authority”) 
 
AGENDA POSTED:  September 26, 2014 
Complete agendas are made available for review at the designated meeting location during normal business hours and may also 
be accessible on the Authority’s website at http://www.la-rics.org. 

  

 Members: 

  1. Miguel Santana, CAO, City of Los Angeles 

2. Ralph Terrazas, Fire Chief, City of Los Angeles 

3. Charles L. Beck, Vice Chair, Police Chief, City of Los Angeles 

4. Sharon Tso, Chief Legislative Analyst, City of Los Angeles 

5. William T Fujioka, Chair, CEO, County of Los Angeles 

6. Daryl L. Osby, Fire Chief, County of Los Angeles 

7. John Scott, Sheriff, County of Los Angeles 

8. Cathy Chidester, Director, EMS representing DHS, County of Los Angeles 

9. Steven K. Zipperman, Police Chief, Los Angeles School Police Department 

10. Reginald Harrison, Deputy City Manager, City of Long Beach 

11. Bill Walker, Fire Chief, representing the Los Angeles Area Fire Chiefs Association 

12. Scott Pickwith, Police Chief, representing the Los Angeles County Police Chiefs Association 

13. Mark R. Alexander, City Manager, representing the California Contract Cities Association 

14. Vacant, City of El Segundo, representing At Large Seat 

15. Ron Iizuka, Police Captain, City of Culver City, representing At Large Seat 

16. Vacant, At Large Seat 

17. Kim Raney, Police Chief, City of Covina, representing At Large Seat 

 

 Officers: 

  1. Patrick Mallon, Executive Director 

2. John Naimo, County of Los Angeles Auditor-Controller 

3. Mark J. Saladino, County of Los Angeles Treasurer and Tax Collector 

4. Patricia Saucedo, Board Secretary 

 
 



 
Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System Authority 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

October 2, 2014   Page  2 

NOTE:  ACTION MAY BE TAKEN ON ANY ITEM IDENTIFIED ON THE AGENDA 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ANNOUNCE QUORUM – Roll Call 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (None) 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR – (None) 

V. REPORTS (2–4) 

1. Finance Committee Report – No Report 

2. Director’s Report – Pat Mallon 

3. Project Manager’s Report – Pat Mallon 

Attachment:  Item 4 

4. Grant Status Report – Pat Mallon 

VI. DISCUSSION ITEMS (5) 

 
 5. Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report - Outreach Activities 
  (See attached discussion item.) 

VII. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS (6–9) 

6. APPROVE SITE ACCESS AGREEMENTS WITH THE CITY OF COMPTON 

It is recommended that your Board: 

  a. Find that the approval and execution of the Site Access Agreements by the LA-RICS 
   Authority does not result in any change to the PSBN project, or to the circumstances 
   under which the project is being undertaken, and that the determination that these 
   activities are exempt from review under the California Environmental Quality Act  
   (CEQA) pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21080.25, the statutory  
   exemption adopted specifically for the LA-RICS project, remains unchanged; and 

  b. Authorize the Executive Director to finalize and execute, substantially similar in form 
   to those attached, one or more Site Access Agreements with the City of Compton.  
   These Site Access Agreements are for the Long Term Evolution (LTE) broadband 
   communication sites within its respective jurisdictions or under its control. 

Attachment:  Item 6 

7. ACCEPT 2011 & 2012 URBAN AREAS SECURITY INITIATIVE (USAI) FUNDS 

 It is recommended that your Board: 

 a. Accept $18,227,386 in grant funds from the Fiscal Year 2011 UASI funds as  
  distributed through the California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES);  
 



 
Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System Authority 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

October 2, 2014   Page  3 

 b. Accept $18,263,579 in grant funds from the Fiscal Year 2012 UASI funds as  
  distributed  through the California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES); and 
 
 c. Authorize the Executive Director to execute the 2011 & 2012 UASI Sub-recipient  
  Agreements, substantially similar to the attached from 2010, between the City of Los 
  Angeles and the Authority. 
Attachment: Item 7 

8. APPROVE SOLE SOURCE NEGOTIATIONS 

 It is recommended that your Board: 

  Delegate authority to the Executive Director to enter into negotiations for an Agreement with 
  Mr. Ronald Wong to 1) serve as an FCC subject matter expert to the Authority, 2) serve as a 
  liaison between the FCC and the Authority, and 3) assist the Authority with finding suitable 
  radio spectrum, all for a period not to exceed six (6) months.   
 
 9. ELECTIONS FOR AT-LARGE BOARD MEMBERS 
   
  It is recommended that your Board: 
  Set April 2, 2015 for mail-in-ballot election of the four (4) At-Large Director and four (4)  
  Alternate Director seats.  The Board should note that only member agencies of the Authority 
  are eligible to vote for the At-Large Director seats and to hold such seats, and the current Opt-
  Out period for member agencies following adoption of the Funding Plan does not run until 
  November 24, 2015.   

 

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS – (None) 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

X. ITEMS FOR FUTURE DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION BY THE BOARD 

XI. ADJOURNMENT and NEXT MEETING: 

Thursday, November 6, 2014, at 9:00 a.m., at the Grace E. Simons Lodge. 



 
Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System Authority 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

October 2, 2014   Page  4 

 
BOARD MEETING INFORMATION 

 

 
 

Members of the public are invited to address the LA-RICS Authority Board on any item on the agenda 
prior to action by the Board on that specific item.  Members of the public may also address the Board 
on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The Board will entertain such 
comments during the Public Comment period.  Public Comment will be limited to three (3) minutes per 
individual for each item addressed, unless there are more than ten (10) comment cards for each item, 
in which case the Public Comment will be limited to one (1) minute per individual.  The aforementioned 
limitation may be waived by the Board’s Chair. 
 
(NOTE:  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.3(b) the legislative body of a local agency may 
adopt reasonable regulations, including, but not limited to, regulations limiting the total amount of time 
allocated for public testimony on particular issues and for each individual speaker.) 
 
Members of the public who wish to address the Board are urged to complete a Speaker Card and 
submit it to the Board Secretary prior to commencement of the public meeting.  The cards are available 
in the meeting room.  However, should a member of the public feel the need to address a matter while 
the meeting is in progress, a card may be submitted to the Board Secretary prior to final consideration 
of the matter. 
 
It is requested that individuals who require the services of a translator contact the Board Secretary no 
later than the day preceding the meeting.  Whenever possible, a translator will be provided.  Sign 
language interpreters, assistive listening devices, or other auxiliary aids and/or services may be 
provided upon request. To ensure availability, you are advised to make your request at least 72 hours 
prior to the meeting you wish to attend. (323) 881-8291 or (323) 881-8295 
 
SI REQUIERE SERVICIOS DE TRADUCCION, FAVOR DE NOTIFICAR LA OFICINA CON  
72 HORAS POR ANTICIPADO. 
 
The meeting is recorded, and the recording is kept for 30 days. 
 

 

 

 



 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Events of 9-11-01 have highlighted the need for first 

responders to be able to communicate with each other. 

Emergency communications primarily address local 

jurisdictional needs. Most agencies utilize separate radio 

towers and equipment, often co-located as seen here, and 

separate radio frequencies. 

Currently, there is duplication of costs and first 

responders cannot communicate with each other. Many 

legacy systems around the County are obsolete and well 

beyond their useful life. The LA-RICS Project Vision is to 

construct, own, operate, and maintain a regional, 

interoperable public safety radio system. The program will 

establish a County-wide public safety wireless voice and 

data radio system for all first  and secondary responders. 

Existing radio frequencies will be pooled and the current 

infrastructure utilized wherever practical. New FCC 

licensed broadband spectrum will be utilized. 

Design, construction, and deployment of two County-wide 

systems (1) Land Mobile Radio (LMR) voice network will 

utilize  a pool of 88 existing communications sites and (2) 

Long Term Evolution (LTE) broadband data network will 

utilize a pool of 231 existing communications sites. Both 

systems will comply with CEQA and NEPA standards.  

Project and Construction Management Services will 

provide network, infrastructure, project, and advisory 

services across 5 program phases for each of the LMR 

and LTE projects:  

 

 

Phase 1 - System design 

Phase 2 - Site construction and modification 

Phase 3 - Supply telecommunication system 

components 

Phase 4 - Telecommunications system 

implementation 

Phase 5 - Telecommunications system maintenance 

 

Monthly Report No. 30 

For September, 2014 

Submitted September 24, 2014 

Los Angeles Regional  

Interoperable Communications System 

Confidentiality Notice:  This document may contain confidential or legally privileged information that is intended only for the individual or entity to whom it was  

addressed.  If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution, or reliance upon the contents of this report is strictly 

prohibited.  This document is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 2510-2521 and is legally protected. 

 ©Copyright 2014 LA-RICS Authority. All Rights Reserved  

Location:   

2525 Corporate Place, Suite 200 

Monterey Park, CA 91754 

 

Authority:  

Los Angeles Regional Interoperable  

Communications System  

 

Management:        

LA-RICS Project Team 

 

Consultant:  

Jacobs Program Management Company
    

Communications Vendor:   

LMR - Motorola Solutions, Inc. 

LTE - Motorola Solutions, Inc. 

AGENDA ITEM 4



 

 

ACTIVITIES STATUS 

 

ITEM STATUS DUE DATE 

LTE LA-RICS DELIVERABLES IN PROGRESS NOVEMBER, 2014 

LTE SYSTEM DESIGN IN PROGRESS DECEMBER, 2014 

LTE SITE DESIGN IN PROGRESS NOVEMBER, 2014 

LTE ZONING AND PERMITTING 
(PHASE 1C) 

IN PROGRESS JUNE, 2015 

LTE SYSTEM DESIGN BACKHAUL IN PROGRESS SEPTEMBER, 2014 

LMR SYSTEM DESIGN IN PROGRESS SEPTEMBER, 2014 

LMR TEST PLAN DEVELOPMENT COMPLETED AUGUST, 2014 

LMR PORTABLE RADIOS,       
CONSOLETTES, CONSOLES 
(AMEND #7) 

IN PROGRESS OCTOBER, 2014 

LMR PHASE 1 IN PROGRESS AUGUST, 2015 

CATEGORY RATING CHANGE COMMENTS 

Safety  No Change   

Quality  No Change  

Schedule  No Change Grant funding at risk 

Cost/Budget  No Change   

Risk  No Change   

Project Staffing  No Change   

TITLE ASSIGNED 
TO 

STATUS IMPACT CATEGORY CREATED 
DATE 

DUE DATE 

700 MHZ Pat Mallon Active High Category 1 07/26/2012 09/06/2012 

Potential loss of 
grant funding 

Pat Mallon Active High Category 1 08/29/2012 10/04/2012 

Environmental 
requirements for 
LTE sites used in 
the LMR RFP 

Nancy Yang Active Medium Category 1 09/18/2012   

Execute LMR & 
LTE site use 
agreements 

Nancy Yang Active Medium Category 1 09/18/2012   

DELIVERABLES PROGRESS REPORT 

RISK REGISTER 

PROGRAM DASHBOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 4



 

 

LA-RICS MASTER CALENDAR 

AGENDA ITEM 4



 

 

LTE TECHNOLOGY UPDATES LMR TECHNOLOGY UPDATES 

• LMR/LTE Shared Site Activities 

• Finalized review of all shared sites 

• Finalized locations of all shared sites 

• Ongoing Core 1 installation activities at 

FCCF 

• Ongoing Weekly LMR System Design and 

Site Development Meetings 

• Ongoing LMR project reports received   

weekly/monthly:  

• Weekly Status Report  

• Monthly Status Report   

• Integrated Master Schedule (IMS) 

• Site Analysis and Inclusion of USFS 

Sites  

 

• Received initial draft of the following Design 

Documents: 

• Backhaul Design Package & kathrein 

Antenna Specs 

• Coverage Analysis; Monopole/

Flagpole 

• FCCF Core WAN & ECR 

• FCCF EPC CIQ’s 

• All Link analysis 

• VML 750 and Microwave Antenna 

Specification Sheets 

• MOP for FCCF Installation 

• Revised drafts of the following Design     

Documents Authority under review: 

• PSBN Design Document 

• PSBN EPC FCC Floor Plan 

• PSBN EPC LMR/LTE Consolidated 

Power Summary 

• PSBN EPC Network Drawings 

• PSBN EPC VDC Floor Plan 1 & 2 

• PSBN RAN eNodeB ID 

• IP Plan 

• PSBN RAN TA Dimensioning and   

Paging Capacity 

• SMMS Device Management 

• SMMS OSP 

• CATP Test 

• KPI Monitoring 

• Stress Test 

• System TOL 

• Transport TOL 

• Ongoing backhaul design activities            

incorporating existing Microwave and fiber 

networks for backhaul inclusion 

• Ongoing Weekly LTE System Design and 

Site Development Meetings 

• Ongoing LTE project reports received   

weekly/monthly 

• Weekly Status Report 

• Monthly Status Reports 

•    Integrated Master Schedule (IMS) 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4



 

 

• Reviewed Motorola’s IMS, provided status 

• Reviewed proposed polygons for inclusion 

into EIR 

• Coordinated with US Forest Service 

• Supported outreach with information/

spreadsheet materials 

• Prepared for LMR Scoping Meetings 

• Provided oversight @VDC load study 

• Provided site information for EIR 

• Submitted Notice of Preparation and Initial 

Study for the LMR project  

• Published notice for public scoping in Los 

Angeles Times 

• Finalized preparations for scoping,            

including scoping meetings 

• Conducted 5 scoping meetings for LMR 

CEQA compliance 

• Continued field work for biological             

resources for 35 sites 

• Prepared for initiating cultural resources 

field work 

• Provided weekly report/spreadsheet to NTIA 

• Review of Motorola IMS, provided status 

• Reviewed site sketches, route to stakeholders, 

consolidated comments, and resolved issues 

for transmittal to Motorola 

• Release of site for 1A surveys 

• Coordinated and/or attend 1A surveys 

• Reviewed Geotechnical Investigation Logistic 

Plans 

• Coordinated and attend geotechnical              

investigations 

• Provided sample Exhibit A to support City of 

Los Angeles SAA activities 

• Provided exhibits A & B to CEO RED for                       

acquisition of Site Access Agreements 

• Coordination for qualified Abatement            

Industrial Hygienist visits to sites, facilitate   

advance questionnaires are completed prior to 

site visits  

• Supported Back-haul studies 

• Escort back-haul site sketch development 

walks 

• Commenced development of Back-haul site 

Project Descriptions 

• Facilitated coordination with Los Angeles and 

County Building and Safety Departments 

• Supported outreach to LA City Council        

districts 2, 3, 10, and 12 

• Continued outreach to independent cities not 

fully committed to LA-RICS 

LMR SITES/CIVIL DELIVERABLES LTE SITES/CIVIL DELIVERABLES 

AGENDA ITEM 4



Activity ID Activity Name Remaining
Duration

Start Finish Total
Float

%
Complete

LA-RICS MSI LMRLA-RICS MSI LMR Integrated Master Schedule (IMS) ReplanLA-RICS MSI LMR Integrated Master Schedule (IMS) ReplanLA-RICS MSI LMR Integrated Master Schedule (IMS) ReplanLA-RICS MSI LMR Integrated Master Schedule (IMS) ReplanLA-RICS MSI LMR Integrated Master Schedule (IMS) ReplanLA-RICS MSI LMR Integrated Master Schedule (IMS) Replan

Phase 1 - LMR SPhase 1 - LMR System DesignPhase 1 - LMR System DesignPhase 1 - LMR System DesignPhase 1 - LMR System DesignPhase 1 - LMR System DesignPhase 1 - LMR System Design

LMR_389 Authority LMR Project start / Contract Signed 0 28.Aug.13 A 100%

LMR_390 Notice to Proceed Phase 1 0 09.Sep.13 A 100%

Project ManagemProject Management PlanProject Management PlanProject Management PlanProject Management PlanProject Management PlanProject Management Plan

LA-RICS DeliveraLA-RICS DeliverablesLA-RICS DeliverablesLA-RICS DeliverablesLA-RICS DeliverablesLA-RICS DeliverablesLA-RICS Deliverables

LA-RICS ProvideLA-RICS Provides Access to Core SitesLA-RICS Provides Access to Core SitesLA-RICS Provides Access to Core SitesLA-RICS Provides Access to Core SitesLA-RICS Provides Access to Core SitesLA-RICS Provides Access to Core Sites

Early ShipmentEarly ShipmentEarly ShipmentEarly ShipmentEarly ShipmentEarly ShipmentEarly Shipment

Amendment 3 - SAmendment 3 - Specified Equipment Shipment and System on WheelsAmendment 3 - Specified Equipment Shipment and System on WheelsAmendment 3 - Specified Equipment Shipment and System on WheelsAmendment 3 - Specified Equipment Shipment and System on WheelsAmendment 3 - Specified Equipment Shipment and System on WheelsAmendment 3 - Specified Equipment Shipment and System on Wheels

Amendment 4 - SAmendment 4 - Station B EquipmentAmendment 4 - Station B EquipmentAmendment 4 - Station B EquipmentAmendment 4 - Station B EquipmentAmendment 4 - Station B EquipmentAmendment 4 - Station B Equipment

Integration of SOIntegration of SOW and STBIntegration of SOW and STBIntegration of SOW and STBIntegration of SOW and STBIntegration of SOW and STBIntegration of SOW and STB

Amendment 5 - VAmendment 5 - VDC Core 2 DeploymentAmendment 5 - VDC Core 2 DeploymentAmendment 5 - VDC Core 2 DeploymentAmendment 5 - VDC Core 2 DeploymentAmendment 5 - VDC Core 2 DeploymentAmendment 5 - VDC Core 2 Deployment

Amendment 7 - PAmendment 7 - Portable Radio Equipment, Consolettes, & ConsolesAmendment 7 - Portable Radio Equipment, Consolettes, & ConsolesAmendment 7 - Portable Radio Equipment, Consolettes, & ConsolesAmendment 7 - Portable Radio Equipment, Consolettes, & ConsolesAmendment 7 - Portable Radio Equipment, Consolettes, & ConsolesAmendment 7 - Portable Radio Equipment, Consolettes, & Consoles

Amendment 8 - PAmendment 8 - Portable Radios and Radio AccessoriesAmendment 8 - Portable Radios and Radio AccessoriesAmendment 8 - Portable Radios and Radio AccessoriesAmendment 8 - Portable Radios and Radio AccessoriesAmendment 8 - Portable Radios and Radio AccessoriesAmendment 8 - Portable Radios and Radio Accessories

Project DescriptiProject Description PreparationProject Description PreparationProject Description PreparationProject Description PreparationProject Description PreparationProject Description Preparation

Environmental REnvironmental ReviewEnvironmental ReviewEnvironmental ReviewEnvironmental ReviewEnvironmental ReviewEnvironmental Review

Design ReviewDesign ReviewDesign ReviewDesign ReviewDesign ReviewDesign ReviewDesign Review

Phase 1a - LicePhase 1a - Licensing ProcessPhase 1a - Licensing ProcessPhase 1a - Licensing ProcessPhase 1a - Licensing ProcessPhase 1a - Licensing ProcessPhase 1a - Licensing Process

LMR_1548 FCC Licensing Processing 0 01.Jul.15 01.Jul.15 298 0%

LMR_1549 B.1.6 FCC License and Application Forms - FCC Licenses Granted 0 01.Jul.15 299 0%

LMR_1547 License Preparation 0 01.Jul.15* 01.Jul.15 298 0%

Phase 1b - SubPhase 1b - Submit Required Permits & ApprovalsPhase 1b - Submit Required Permits & ApprovalsPhase 1b - Submit Required Permits & ApprovalsPhase 1b - Submit Required Permits & ApprovalsPhase 1b - Submit Required Permits & ApprovalsPhase 1b - Submit Required Permits & Approvals

Zoning PermitZoning PermitZoning PermitZoning PermitZoning PermitZoning PermitZoning Permit

Building PermitsBuilding PermitsBuilding PermitsBuilding PermitsBuilding PermitsBuilding PermitsBuilding Permits

Receive Permit AReceive Permit ApprovalsReceive Permit ApprovalsReceive Permit ApprovalsReceive Permit ApprovalsReceive Permit ApprovalsReceive Permit Approvals

Phase 2 - Site CPhase 2 - Site Construction and Site ModificationPhase 2 - Site Construction and Site ModificationPhase 2 - Site Construction and Site ModificationPhase 2 - Site Construction and Site ModificationPhase 2 - Site Construction and Site ModificationPhase 2 - Site Construction and Site Modification

Phase 3 - SuppPhase 3 - Supply LMR System ComponentsPhase 3 - Supply LMR System ComponentsPhase 3 - Supply LMR System ComponentsPhase 3 - Supply LMR System ComponentsPhase 3 - Supply LMR System ComponentsPhase 3 - Supply LMR System Components

LMR_6425 B.1.6 FCC Licensing 1 01.Jul.15 01.Jul.15 298 0%

LMR_3893 Notice to Proceed Phase 3 0 03.Aug.15 -176 0%

LMR_6800 B.3.9 System Management and Monitoring Subsystem 1 28.Dec.15 28.Dec.15 566 0%

Manufacturing / SManufacturing / Staging / Site Development and TestManufacturing / Staging / Site Development and TestManufacturing / Staging / Site Development and TestManufacturing / Staging / Site Development and TestManufacturing / Staging / Site Development and TestManufacturing / Staging / Site Development and Test

Phase 4 - LMR SPhase 4 - LMR System ImplementationPhase 4 - LMR System ImplementationPhase 4 - LMR System ImplementationPhase 4 - LMR System ImplementationPhase 4 - LMR System ImplementationPhase 4 - LMR System Implementation

LMR_6805 B.4.1.1.1.7  System Management and Monitoring Subsystem 0 28.Dec.15 566 0%

LMR_3921 Notice to Proceed Phase 4 0 15.Jan.16 -150 0%

RF Emission SafRF Emission Safety ReportRF Emission Safety ReportRF Emission Safety ReportRF Emission Safety ReportRF Emission Safety ReportRF Emission Safety Report

Implementation &Implementation & TestingImplementation & TestingImplementation & TestingImplementation & TestingImplementation & TestingImplementation & Testing

Warranty - 12 moWarranty - 12 monthsWarranty - 12 monthsWarranty - 12 monthsWarranty - 12 monthsWarranty - 12 monthsWarranty - 12 months

Phase 5 - LMR SPhase 5 - LMR System MaintenancePhase 5 - LMR System MaintenancePhase 5 - LMR System MaintenancePhase 5 - LMR System MaintenancePhase 5 - LMR System MaintenancePhase 5 - LMR System Maintenance

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 1
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 0

28.Nov.18, LA-RICS MS

03.Aug.15, Phase 1 - LMR System Design

Authority LMR Project start / Contract Signed

Notice to Proceed Phase 1

23.Dec.13 A, Project Management Plan

28.Jan.15, LA-RICS Deliverables

18.Mar.14 A, LA-RICS Provides Access to Core Sites

01.Oct.14, Early Shipment

29.May.14 A, Amendment 3 - Specified Equipment Shipment and System on Wheels

28.May.14 A, Amendment 4 - Station B Equipment

09.Jun.14 A, Integration of SOW and STB

06.May.14 A, Amendment 5 - VDC Core 2 Deployment

09.Oct.14, Amendment 7 - Portable Radio Equipment, Consolettes, & Consoles

19.Sep.14, Amendment 8 - Portable Radios and Radio Accessories

06.Dec.13 A, Project Description Preparation

26.Jun.15, Environmental Review

03.Aug.15, Design Review

01.Jul.15, Phase 1a - Licensing Process

01.Jul.15, FCC Licensing Processing

01.Jul.15, B.1.6 FCC License and Application Forms - FCC Licenses Granted

01.Jul.15, License Preparation

08.Oct.15, Phase 1b - Submit Required Permits & Approvals

22.Sep.15, Zoning Permit

08.Oct.15, Building Permits

08.Oct.15, Receive Permit Approvals

15.Sep.16, Phase 2 - Site Construction and Site Modification

02.May.16, Phase 3 - Supply LMR System Components

01.Jul.15, B.1.6 FCC Licensing

03.Aug.15, Notice to Proceed Phase 3

28.Dec.15, B.3.9 System Management and Monitoring Subsystem

02.May.16, Manufacturing / Staging / Site Development and Test

28.Nov.18, Phase 4 - LM

28.Dec.15, B.4.1.1.1.7  System Management and Monitoring Subsystem

15.Jan.16, Notice to Proceed Phase 4

13.Mar.15, RF Emission Safety Report

22.Nov.17, Implementation & Testing

28.Nov.18, Warranty - 1

28.Nov.18, Phase 5 - LM

LA RICS LMR Summary Schedule 22.Sep.14 13:04

Page: 1 of 1

LA RICS_LMR_IMS_repl-5                       Data Date: 13.Sep.14

Summary

Primary Baseline

Actual Work

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Baseline Milestone

Milestone

Milestone

AGENDA ITEM 4



Activity ID Activity Name Remaining
Duration

Start Finish Total Float % Complete

LA-RICS Public SafLA-RICS Public Safety Broadband Network (PSBN) 232 06.Mar.14 A 14.Aug.15 0 36.61%

LA-RICS PSBN PrLA-RICS PSBN Project 232 06.Mar.14 A 14.Aug.15 0 36.61%

PSBN ProjectPSBN Project 0 06.Mar.14 A 06.Mar.14 A 0%
Phase 1 - System DePhase 1 - System Design 54 06.Mar.14 A 01.Dec.14 178 71.28%

Phase 1 - System Phase 1 - System Design 0 10.Mar.14 A 12.Mar.14 A 100%
LA-RICS DeliverabLA-RICS Deliverables 47 06.Mar.14 A 18.Nov.14 185 74.03%
Project ManagemeProject Management Plan 0 10.Mar.14 A 12.Jun.14 A 100%
System DesignSystem Design 54 07.Mar.14 A 01.Dec.14 178 71.12%
Site DesignSite Design 0 13.Mar.14 A 18.Nov.14 20 100%
Central BasinCentral Basin 33 10.Mar.14 A 29.Oct.14 199 79.75%
San FernandoSan Fernando 26 25.Mar.14 A 20.Oct.14 206 83.01%
Southern BasinSouthern Basin 47 21.Mar.14 A 18.Nov.14 185 72.99%
Eastern BasinEastern Basin 47 19.Mar.14 A 18.Nov.14 185 72.99%
North CountyNorth County 32 17.Mar.14 A 28.Oct.14 200 79.87%
Central FoothillsCentral Foothills 23 21.Mar.14 A 15.Oct.14 111 84.03%

Phase 1a - AcceptanPhase 1a - Acceptance Test Plan Development 84 15.Sep.14 15.Jan.15 90 0%
Phase 1b - FrequencPhase 1b - Frequency Licensing 102 15.Sep.14 11.Feb.15 39 0%
Phase 1c - Zoning aPhase 1c - Zoning and Permitting 184 24.Mar.14 A 08.Jun.15 48 37.84%

Central BasinCentral Basin 157 24.Mar.14 A 29.Apr.15 75 41.64%
San FernandoSan Fernando 159 24.Mar.14 A 01.May.15 29 40.89%
Southern BasinSouthern Basin 180 24.Mar.14 A 02.Jun.15 8 37.72%
Eastern BasinEastern Basin 176 24.Mar.14 A 27.May.15 56 38.03%
North CountyNorth County 176 24.Mar.14 A 27.May.15 41 37.59%
Central FoothillsCentral Foothills 184 24.Mar.14 A 08.Jun.15 4 35.21%

Phase 1d - Order PrPhase 1d - Order Processing 23 20.Jun.14 A 15.Oct.14 209 70.89%
Phase 2 - Site ConsPhase 2 - Site Construction and Site Modification 181 20.Jun.14 A 25.Jun.15 35 29.02%

Site ConstructionSite Construction 0 20.Jun.14 A 06.Oct.14 52 100%
Central BasinCentral Basin 145 20.Oct.14 18.May.15 31 0%
San FernandoSan Fernando 146 21.Oct.14 20.May.15 29 0%
Southern BasinSouthern Basin 160 30.Oct.14 19.Jun.15 8 0%
Eastern BasinEastern Basin 164 20.Oct.14 15.Jun.15 4 0%
North CountyNorth County 139 24.Nov.14 15.Jun.15 41 0%
Central FoothillsCentral Foothills 128 23.Dec.14 25.Jun.15 4 0%
Site Construction CSite Construction Complete 92 16.Feb.15 25.Jun.15 35 0%

Phase 3 - Supply PSPhase 3 - Supply PSBN Components 90 20.Jun.14 A 26.Jan.15 99 39.19%
Phase 4 - System ImPhase 4 - System Implementation 232 08.Sep.14 A 14.Aug.15 0 2.11%

Phase 4 - System Phase 4 - System Implementation 0 14.Oct.14 14.Oct.14 42 0%
LTE EPC Install & LTE EPC Install & Configuration FCCF 94 08.Sep.14 A 30.Jan.15 20 5.05%
Network OperationNetwork Operations Center-Installation & Configuration 72 15.Oct.14 30.Jan.15 47 0%
Special OperationsSpecial Operations Test - Staging 110 30.Sep.14 10.Mar.15 20 0%
ImplementationImplementation 76 12.Mar.15 29.Jun.15 32 0%
Central BasinCentral Basin 109 15.Dec.14 20.May.15 59 0%
San FernandoSan Fernando 101 31.Dec.14 22.May.15 57 0%
Southern BasinSouthern Basin 121 02.Jan.15 23.Jun.15 36 0%
Eastern BasinEastern Basin 117 02.Jan.15 17.Jun.15 40 0%
North CountyNorth County 107 16.Jan.15 17.Jun.15 40 0%
Central FoothillsCentral Foothills 105 02.Feb.15 29.Jun.15 32 0%
System TestSystem Test 105 13.Mar.15 10.Aug.15 4 0%
TrainingTraining 45 08.May.15 13.Jul.15 23 0%
Overall Project CloOverall Project Closeout 5 10.Aug.15 14.Aug.15 0 0%

Phase 5 - Warranty aPhase 5 - Warranty and  Maintenance 0 14.Aug.15 14.Aug.15 0 0%
Removed Sites - ArcRemoved Sites - Archived and Inactive 172 24.Mar.14 A 20.May.15 59 41.1%

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

2014 2015 2016

14.Aug.15, LA-RICS Public Safety Broadb

14.Aug.15, LA-RICS PSBN Project

06.Mar.14 A, PSBN Project
01.Dec.14, Phase 1 - System Design

12.Mar.14 A, Phase 1 - System Design
18.Nov.14, LA-RICS Deliverables

12.Jun.14 A, Project Management Plan
01.Dec.14, System Design

18.Nov.14, Site Design
29.Oct.14, Central Basin

20.Oct.14, San Fernando
18.Nov.14, Southern Basin
18.Nov.14, Eastern Basin

28.Oct.14, North County
15.Oct.14, Central Foothills

15.Jan.15, Phase 1a - Acceptance Test Plan Development
11.Feb.15, Phase 1b - Frequency Licensing

08.Jun.15, Phase 1c - Zoning and Permitting
29.Apr.15, Central Basin
01.May.15, San Fernando

02.Jun.15, Southern Basin
27.May.15, Eastern Basin
27.May.15, North County

08.Jun.15, Central Foothills
15.Oct.14, Phase 1d - Order Processing

25.Jun.15, Phase 2 - Site Construction and Sit
06.Oct.14, Site Construction

18.May.15, Central Basin
20.May.15, San Fernando

19.Jun.15, Southern Basin
15.Jun.15, Eastern Basin
15.Jun.15, North County
25.Jun.15, Central Foothills
25.Jun.15, Site Construction Complete

26.Jan.15, Phase 3 - Supply PSBN Components
14.Aug.15, Phase 4 - System Implementa

14.Oct.14, Phase 4 - System Implementation
30.Jan.15, LTE EPC Install & Configuration FCCF
30.Jan.15, Network Operations Center-Installation & Configura

10.Mar.15, Special Operations Test - Staging
29.Jun.15, Implementation

20.May.15, Central Basin
22.May.15, San Fernando

23.Jun.15, Southern Basin
17.Jun.15, Eastern Basin
17.Jun.15, North County

29.Jun.15, Central Foothills
10.Aug.15, System Test

13.Jul.15, Training
14.Aug.15, Overall Project Closeout
14.Aug.15, Phase 5 - Warranty and  Main

20.May.15, Removed Sites - Archived and Inactive

LA RICS LTE (PSBN) Summary Schedule
Organized by Construction Zone 

22.Sep.14 12:58

Page: 1 of 1

LA RICS PSBN-v2-4                       Data Date: 13.Sep.14

Summary

Primary Baseline

Actual Work

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Baseline Milestone

Milestone

Milestone

AGENDA ITEM 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Monthly Report #13 
Reporting Period:  08/18/14 thru 09/12/14 

 
Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications 

System (LA-RICS) - Land Mobile Radio System 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Motorola Solutions, Inc. 
 

 
 
 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS LMR Monthly Report #13 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 2 
© Copyright 2014 LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

 

Table	of	Contents	
1. Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Project Status ........................................................................................................................................ 4 

2.1 Tasks In Progress or Completed .......................................................................................................... 4 

2.2 Tasks Planned for Next Period (09/15/14 thru 10/17/14) .................................................................. 5 

2.3 Authority Look‐Ahead Tasks (120‐Day) .............................................................................................. 5 

3. Project Risk Register .................................................................................................................................. 6 

4. Areas of Concern ....................................................................................................................................... 6 

5. Disputes and Claims .................................................................................................................................. 7 

6. Financial Status ......................................................................................................................................... 7 

7. LA‐RICS Master Schedule .......................................................................................................................... 7 

 

 
 
 
 

 

  	

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS LMR Monthly Report #13 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 3 
© Copyright 2014 LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

 

1.	Executive	Summary	
The Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System Land Mobile Radio (LA‐RICS LMR) 
program consists of the following five (5) phases; Phase 1 LMR System Design, Phase 2 LMR Site 
Construction and Site Modification, Phase 3 Supply LMR System Components, Phase 4 LMR System 
Implementation, and Phase 5 LMR System Maintenance.  Phases 1‐4 span over a five (5) year period 
which includes one (1) year of system warranty. Phase 5 provides the Authority with fifteen (15) one 
year options for Motorola to provide system monitoring and maintenance services. 
 
The LA‐RICS LMR program is currently in Phase 1 LMR System Design.  Notice‐To‐Proceed for 1 through 
8 have been issued authorizing work for system Design services, the design and implementation of the 
initial deployment of the LMR system elements termed “Early Equipment”, “Specified Equipment and 
System on Wheels”, and “Station B Equipment”, “Frequency Licensing”, “UPS System”, and “Portable 
Radios, Consolettes and Consoles”, and “Portable Radio Equipment”.   
 
The FCC granted the licenses for the UHF (T‐Band) frequencies for use on the Early Equipment shipment.  
The UHF frequency applications for the control stations required an additional wavier and is currently 
under review by the FCC.  
 
Motorola conducted the LMR System Design Review presentation with the Authority on September 10th 
and 11th.  The Design Review presentation covered all of the LMR subsystems. 
 
LA‐RICS issued Amendment 8 and Notice To Proceed 8 on 8/28/14 to procure 454 APX portable radios 
and associated accessories.  The portable radio equipment and accessories is on schedule for delivery 
and inventory by the end of September. 
 
This month’s report for the LA‐RICS LMR program covers the reporting period from 8/18/14 through 
09/12/14. As of this reporting period Phase 1 is 54% complete.   Associated Phase 1 tasks are A&E, 
Frequency Coordination (begins after final site confirmation), Site Access Agreements and 
Environmental Review which are in progress. These tasks are driven outside of the RF system design 
tasks. Once the site access agreements and the EIR process are complete, there will be a true up of the 
actual final site configuration for the LMR system. The primary Phase 1 activities for this period include: 
 

 LMR System Design (96% Complete) 
The LMR System Design is a compilation of documents that will define the architecture, 
functionality and performance of all of the subsystems that make up the LMR system.  It 
includes all aspects of the system including performance criteria, reliability levels and testing 
procedures.  System Design activities for this period included frequency identification and 
planning, evaluation of site parameter changes, development of subsystem architecture, and 
submittal of revised drafts sections of subsystem functional operations.  A final set of site 
parameters have been selected to complete the coverage design process.  Motorola finished the 
RF design documents and delivered the completed design documents on 8/28/14. A two day 
design review meeting was held with the Authority to present the material delivered. The 
Authority is now reviewing the design documents and coverage maps provided. 
 

 Test Plan Development (100% Complete) 
Acceptance Test Plans are a part of the LMR System Design deliverable.  The test plans outline 
the test criteria and procedures that will be conducted during the implementation phase.  The 

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS LMR Monthly Report #13 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 4 
© Copyright 2014 LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

 

test plans are designed to demonstration system functionality and system requirements.  The 
test plans were delivered along with the LMR System Design documents.  As part of the LMR 
System Design review process the Test Plans will be updated upon receipt of the comments 
from the Authority. 
 

 LA‐RICS Deliverables ‐ Authority Site Access Agreements  
Authority’s efforts to develop and execute the applicable site access agreements for the 
required sites in the LMR design.  This task also includes access to the sites that will host the 
system’s core switching network.  Even though no agreements have been executed the 
Authority has made continued progress with the Member Agencies to finalize Site Access 
Agreements. This activity is primarily being driven by the Authority’s Outreach Program. With 
the change of this activity from a task to a milestone it is no longer measuring progress and 
therefore we only show 0% or 100% complete for each Site Agreement. 
 

The following table provides a dashboard snapshot of the projects’ health signs. 
 
LMR Project Dashboard 

Category  Rating  Change  Comments 

Schedule 
 

    EIR milestones have been incorporated into the schedule 
which impacted the start of construction. 

Quality      No quality issues to report 

Risk 
 
 

    Risk items have been identified regarding;  Spectrum, Site 
Access Agreements, Site Conditions, and Environmental 
Process 

Scope      Potential scope impacts based on existing site conditions 

Budget      Currently within budget 

2.	Project	Status	
The following sections identify task activities during the reporting period and the planned activities for 

the next reporting period. 

2.1	Tasks	In	Progress	or	Completed	
The following depict the task activity that occurred during the current reporting period. 

Activity Name  Activity Status 

LA‐RICS Deliverables 

  Lease Negotiations & Site Access Use Agreement  In Process 

  NEPA FONSI / CEQA Notice of Determination  In Process 

Early Equipment 

  Issuance of UHF licenses for Control Stations  In Process 

Design Review 

  DTVRS  ‐ Develop final detail design Session 3  Completed 

  ACVRS  ‐ Develop final detail design Session 3 Completed

  LARTCS  ‐ Develop final detail design Session 3 Completed

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS LMR Monthly Report #13 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 5 
© Copyright 2014 LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

 

Activity Name  Activity Status 

  NMDN  ‐ Develop detail design Session 3  Completed 

  Consoles  ‐ Develop detail design Session 3  Completed 

  Microwave  ‐ Develop detail design Session 3  Completed 

  Logging Recorder detailed design Session  3  Completed 

  Functional ATP Development  Completed 

  Authority Reviews, and Provides Comments on the LMR System Design Package  Started 

  Manufacture & Deliver Portable Radio Equipment and Accessories (Amend & NTP 8)  Started 

2.2	Tasks	Planned	for	Next	Period	(09/15/14	thru	10/17/14)	
The following depict the task activity that is planned for the next reporting period. 

Activity Name  Planned Status 

LA‐RICS Deliverables   

  Lease Negotiations & Site Access Use Agreement  On Going 

  Access to Core Sites  On Going 

  NEPA FONSI / CEQA Notice of Determination   On Going 

Environmental Review & Documentation (Authority)   

  Environmental Consultant Initiates CEQA & EHP/NEPA Analysis  On Going 

 
Prepare Preliminary Draft EHP/NEPA Form

Prepare EIR 

On Going

On Going 

Early Equipment   

  Issuance of UHF licenses for Control Stations  On Plan to Finish 

Design Review   

  Authority Reviews, and Provides Comments on the LMR System Design Package  On Plan to Finish 

  Manufacture & Deliver Portable Radio Equipment and Accessories (Amend & NTP 8)  On Plan to Finish 

2.3	Authority	Look‐Ahead	Tasks	(120‐Day)	
For the Authority planning purposes the following table provides a one hundred twenty (120) Day look‐

ahead of the Authority‐specific activities to conduct coordination, inspections, approvals, consents, and 

or provide decisions necessary from the Authority to facilitate Contractor's progress. 

Activity Name  Start 

LA‐RICS Deliverables    

   Lease Negotiations & Site Access Use Agreement  09‐Sep‐13 A 

   LA‐RICS Provides Access to Core Sites  18‐Sep‐13 A 

  NEPA FONSI / CEQA Notice of Determination   On Going 

Environmental Review & Documentation (Authority)   

   CEQA Exemption Applicability & Eligibility Screening & Assessment On Going

   Environmental Consultant Performs CEQA Environmental Review & Prepares Draft CEQA 
Determination 

On Going

   Lead Agency CEQA Determination  On Going

   Consult Federal Agency and Prepare Draft NEPA Document On Going

   Prepare NEPA Document   On Going

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS LMR Monthly Report #13 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 6 
© Copyright 2014 LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

 

Activity Name  Start 
   Submit Final EHP & NEPA Document  On Going

   Federal Lead Agency NEPA Determination On Going

Design Review    

   Review and approve design review documents On Plan to Finish

Authority Reviews, Approves and Provides Comments on the LMR System Design On Plan to Start

Submit for LA‐RICS Review & Approval + Sign Building App (Initial Sites) On Plan to Start

Phase 1b Submit Required Permits and Approvals   

   See Environmental Review & Documentation tasks above On Going

3.	Project	Risk	Register	
Title  Assigned  Impact Risk Description Status

Site Condition 

Changes 

Authority  High Site condition differences from RFP to current 

condition may impact ability to implement 

planned installations and delay or require 

changes to LMR design (e.g. coverage, backhaul, 

etc.) 

Active

Environmental 

Process 

Authority  High The individual or collective determination of 

environmental impacts or mitigations may 

impact site work or even site viability. 

Active

Site Access 

Agreements 

Authority  High Lease holders approvals are needed in order to 

implement LA‐RICS improvements at sites. 

Active

Spectrum Availability, 

700 MHz 

Authority  High Lack of frequencies may impact coverage and/or 

site viability, necessitating design changes. 

Active

4.	Areas	of	Concern	
This section describes any events and or circumstances of which the Contractor is aware that has 

delayed or may delay project activities and what corrective or remedial actions was taken or will be 

taken to resolve the issue.  Outstanding Issues Log (the “OIL Log”) entries are also tabulated and 

monitored in this section.  “Oil Log” items include, for example, sequencing, infrastructure, site access, 

coordination issues, congestion of workers and equipment, time requirements for design, procurement, 

and installation.  

ID  Event / Circumstance  Remedial Action Taken or Required 

02‐01  Early Construction of Some Sites  Authority determination if construction of some sites 
can be expedited in 2014.  

02‐02  System Design impacts due to changes 
in site conditions 

Motorola and the Authority have analyzed probable 
site changes and suitable site replacement 
candidates.  Adjusted tower heights at some of the 
sites may impact the coverage. 

05‐01  Impacts of filing Environmental Impact 
Report 

MSI incorporated the EIR milestones into the project 
schedule which impacted the start of construction. 

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS LMR Monthly Report #13 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 7 
© Copyright 2014 LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

 

MSI and Authority to continue with project schedule 
impact analysis to pull in project activities to improve 
revised project plan. 

5.	Disputes	and	Claims	
This section describes any disputes, potential claims, and claims made during the reporting period. 

Dispute / Claim / Potential Claim  Status / Actions  Resolution Date 

None to report this period     

     

     

6.	Financial	Status	
The following represents the invoice payments that were completed during the reporting period and the 

remaining amount to be invoiced and paid.  Phase 1 Contract Sum was increased for the incorporation 

of Amendment 8 for the procurement of subscriber equipment. Amendment 8 increased Phase 1 

contract sum by $3,671,211 for a total of $39,972,211. 

Invoice Payment Category  Invoice Payment Totals 

Contract Sum Full Payable Amount (Phase 1)  $   39,972,211 

Cumulative Invoice Payments from Last Report  $  (31,247,252) 

Total Invoice Payments This Period  $   (3,585,200) 

Remaining Amount to be Paid    $  5,139,759      

 

 

7.	LA‐RICS	Master	Schedule	
An executive view depicting the status of the primary activities is provided on the following page.  

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS LMR Monthly Report #13 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 8 
© Copyright 2014 LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

 

 

  Phase 1b ‐ Submit Required  
Permits & Approvals

Phase 1a ‐ Licensing Process

Environmental Review

System Design Review

Project Description Preparation

    Amendment 8 ‐ Portable Radios  
and Radio Accessories

    Amendment 7 ‐ Portable Radio  
Equipment, Consolettes, &  
Consoles

    Amendment 5 ‐ VDC Core 2  
Deployment

    LA‐RICS Deliverables:  Lease  
Negotiations & Site Access Use  
Agreements

    Amendment 4                                                                                    
Station B Equipment

    Amendment 3 ‐ Specified  
Equipment Shipment and System  
on Wheels

Early Shipment

Project Management Plan

Phase 1 ‐ LMR System Design

2013 2014 2015

Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Phase 1 ‐ LMR Executive Summary

Snapshot Date: 9/13/2014 LA‐RICS LMR MSI

Phase 1 ‐ LMR System Design
Phase 1a ‐ Licensing Process
Phase 1b ‐ Submit Required Permits  

Gantt‐bar diagram

Current schedule

% Complete

AGENDA ITEM 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Monthly Report - #07 
Reporting Period:  08/18/14 thru 09/12/14 

 
Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications 

System (LA-RICS) – Public Safety Broadband Network 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Motorola Solutions, Inc. 
 

 
 
 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS PSBN Monthly Report #7 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 2 
© Copyright 2013, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

Table	of	Contents	
1. Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Project Status ............................................................................................................................................ 6 

2.1 Tasks In‐Progress and Completed ....................................................................................................... 6 

2.2 Tasks Planned for Next Period (09/14/14 thru 10/17/14) .................................................................. 7 

2.3 Authority Look‐Ahead Tasks (120‐Day) .............................................................................................. 8 

3.  Project Risk Register ............................................................................................................................. 9 

4. Areas of Concern ....................................................................................................................................... 9 

5. Disputes and Claims ................................................................................................................................ 10 

6. Financial Status ....................................................................................................................................... 10 

7. LA‐RICS PSBN Project Schedule ............................................................................................................... 10 

 

 
 
 
 

 

  	

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS PSBN Monthly Report #7 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 3 
© Copyright 2013, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

1.	Executive	Summary	
The Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System ‐ Public Safety Broadband Network (LA‐
RICS PSBN) project is a 700 MHz Long Term Evolution (LTE) public safety mobile broadband network that 
will provide broadband services across the County of Los Angeles for the Authority’s Member Agencies.   
 
The LA‐RICS Authority was awarded a Comprehensive Community Infrastructure (CCI) Broadband 
Technology Opportunity Program (BTOP) grant by Department of Commerce's National 
Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTIA) to deploy the LA‐RICS PSBN system.  The 
BTOP grant program requires that the LA‐RICS PSBN system be compatible with the future Nationwide 
Public Safety Broadband Network (NPSBN) currently being designed and developed by FirstNet, an 
independent authority within the NTIA.  Additionally the Authority executed a Spectrum Manager Lease 
Agreement ("SMLA") with FirstNet for spectrum usage rights to operate on the 700 MHz public safety 
broadband spectrum (D‐Block).  The LA‐RICS‐PSBN system provides the Authority with the opportunity 
to work cooperatively with FirstNet, while participating in testing and providing input in what will 
ultimately form the National Public Safety Broadband Network (NPSBN). 
 
The LA‐RICS PSBN program consists of the following five (5) phases; Phase 1 PSBN System Design, Phase 
2 PSBN Site Construction and Site Modification, Phase 3 Supply PSBN Components, Phase 4 PSBN 
System Implementation, and Phase 5 PSBN Maintenance.  Phases 1‐4 must be completed and accepted 
by August 15, 2015 to be in compliance the BTOP grant program.  Phase 5 provides the Authority with 
the first five (5) years of one year options for Motorola to provide system monitoring and maintenance 
services. 
 
The LA‐RICS PSBN program is currently in Phase 1 PSBN System Design. Phase 2, Site Construction and 
Site Modification will begin pending completion of environmental documents and Phase 3, Supply of 
PSBN Components has begun.  Notice to Proceed for all work in Phase 1 for System Design services was 
issued by the Authority on March 10, 2014. Phase 1 primary activities include: 

 LA‐RICS Deliverables  

 Project Management Plans 

 System Design 

 Site Design  

 RF Emissions Report 

 Inventory and Management System 
 
On April 7, 2014 the Authority issued a Notice To Proceed for Amendment 2 to add detailed design 
services to Phase 1 for Additive Alternate 1 – Home Subscriber Server (HSS) and Additive Alternate 2 –
Redundant Evolved Packet Core (EPC). 
 
On June 20, 2014 the Authority issued Amendment 3 to exercise the Unilateral Options for all Work 
pertaining to Phase 2, Site Construction and Site Modification, and Phase 3, Supply PSBN Components. 
The NTP for Amendment 3 was issued on June 20, 2014, to begin ordering the equipment. 
Microwave equipment is excluded from the NTP until the Authority has approved the backhaul design 
and issues a NTP.  NTP 3 also authorizes Motorola to proceed with all planning and non‐site mobilization 
work related to Phase 2, Site Construction and Site Modification, however, no construction work at a 
specific project site location will be conducted until the Authority has received all required NEPA and/or 
any other applicable Federal and State Environmental approvals for each specific location. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS PSBN Monthly Report #7 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 4 
© Copyright 2013, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

 
On July 10, 2014 the Board of Directors approved Amendment 4 for Phase 2, Site Construction and Site 
Modification, and Phase 3, Supply PSBN Components of Additive Alternate 1, Home Subscriber Server 
(HSS) and Additive Alterative 2 Redundant Evolved Packet Core (Redundant EPC).   
 
On September 8, 2014 the Authority issued NTP 4 to proceed with Work related to Supply PSBN 
Components under Phase 3 for Additive Alternate No. 1a Home Subscriber Server (HSS).  Notice To 
Proceed for Phase 2, Site Construction and Site Modification for Additive Alternate No. 1a Home 
Subscriber Server (HSS) is anticipated within the next two weeks.  Additionally, Motorola is awaiting the 
Notice to Proceed for Additive Alterative 2 Redundant Evolved Packet Core (Redundant EPC).  An 
Amendment and Notice To Proceed for Phase 4 PSBN Implementation is anticipated to be approved by 
the Board in the next reporting period to keep the program on schedule. 
 
This report covers the period of time from 08/18/14 through 09/12/14.  The overall project completion 
date remains at 8/14/15.   
 
Phase 1 consists of LA‐RICS Deliverables, Project Management Plans, and System Design and is 71% 
complete as of this period.       
 
The primary Phase 1 activities for this period include: 
 

 LA‐RICS Deliverables (74% Complete)  
Tasks that are currently in process with the Authority: City of Los Angeles Site Access 
Agreement, Independent cities ROE, SHPO site approvals, NEPA clearance, and Site Access 
Agreements. 
 

The following are the reported activities for this period that are a part of the System Design 
summary task: 

 System Design Activities (97% Complete) 
Core system design is 100% complete. The backhaul system is 90% complete. The Inventory 
Management Subsystem Design is on a separate development track which is 100% complete as 
of this period. 
 

 System Design Review (71% Complete) 
System Design Review consists of the submittal and presentation of the detailed design and the 
incorporation of Authority edits.  The primary system detail design was submitted and the 
official design review was completed.  During this reporting period, Motorola submitted the 
revised Detailed Design Document, which incorporates the Authority’s comments.       
 

 Site Design Activities (73% Complete) 
Activities for this task include site walks, site surveys, and geotechnical/geological site surveying 
authorization. As of this reporting period 222 sites have been walked to identify potential 
equipment locations.  The total number of site walks will exceed the original 232 site list due to 
several site changes.  Sketches of each site have been created to identify primary and alternate 
locations for the placement of towers, cabinets, and generators.  220 sketches have been 
delivered to the Authority for review and a total of 197 sketches have been approved.  Upon 
completion of a site sketch approval, a site survey is conducted.  185 sites have been surveyed 
as of this reporting period.  22 sites are on hold for design work pending outreach.  10 sites have 

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS PSBN Monthly Report #7 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 5 
© Copyright 2013, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

been removed.  16 sites are at new locations and will start the design process over.  85 sites in 
total have Authority requested changes to the antenna support structure. 
 
Site access approvals and or Right of Entry agreements are required to perform site walks and 
site surveys for the remaining sites consisting of Independent Cities’ facilities and specified 
County properties that require parcel owner agreements.  State Historical Preservation Office 
(SHPO) approval is required prior to conducting any geotechnical/geological site surveying work. 
The geotechnical survey is required to develop a tower foundation design.   
 

The following are the summary tasks that are a part of the overall program but are not linked under 
Phase 1 in the schedule: 

 Zoning and Permitting (Phase 1c) (38% Complete) 
Activities for this task include the FAA Determination findings, Geotechnical/Geological site 
surveying reports, Construction Drawings, Zoning package submittals and Building Permit 
package submittals.  As of this reporting period 212 sites have been reviewed and determined 
by the FAA, 1 site is determined as an Obstruction, and 18 sites are still work in progress.  47 
geotechnical/geological surveys and reports have been started with 158 remaining.  26 sites do 
not require the survey due to the use of an existing structure.  
 

The primary Phase 2 effort for this period was unchanged.  Procurement initiation activities (monopoles 
and generators) for the first 35 sites were completed during the prior reporting period. 
 
The primary Phase 3 effort for this period was unchanged.  Procurement initiation activities (Evolved 
Packet Core and site telecommunication equipment ‐ eNodeB) for the first 35 sites and the Primary Core 
were completed during the prior reporting period. 
 
The following table provides a dashboard snapshot of the projects’ health signs. 
 
PSBN Project Dashboard 

Category  Rating  Change  Comments 

 
Schedule 
 

     
Tight schedule to meet BTOP grant program deadline 
 Receipt of FONSI for NTIA 
  

Quality 
 

    No quality items to report 

Risk 
 

    Fiber backhaul installation   
 

 
Scope 
 

     
Disguised towers and site changes  

Budget 
 

    Currently within budget 
 
 

  	

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS PSBN Monthly Report #7 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 6 
© Copyright 2013, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

2.	Project	Status	
The following sections identify task activities during the reporting period and the planned activities for 

the next reporting period. 

2.1	Tasks	In‐Progress	and	Completed		
The following depict the task activity that occurred during the current reporting period. 

Activity Name  Activity Status 

LA‐RICS Deliverables 

  Site Access Agreements & Right of Entry Permits In Progress

  Provide Access and Escort Schedule to EPC and RAN Sites In Progress

SHPO Submittal and Approvals  In Progress

Zoning and Permitting Outreach  In Progress

System Design Activities 

  Site Network Design Update With Comments  In Progress

  Backhaul Design  In Progress

  EPC Design Update With Comments  Complete

  Network Management System Design Update With Comments  In Progress

  Inventory Management Requirements Evaluation  Complete

  Develop Asset & Inventory Management Hierarchy  Started 

  Create EPC Installation Plan  Started

System Design Document Update with Comments   Complete

Project Description Review   In Progress 

Site Design Activities 

  Site Walk   In Progress 

  Site Sketch Development  In Progress 

  Site Sketch Approvals  In Progress 

  Site Surveys (1A)  In Progress 

  Line of Site Survey  In Progress 

Zoning & Permitting 

  FAA Determination   In Progress 

  Geotechnical Surveys  In Progress 

  Construction Drawings  In Progress 

Supply PSBN Components (Phase 3) 

  Primary EPC and 35 Site Equipment  In Progress 

 

	
  	

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS PSBN Monthly Report #7 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 7 
© Copyright 2013, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

2.2	Tasks	Planned	for	Next	Period	(09/14/14	thru	10/17/14)	
The following depict the task activity that is planned for the next reporting period. 

Activity Name  Planned Status 

LA‐RICS Deliverables   

  Provide Access to Sites  In Progress

  Right of Entry Agreements  In Progress

  Authority Approvals for Surveys and Geotechnical Studies In Progress

  Site Access Agreements In Progress

  SHPO Submittal and Approvals  In Progress

  Zoning and Permitting Outreach  In Progress

System Design Activities   

  Incorporate Authority Comments  In Progress

     

     

     

System Design Review & Approval  In Progress 

Project Description Review  In Progress 

Site Design Activities   

  Site Walk   On Plan to Finish 

  Site Sketch Development  On Plan to Finish 

  Site Sketch Approvals  In Progress 

  Site Surveys (1A)  In Progress 

  Line of Site Surveys  In Progress

  Zoning Package Development and Review In Progress

Zoning and Permitting   

  FAA Determination  In Progress

  Geotechnical Survey Reports  In Progress

  Zoning Package Submittal and Approval In Progress

Site Construction and Site Modification (Phase 2)   

  Site Modification – 35 Telecommunications Sites Start 

Supply PSBN Components (Phase 3)   

  Primary EPC and 35 Site Equipment  In Progress

  40 Site Equipment  Start 

System Implementation (Phase 4)   

  LTE EPC Install & Configuration  Start Pending NTP

  35 Telecommunications Sites  Start Pending NTP

     

 

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS PSBN Monthly Report #7 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 8 
© Copyright 2013, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

2.3	Authority	Look‐Ahead	Tasks	(120‐Day)	
For the Authority planning purposes the following table provides a one hundred twenty (120) Day look‐

ahead of the Authority‐specific activities to conduct coordination, inspections, approvals, consents, and 

or provide decisions necessary from the Authority to facilitate Contractor's progress. 

Activity Name  Start 

LA‐RICS Deliverables    
  Provide Access to Sites  On Going

  Right of Entry Agreements  On Going

  SHPO Submittal and Approval  On Going

  Receive FONSI Approval   10/6/14

  Site Access Agreements On Going

System Design Activities   

  Review Submitted Changes to System Design On going

     

Acceptance Test Plan   

  ATP Review and Approvals  On going

Site Design Activities   

  Site Walk Escorts  On Going

  Site Sketch Approvals  On Going

  Authority Approvals for Site Surveys and Geotechnical Studies On Going

  Disguised Tower Determination  On Going

  Zoning Package Review and Approval  On Going

Zoning and Permitting   

  Zoning Package Submittal and Approval  On Going

  Construction Package Review and Approval  On Going

  Building Permit Submittal and Approval  On Going

Site Construction and Site Modification (Phase 2)   

  Notice to Proceed Civil Construction Services (NEPA Approvals by Site)  Start 

Supply PSBN Components (Phase 3)   

  Inventory PSBN Components  Start 

System Implementation (Phase 4)   

  EPC & Network Management Installation Testing  Start 

   

 

   

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS PSBN Monthly Report #7 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 9 
© Copyright 2013, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

3. Project	Risk	Register	
For this monthly report there are three risk items to report.   

Title  Assigned  Impact Risk Description Status

Equipment Order 

NTPs 

LA‐RICS  High  Equipment delivery times are beginning 

to exceed the construction schedule 

In Process 

Construction NTPs  LA‐RICS  High  Schedule will be impacted if construction 

NTP does not occur by October 15, 2014  

In Process 

Independent City 

Participation & Site 

Changes 

LA‐RICS  Medium  Removing sites or change in site locations 

may pose a risk of delaying the backhaul 

design completion   

In Process 

4.	Areas	of	Concern	
This section describes any events and or circumstances of which the Contractor is aware that has 

delayed or may delay project activities and what corrective or remedial actions was taken or will be 

taken to resolve the issue.  Outstanding Issues Log (the “OIL Log”) entries are also tabulated and 

monitored in this section.  “Oil Log” items include, for example, sequencing, infrastructure, site access, 

coordination issues, congestion of workers and equipment, time requirements for design, procurement, 

and installation.  

ID  Event / Circumstance  Remedial Action Taken or Required 

02‐01  Sketch site walks for remaining 
Independent Cities 

Continued efforts are required to schedule visits for 
the remaining sites for the development of sketches 
and 1A site surveys. 

02‐02  Approval of sketches  Continued efforts are required to approve the 
remaining submitted sketches and begin 1A site 
surveys. 

03‐01  SHPO  Currently, 105 sites have a limited SHPO to authorize 
geotechnical borings.  This is required at all new 
tower sites for the completion of foundation designs. 

04‐01  Backhaul  Alternative routes are required to connect Sites to 
Core Location.  Supplemental EA and Route 
Modifications may be required. 

06‐01  Fiber Connectivity  Supplemental EA and Route Modifications may be 
required to bring fiber to site not connected with 
microwave. 

07‐01  Partial NTPs  Motorola is requesting that NTP be provided in larger 
groups to enable equipment ordering in line with 
construction scheduled. 

07‐02  Design Document Revisions  The design document will continue to be updated as 
the project progresses.  Stop Work notices for 
revisions that do not impact design may impact the 
schedule.  

07‐03  Sites Undecided, On Hold, or Pending  Sites that do not have approved site sketches, 1A 

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS PSBN Monthly Report #7 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 10 
© Copyright 2013, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

ID  Event / Circumstance  Remedial Action Taken or Required 

Change  surveys completed, or are not cleared for 
Geotechnical boring soon could be at risk of missing 
system acceptance testing and or could miss being 
deployed during the grant period. 

5.	Disputes	and	Claims	
This section describes any disputes, potential claims, and claims made during the reporting period. 

Dispute / Claim / Potential Claim  Status / Actions  Resolution Date 

None to report this period     

     

     

6.	Financial	Status	
The following represents the invoice payments that were completed during the reporting period and the 
remaining amount to be invoiced and paid.  On April 7, 2014 the Authority issued a Notice To Proceed 
(NTP) for Amendment 2 to add detailed design services to Phase 1 for Additive Alternate 1 – Home 
Subscriber Server (HSS) and Additive Alternate 2 –Redundant Evolved Packet Core (EPC).  Amendment 2 
raised Phase 1 by $395,044 for a total of $16,435,292.  On June 20, 2014, NTP 3 for Amendment 3 to add 
the applicable sites and scope for Phase 2 Site Construction and Site Modification and Phase 3 Supply 
PSBN Components.  The contract value for Phases 2 and 3 less the excluded scope is raised by 
$85,937,344 for a total value of $102,372,636. On July 10, 2014, Amendment 4 was approved by the 
Board of Directors to include Phases 2 & 3 for Additive Alternate 1 & 2.  Amendment 4 raised the 
Contract Sum total to $111,370,663.  It is anticipated that an Amendment for Phase 4 – PSBN 
Implementation will be brought to the Board of Directors for approval in the next progress period. 
 

PSBN Invoice Payment Category  Invoice Payment Totals 

PSBN Contract Sum Full Payable Amount (Phases 1, 2 &3)   $  111,370,663 

Cumulative Invoice Payments from Last Report  ($      2,420,314 ) 

Total Invoice Payments This Period  ($                      0 ) 

Remaining Amount to be Paid    $   108,950,349 

7.	LA‐RICS	PSBN	Project	Schedule	
The following Executive View depicts the status of the primary activities. 

AGENDA ITEM 4



LA‐RICS PSBN Monthly Report #7 – 08/18/14 thru 09/12/14  Page 11 
© Copyright 2013, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4



REGIONAL I NTEROPERABLE
IONS SYSTEM AUTHORITY
orporate Place, Suite 200

rey Park, California 91754

LA.RICS (323) 881-8291

PATRICK J. MALLON
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

October 2,2014

TO: LA-RICS AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: PATRICKJ.MALLoN jl , Ìl l, ({,-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR _ t\ lttL.- 

;í. 
tt t o."

NOTICE OF PREPARATION OF A DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT -
OUTREACH ACTIVITIES

This matter is being presented as a discussion item. At the September 17,2014 Board of
Directors Special Meeting, Alternate Board Member Santome requested a summary report of
outreach activities conducted in connection with the Notice of Preparation (NOP) of a Draft
Environmental lmpact Report for the proposed Land Mobile Radio ("LMR") system. Below
you will find a list of outreach activities conducted in accordance with requirements of the
California Code of Regulations, Title 14 (CEQA Guidelines) Sections 15082 and 15083. As
summarized below, the Authority met, and in a number of instances, exceeded the
requirements.

CEQA Requirements /
Recommendations for Notice

of Preparation

LA-RICS Land Mobile Radio
Notice of Preparation Outreach Activities

CEQA Guidelines Section 15082
requires Notice of Preparation
(NOP) be sent to responsible and
trustee agencies and involved
federal agencies using a method
that provides record of delivery.

LA-RICS issued the NOP along with the lnitial Study (lS)
to trustee and responsible agencies (90 recipients),
including every city, as well as Federal, State and Local
agency with jurisdiction over a proposed Land Mobile
Radio site. The Notice was sent via Federal Express on
August 19,2014 (Attachment A).

Notice of Completion (NOC) is
not required for an NOP, but
state Office of Planning and
Research guidance recommends
submitting an NOC with an NOP.

LA-RICS submitted an NOC along with the NOP and lnitial
Study to the State Clearinghouse on August 19,2014
(Attachment B).

Periodical publications are not
required by CEQA.

LA-RICS published NOP availability and scoping meeting
announcement in the Los Angeles Times on August 27,
2014 and September 3,2014 (Attachment C).

Website posting is not required
by CEQA.

LA-RICS posted the NOP and lnitial Study on the LA-RICS
website effective August 19,2014.



CEQA Requirements /
Recommendations for Notice

of Preparation

LA-RICS Land Mobile Radio
Notice of Preparation Outreach Activities

CEQA requires one scoping
meeting for projects of regional
or area-wide significance.

LA-RICS held five scoping meetings in various geographic
areas of Los Angeles County, as noted in the NOP. The
PowerPoint Presentation used at the scoping meetings is
included as Attachment D. Authority staff will also display
to the Board, the poster boards used during the scoping
meetings.

The number of public attendees at the five scoping
meetings are as follows:

Sep 11 Diamond Bar - 1 attendee
Sep 15 Lancaster - 1 attendee
Sep 16 Woodland Hills - no attendees
Sep 17 San Pedro - 4 attendees
Sep 18 Lvnwood - no attendees

By the close of the comment period, ending September 26,2014, the following 20 agencies
and two entities from the public have contacted LA-RICS by phone, email, and US mail with
questions and/or comments:

City of Agoura Hills
City of Beverly Hills
City of Burbank
City of Carson
City of Huntington Park
City of Palmdale
City of Pasadena
City of Rancho Palos Verdes
City of Rolling Hills
U.S. Coast Guard
County of Los Angeles (Chief Executive Office)
County of Orange (Sheriff's Department)
County of San Bernardino (lnformation Services Department)
Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District
South Coast Air Quality Management District
CA Department of Transportation
District 7 Lahontan RegionalWater Resource Control Board
Santa Ana RegionalWater Resource Control Board
Native American Heritage Commission
California Department of Fish and Wildlife
Congregation Ner Tamid of South Bay (in Rancho Palos Verdes)
Ocean Front Estate Homeowner's Association (in Rancho Palos Verdes)

PJM

Attachments



Notice of Preparation

Name
CC:
Title, Organization
Address
City, State Zip Code

Los Angeles Regional Interoperable
Communications System

Joint Powers Authority
2525 Corporate Place, Suite 200

Monterey Park, Califorcia 91,7 5 4

Subject: Notice of Preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Report

Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System (LA-RICS) Joint Powers Authority (JPA)
will be the Lead Agency and will prepare an Environmental lmpact Report (EIR) for the proposed Land
Mobile Radio system. We need to know the views of your agency as to the scope and content of the
environmental information which is germane to your agency's statutoly responsibilities in connection
with the ploposed ploject. Your agency will need to use the EIR preparecl by our agency when
considering your perrnit or other approvals for the project.

The project description, location, and the potential environmental effects are addressed in the lnitial
Study, which is attached.

Due to the time limits mandated by State law, your response must be sent at the earliest possible date but
not later than 30 days after receipt of this notice.

Please send youl response to Nancy Yang, project engineer, 2525 Corporate Place, Suite 200, Monterey
Park, California97754 or e-mail nflncl.)/anq@la-r'ics.org. V/e will need the name for a contact person in
your agency.

Notice of Public Meetings: The LA-RICS JPA has scheduled five public environmental scoping
meetings to provide additional opportunity to input. The public meetings are scheduled as follows and
will be helcl at the following locations from 6:30 p.m. to 8:30 p.rn.:

Thursday, September ll,20l4 Tuesday, September 16,2014
South Coast AQMD Building, Room GB El Camino Real Charter High School, Auditorium
21865 CopleyDrive, Diamond Bar,CA91765 5440Yal\ey Circle Blvd., Woodland Hills, CA 91367

Monday, September 15,2014 Wednesday, September 17,2014
Stanley Kleiner Activity Building Peck Park Community Center, Auditorium
43011 lOth St. West 560 North Western Ave., San pedro, CA 90:32
Lancaster, CA 93534

Thursday, September 18, 2014
City of Lynwood Bateman Hall, Room 2
11331 Ernestine Ave., Lynwood, CA90262

Reference: California Code ol' lìegulations, 'fit]e I 4, (CEQA Guidelines) Sections I 5082(a), I 5 I 03, I 53 75,

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT A



Agency Name Salutation Contact Title Address Address 2 City State Zip

Federal Aviation Administration Western-Pacific Region
Property Management 
Branch, AWP 54B PO Box 92007 Los Angeles CA 90009

U.S. Forest Service Mr. Justin Seastrand
Forest Environmental 
Coordinator

U.S. Department of 
Agriculture, Forest Service 
Angeles National Forest 701 N. Santa Anita Ave. Arcadia CA 91006-7725

Santa Monica Mountains National 
Recreation Area Ms. Melanie Beck Outdoor Recreation Planner 401 West Hillcrest Dr. Thousand Oaks CA 91360

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Ms. Katie Parks

Asset Management Division, 
Department of the Army, Los 
Angeles District, Corps of 
Engineers 915 Wilshire Blvd. Los Angeles CA 90017

U.S. Bureau of Land Management Mr. Paul Rodriguez Realty Specialist
Bureau of Land Management, 
Ridgecrest Field Office 300 S. Richmond Rd. Ridgecrest CA 93555

U.S. Coast Guard
Commander(s) Maintenance 
and Logistic Command

Pacific Coast Guard Island 
Building 54D Alameda CA 94501-5100

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Mr. Scott Sobiech Deputy Field Supervisor Carlsbad Fish & Wildlife Office 2177 Salk Ave., Suite 250 Carlsbad CA 92008

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Mr. Steve Henry Field Supervisor
Ventura Fish and Wildlife 
Office 2493 Portola Rd., Suite B Ventura CA 93003-7726 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Mr. Ken Corey Assistant Field Supervisor
Palm Springs Fish & Wildlife 
Office

777 E. Tahquitz Canyon Way, 
Suite 208 Palm Springs CA 92262

California Coastal Commission South Central Coast District 89 S. California St., #200 Ventura CA 93001
California Coastal Commission South Coast District 200 Oceangate Long Beach CA 90802
California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife, Region V Mr. Ed Pert Regional Manager 3883 Ruffin Road San Diego CA 92123
California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife, Region VI Ms. Kimberly Nicol Regional Manager

3602 Inland Empire Blvd., 
Suite C-220 Ontario CA 91764

California State Historic Preservation 
Officer Dr. Carol Roland-Nawi, Ph.D

State Historic Preservation 
Officer 1725 23rd St., Suite 100 Sacramento CA 95816

Antelope Valley Air Quality 
Management District Mr. Eldon Heaston Executive Director 43301 Division St., Suite 206 Lancaster CA 93535
South Coast Air Quality Management 
District Dr. Barry R. Wallerstein, D.Env Executive Officer 21865 Copley Dr. Diamond Bar CA 91765
Lahontan Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, Region 6 Ms. Patty Z. Kouyoumdijan Executive Officer 2501 Lake Tahoe Blvd. South Lake Tahoe CA 96150
Los Angeles Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, Region 4 Mr. Samuel Unger Executive Officer 320 W. Fourth St., Suite 200 Los Angeles CA 90013
Santa Ana Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, Region 8 Executive Officer 3737 Main St., Suite 500 Riverside CA 92501

Southern California Association of 
Governments, Transportation Planning Mr. Rich Macias Director

818 W. Seventh St., 12th 
Floor Los Angeles CA 90017

Caltrans, District 7 Ms. Carrie Bowen District Director Caltrans - District 7 100 S. Main St. Los Angeles CA 90012
California State Parks Ms. Lisa Mangat Acting Director 1416 9th St. Sacramento CA 95814

Native American Heritage Commission Ms. Cynthia Gomez Executive Secretary 1550 Harbor Blvd., Suite 100 West Sacramento CA 95691

Los Angeles County Mr. William T Fujioka Chief Executive Officer
Kenneth Hahn Hall of 
Administration 500 W. Temple St. Los Angeles CA 90012

Los Angeles County Mr. Sean Rogan Executive Director

Community Development 
Commission/Housing 
Authority
of the County of Los Angeles 700 W. Main St. Alhambra CA 91801

Orange County Mr. Michael B. Giancola Chief Executive Officer 333 W. Santa Ana Blvd. Santa Ana CA 92701

Orange County Executive Director
Community Development 
Department 300 N. Flower St. Santa Ana CA 92703

City of Agoura Hills Mr. Greg Ramirez City Manager 30001 Ladyface Ct. Agoura Hills CA 91301

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT A



Agency Name Salutation Contact Title Address Address 2 City State Zip

City of Agoura Hills Mr. Mike Kamino Director
Planning and Community 
Development Department 30001 Ladyface Ct. Agoura Hills CA 91301

City of Beverly Hills Mr. Jeffrey Kolin City Manager 455 N. Rexford Dr. Beverly Hills CA 90210

City of Beverly Hills Ms. Susan Healy Keene, AICP Director
Community Development 
Department 455 N. Rexford Dr., 1st Fl. Beverly Hills CA 90210

City of Burbank Mr. Mark Scott City Manager
Office of the City Manager, 
City Hall 275 E. Olive Ave. Burbank CA 91510

City of Burbank Ms. Joy Forbes Director
Community Services Bldg., 
2nd Fl. 150 North Third Street Burbank CA 91502

City of Carson Ms. Jackie Acosta Acting City Manager City Hall 701 E. Carson St. Carson CA 90745
City of Carson Executive Director Community Development 701 E. Carson St. Carson CA 90745
City of Cerritos Mr. Art Gallucci City Manager 18125 Bloomfield Ave. Cerritos CA 90703

City of Cerritos Director
Community Development 
Department 18125 Bloomfield Ave. Cerritos CA 90703

City of Chino Hills Mr. Konradt Bartlam City Manager 14000 City Center Dr. Chino Hills CA 91709

City of Chino Hills Director
Community Development 
Department 14000 City Center Dr. Chino Hills CA 91709

City of Claremont Mr. Tony Ramos City Manager 207 Harvard Ave. Claremont CA 91711

City of Claremont Mr. Brian Desatnik Director
Community Development 
Department 207 Harvard Ave. Claremont CA 91711

City of Compton Mr. G. Harold Duffey City Manager 205 S. Willowbrook Ave. Compton CA 90220

City of Compton Director
Planning and Economic 
Development Department 205 S. Willowbrook Ave. Compton CA 90220

City of El Monte Mr. Raul Godinez City Manager City Hall East 11333 Valley Blvd. El Monte CA 91731

City of El Monte Planning Director City Hall West 11333 Valley Blvd. El Monte CA 91731
City of El Segundo Mr. Greg Carpenter City Manager Office of the City Manager 350 Main St. El Segundo CA 90245

City of El Segundo Director
Planning and Building Safety 
Department 350 Main St. El Segundo CA 90245

City of Glendale Mr. Scott Ochoa City Manager Management Services 613 E. Broadway, Room 200 Glendale CA 91206

City of Glendale Mr. Hassan Haghani Director
Community Development 
Department 613 E. Broadway Glendale CA 91206

City of Glendora Mr. Chris Jeffers City Manager City of Glendora 116 E. Foothill Blvd. Glendora CA 91741

City of Glendora Mr. Jeff Kugel Director of Planning Planning Department 116 E. Foothill Blvd. Glendora CA 91741
City of Huntington Park Mr. Julio Morales Interim City Manager 6550 Miles Ave. Huntington Park CA 90255

City of Huntington Park Director
Community Development 
Department 6550 Miles Ave. Huntington Park CA 90255

City of Inglewood Mr. Artie Fields City Manager One Manchester Blvd. Inglewood CA 90301

City of Inglewood Ms. Linda F. Tatum, AICP
Acting Community 
Development Director

Economic & Community 
Development Department One Manchester Blvd. Inglewood CA 90301

City of Lancaster Mr. Mark V. Bozigian City Manager 44933 Fern Ave. Lancaster CA 93534
City of Lancaster Planning Director 44933 Fern Ave. Lancaster CA 93534
City of Los Angeles Mr. Miguel Santana City Administrative Officer 200 N. Main St., Suite 1500 Los Angeles CA 90012
City of Los Angeles Mr. Michael LoGrande Director of Planning Department of City Planning 200 N. Spring St. Los Angeles CA 90012

City of Los Angeles, Department of 
Transportation Ms. Seleta Reynolds General Manager

City of Los Angeles, 
Department of Transportation 100 S. Main St., 10th Floor Los Angeles CA 90012

City of Malibu Mr. Jim Thorsen City Manager 23825 Stuart Ranch Rd. Malibu CA 90265
City of Malibu Ms. Joyce Parker-Bozylinski Planning Director 23825 Stuart Ranch Rd. Malibu CA 90265

City of Palmdale Mr. David Childs City Manager 38300 Sierra Highway, Suite A Palmdale CA 93550
City of Palmdale Planning Director 38250 Sierra Highway Palmdale CA 93350

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT A



Agency Name Salutation Contact Title Address Address 2 City State Zip

City of Pasadena Mr. Michael J. Beck City Manager
100 N. Garfield Ave., Room 
S228 Pasadena CA 91109

City of Pasadena Mr. Vincent P. Bertoni, AICP
Director of Planning and 
Community Development 175 N. Garfield Ave. Pasadena CA 91101

City of Rancho Palos Verdes Ms. Carolynn Petru Acting City Manager Rancho Palos Verdes City Hall 30940 Hawthorne Blvd.
Rancho Palos 
Verdes CA 90275

City of Rancho Palos Verdes Mr. Joel Rojas
Director of Community 
Development Rancho Palos Verdes City Hall 30940 Hawthorne Blvd.

Rancho Palos 
Verdes CA 90275

City of Redondo Beach Mr. Joe Hoefgen Interim City Manager City Manager's Office 415 Diamond St. Redondo Beach CA 90277
City of Redondo Beach Planning Director 415 Diamond St. Redondo Beach CA 90277

City of Rolling Hills Mr. Raymond R. Cruz City Manager Two Portuguese Bend Rd. Rolling Hills CA 90274

City of Rolling Hills Ms. Yolanta Schwartz Planning Director Two Portuguese Bend Rd. Rolling Hills CA 90274

City of San Dimas Mr. Blaine Michaelis City Manager City Manager's Office 245 E. Bonita Ave. San Dimas CA 91773

City of San Dimas
Director of Community 
Development

San Dimas City Hall, 
Community Development 245 E. Bonita Ave. San Dimas CA 91773

City of Santa Monica Mr. Rod Gould City Manager 1685 Main St., Room 209 Santa Monica CA 90401

City of Santa Monica
Planning and Community 
Development Director City Hall 1685 Main St., Room 212 Santa Monica CA 90401

City of Signal Hill Mr. Kenneth R. Farfsing City Manager 2175 Cherry Ave. Signal Hill CA 90755

City of Signal Hill
Director of Community 
Development 2175 Cherry Ave. Signal Hill CA 90755

City of West Hollywood Mr. Paul Arevalo City Manager 8300 Santa Monica Blvd. West Hollywood CA 90069

City of West Hollywood Ms. Stephanie DeWolfe
Director of Community 
Development 8300 Santa Monica Blvd. West Hollywood CA 90069

City of Westlake Village Mr. Raymond B. Taylor City Manager 31200 Oak Crest Dr. Westlake Village CA 91361
City of Westlake Village Mr. Scott Wolfe Planning Director 31200 Oak Crest Dr. Westlake Village CA 91361

City of Whittier Mr. Jeff Collier City Manager 13230 Penn St. Whittier CA 90602

City of Whittier
Director of Community 
Development

City of Whittier, Community 
Development Department 13230 Penn St., Second Floor Whittier CA 90602

County of San Bernardino Director Planning Department 385 N. Arrowhead Ave. San Bernardino CA 92415
County of San Bernardino Mr. Gregory C. Devereaux Chief Executive Officer 385 N. Arrowhead Ave. San Bernardino CA 92415

Santa Monica Mountains Conservancy
Mr. Joseph T. Edmiston, FAICP Executive Director Ramirez Canyon Park 5750 Ramirez Canyon Road Malibu CA 90265

County of Los Angeles Public Works 
Department Ms. Gail Farber Director 900 S. Fremont Ave. Alhambra CA 91803
Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles 
County Ms. Grace Robinson Hyde 

Chief Engineer and General 
Manager 1955 Workman Mill Road Whittier CA 90607

State Clearinghouse Mr. Scott Morgan Director 1400 10th Street Sacramento CA 95812

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT A



Print Form
Appendix C

Mail to: State Clearinghouse, P.O. Box 3044, Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 (916) 445-0613
For Hand Delivery/Street Address: 1400 Tenth Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

project T¡tle: Los Angeles Regional lnteroperable Communications System (LA-RICS) Land Mobile Radio (LMR) System

Notice of Completion & Environmental Document Transmittal

Lead Agency: LA-RICS Joint Powers Authority (JPA) Contact Person: NancY Yang

Mailing Address:2525 Corporate Place, Suite 200 Phone: 323.881 -8049

City: Monterey Park Zip:91754 County: Los Angeles

Project Locatlon:
Cross Streets:

County:Los Angeles City/Nearest Community: sites are located countywide

ZipCode:

Longitude/Latitude (degrees, minutes and seconds):

Assessor's Parcel No.:

Within 2 Miles: State Hwy #:

Airports:

Section: _ Tnup.: _ Range:

Waterways:

Railways:

Base:

Document Type:

CEQA: EI woP
! Early Cons

! Neg Dec

n Mit Neg Dec

! Draft EIR
! Supplemenlsubsequent EIR
(Prior SCH No.)
Other: lnitial Study

NOI Other:
EA
Draft EIS
FONSI

NEPA: n
n
n

!
¡
n
tr

Joint Document
Final Document
Other:

Local Actlon Type:

n General Plan Update

E General Plan Amendment

! General Plan Element

f] Community Plan

Specific Plan
Master Plan
Planned Unit Development
Site Plan

Rezone
Prezone
Use Permit
Land Division (Subdivision, etc.)

Annexation
Redevelopment
Coastal Permit
Other:telecom mu n icat6

!
!!
E

!!
n
n

!!
!
tr

Development Type:

! Residential: Units
E Office: Sq.ft.

! Commercial:Sq.ft.

! Industrial: Sq.ft.

Acres
Acres _ Emolovees

Employees_
Employees_

! Transportation: Type
Acres _
Acres _ MW

! Educational: MGD
! Recreational:

I Water Facilities:Type MGD

Project lssues Dlscussed in Document:

I Aesthetic/Visual
I Agricultural Land

EI Air Quality

! Fiscal

I ¡lood Plain/Flooding
18 Forest Land/Fire Hazud

[] Minerals

I Noise

I Population/Housing Balance

I eubtc Services/Facilities

I Recreation/Pa¡ks

E Schools/Universities

n Septic Systems

! Sewer Capacity

E Soit Erosion/Compaction/Grading

S Soüd waste
E Toxic/Hazardous

I Traffic/Circulation

ff Vegetation

I warcr Quality
I Water Supply/Groundwater

I Wetland/Riparian

! Growth Inducement

I Land Use

! Cumulative Effects
n other:

[]ArcheologicaVHistorical IGeologic/Seismic
[] Biological Resources

EI Coastal Zone

! Drainage/Absorption

f] Economic/Jobs

Present Land UseZoning/General Plan Designation:

y'S'Ti rtf r:' g"'l T9.! r? T'9.Io:' _ _
Project Description: (please use a separate page if necessary)
lnstallation and operation of up to 90 LMR communications sites in Los Angeles County and portions of adjacent Orange and
5an Bernardino counties to provide voice communications coverage for emergency responders. The proposed sites are within
or adjacent to existing communication facilities to the maximum extent feasible. The project consist of installation of antennas
on existing and new lattice towers and monopoles and supporting radio equipment in existing and new shelters. Sites may
also include new emergency generators. New lattice towers would generally not exceed 180 feet in height. New monopoles
would generally be 70 feet tall. Maximum construction footprints would not exceed 5,000 square feet at a site.

Note:TheStateClearinghousewillassignidentificationnumbersforallnewprojects. IfaSCHnumberalreadyexistsforaproject(e.g.NoticeofPrepnrutionor
previous draft tlocument) pleaseJill irt. 

Revised 2010

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT B



Reviewing Agencies Checklist
Lead Agencies may recommend State Clearinghouse distribution by marking agencies below with and "X",
Ifyou have already sent your document to the agency please denote that with an "S".

s Offrce of Historic Preservation

Offrce of Public School Construction

Parks & Recreation, Department of
Pesticide Regulation, Department of
Public Utilities Commission

Regional WQCB #

Resources Agency

4,6V,8

Air Resources Board

Boating & Waterways, Department of
California Emergency Management Agency

California Highway Patrol

Caltrans District ¡7
Caltrans Division of Aeronautics

Caltrans Planning

Central Valley Flood Protection Board

Coachella Valley Mtns. Conservancy

Coastal Commission

Colorado River Board

Conservation, Department of
Corrections, Department of
Delta Protection Commission

Education, Department of
Energy Commission

Fish & Game Region #5, 6

Food & Agriculture, Department of
Forestry and Fire Protection, Department of
General Services, Department of
Health Services, Department of
Housing & Community Development

Native American Heritage Commission

Resources Recycling and Recovery, Department of
S.F. Bay Conservation & Development Comm.

San Gabriel & Lower L.A. Rivers & Mtns. Conservancy

San Joaquin River Conservancy

Santa Monica Mtns. Conservancy

State Lands Commission

SWRCB: Clean rùy'ater Grants

SWRCB: Water Quality
SWRCB: Water Rights

Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Toxic Substances Control, Department of
W'ater Resources, Department of

Other:

Other:

Local Public Review Period (to be f¡lled in by lead agency)

Starting Out" N!!.414 Ending Pu¡" SePtember 25, 2014

Lead Agency (Complete if applicable):

Consulting Pi.r¡' Jacobs

Address: 3257 E Guasti Road, Suite 120

Ci,rlS,u."
Contact: Carl Rykaczewski
phone: 909.974.2721

APPlicant: LA-RICS JPA

Address: 2525 Corporate Place, Suite 200

CitylstatelZip' Monterey Park, CA 91754
phone: 323. 881.8049

Authority cited: Section 21083, Public Resources Code. Reference; Section 21161, Public Resources Code.

Revised 2010

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT B



Agency Name Salutation Contact Title Address Address 2 City State Zip

Federal Aviation Administration Western-Pacific Region
Property Management 
Branch, AWP 54B PO Box 92007 Los Angeles CA 90009

U.S. Forest Service Mr. Justin Seastrand
Forest Environmental 
Coordinator

U.S. Department of 
Agriculture, Forest Service 
Angeles National Forest 701 N. Santa Anita Ave. Arcadia CA 91006-7725

Santa Monica Mountains National 
Recreation Area Ms. Melanie Beck Outdoor Recreation Planner 401 West Hillcrest Dr. Thousand Oaks CA 91360

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Ms. Katie Parks

Asset Management Division, 
Department of the Army, Los 
Angeles District, Corps of 
Engineers 915 Wilshire Blvd. Los Angeles CA 90017

U.S. Bureau of Land Management Mr. Paul Rodriguez Realty Specialist
Bureau of Land Management, 
Ridgecrest Field Office 300 S. Richmond Rd. Ridgecrest CA 93555

U.S. Coast Guard
Commander(s) Maintenance 
and Logistic Command

Pacific Coast Guard Island 
Building 54D Alameda CA 94501-5100

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Mr. Scott Sobiech Deputy Field Supervisor Carlsbad Fish & Wildlife Office 2177 Salk Ave., Suite 250 Carlsbad CA 92008

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Mr. Steve Henry Field Supervisor
Ventura Fish and Wildlife 
Office 2493 Portola Rd., Suite B Ventura CA 93003-7726 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Mr. Ken Corey Assistant Field Supervisor
Palm Springs Fish & Wildlife 
Office

777 E. Tahquitz Canyon Way, 
Suite 208 Palm Springs CA 92262

California Coastal Commission South Central Coast District 89 S. California St., #200 Ventura CA 93001
California Coastal Commission South Coast District 200 Oceangate Long Beach CA 90802
California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife, Region V Mr. Ed Pert Regional Manager 3883 Ruffin Road San Diego CA 92123
California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife, Region VI Ms. Kimberly Nicol Regional Manager

3602 Inland Empire Blvd., 
Suite C-220 Ontario CA 91764

California State Historic Preservation 
Officer Dr. Carol Roland-Nawi, Ph.D

State Historic Preservation 
Officer 1725 23rd St., Suite 100 Sacramento CA 95816

Antelope Valley Air Quality 
Management District Mr. Eldon Heaston Executive Director 43301 Division St., Suite 206 Lancaster CA 93535
South Coast Air Quality Management 
District Dr. Barry R. Wallerstein, D.Env Executive Officer 21865 Copley Dr. Diamond Bar CA 91765
Lahontan Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, Region 6 Ms. Patty Z. Kouyoumdijan Executive Officer 2501 Lake Tahoe Blvd. South Lake Tahoe CA 96150
Los Angeles Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, Region 4 Mr. Samuel Unger Executive Officer 320 W. Fourth St., Suite 200 Los Angeles CA 90013
Santa Ana Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, Region 8 Executive Officer 3737 Main St., Suite 500 Riverside CA 92501

Southern California Association of 
Governments, Transportation Planning Mr. Rich Macias Director

818 W. Seventh St., 12th 
Floor Los Angeles CA 90017

Caltrans, District 7 Ms. Carrie Bowen District Director Caltrans - District 7 100 S. Main St. Los Angeles CA 90012
California State Parks Ms. Lisa Mangat Acting Director 1416 9th St. Sacramento CA 95814

Native American Heritage Commission Ms. Cynthia Gomez Executive Secretary 1550 Harbor Blvd., Suite 100 West Sacramento CA 95691

Los Angeles County Mr. William T Fujioka Chief Executive Officer
Kenneth Hahn Hall of 
Administration 500 W. Temple St. Los Angeles CA 90012

Los Angeles County Mr. Sean Rogan Executive Director

Community Development 
Commission/Housing 
Authority
of the County of Los Angeles 700 W. Main St. Alhambra CA 91801

Orange County Mr. Michael B. Giancola Chief Executive Officer 333 W. Santa Ana Blvd. Santa Ana CA 92701

Orange County Executive Director
Community Development 
Department 300 N. Flower St. Santa Ana CA 92703

City of Agoura Hills Mr. Greg Ramirez City Manager 30001 Ladyface Ct. Agoura Hills CA 91301

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT B



Agency Name Salutation Contact Title Address Address 2 City State Zip

City of Agoura Hills Mr. Mike Kamino Director
Planning and Community 
Development Department 30001 Ladyface Ct. Agoura Hills CA 91301

City of Beverly Hills Mr. Jeffrey Kolin City Manager 455 N. Rexford Dr. Beverly Hills CA 90210

City of Beverly Hills Ms. Susan Healy Keene, AICP Director
Community Development 
Department 455 N. Rexford Dr., 1st Fl. Beverly Hills CA 90210

City of Burbank Mr. Mark Scott City Manager
Office of the City Manager, 
City Hall 275 E. Olive Ave. Burbank CA 91510

City of Burbank Ms. Joy Forbes Director
Community Services Bldg., 
2nd Fl. 150 North Third Street Burbank CA 91502

City of Carson Ms. Jackie Acosta Acting City Manager City Hall 701 E. Carson St. Carson CA 90745
City of Carson Executive Director Community Development 701 E. Carson St. Carson CA 90745
City of Cerritos Mr. Art Gallucci City Manager 18125 Bloomfield Ave. Cerritos CA 90703

City of Cerritos Director
Community Development 
Department 18125 Bloomfield Ave. Cerritos CA 90703

City of Chino Hills Mr. Konradt Bartlam City Manager 14000 City Center Dr. Chino Hills CA 91709

City of Chino Hills Director
Community Development 
Department 14000 City Center Dr. Chino Hills CA 91709

City of Claremont Mr. Tony Ramos City Manager 207 Harvard Ave. Claremont CA 91711

City of Claremont Mr. Brian Desatnik Director
Community Development 
Department 207 Harvard Ave. Claremont CA 91711

City of Compton Mr. G. Harold Duffey City Manager 205 S. Willowbrook Ave. Compton CA 90220

City of Compton Director
Planning and Economic 
Development Department 205 S. Willowbrook Ave. Compton CA 90220

City of El Monte Mr. Raul Godinez City Manager City Hall East 11333 Valley Blvd. El Monte CA 91731

City of El Monte Planning Director City Hall West 11333 Valley Blvd. El Monte CA 91731
City of El Segundo Mr. Greg Carpenter City Manager Office of the City Manager 350 Main St. El Segundo CA 90245

City of El Segundo Director
Planning and Building Safety 
Department 350 Main St. El Segundo CA 90245

City of Glendale Mr. Scott Ochoa City Manager Management Services 613 E. Broadway, Room 200 Glendale CA 91206

City of Glendale Mr. Hassan Haghani Director
Community Development 
Department 613 E. Broadway Glendale CA 91206

City of Glendora Mr. Chris Jeffers City Manager City of Glendora 116 E. Foothill Blvd. Glendora CA 91741

City of Glendora Mr. Jeff Kugel Director of Planning Planning Department 116 E. Foothill Blvd. Glendora CA 91741
City of Huntington Park Mr. Julio Morales Interim City Manager 6550 Miles Ave. Huntington Park CA 90255

City of Huntington Park Director
Community Development 
Department 6550 Miles Ave. Huntington Park CA 90255

City of Inglewood Mr. Artie Fields City Manager One Manchester Blvd. Inglewood CA 90301

City of Inglewood Ms. Linda F. Tatum, AICP
Acting Community 
Development Director

Economic & Community 
Development Department One Manchester Blvd. Inglewood CA 90301

City of Lancaster Mr. Mark V. Bozigian City Manager 44933 Fern Ave. Lancaster CA 93534
City of Lancaster Planning Director 44933 Fern Ave. Lancaster CA 93534
City of Los Angeles Mr. Miguel Santana City Administrative Officer 200 N. Main St., Suite 1500 Los Angeles CA 90012
City of Los Angeles Mr. Michael LoGrande Director of Planning Department of City Planning 200 N. Spring St. Los Angeles CA 90012

City of Los Angeles, Department of 
Transportation Ms. Seleta Reynolds General Manager

City of Los Angeles, 
Department of Transportation 100 S. Main St., 10th Floor Los Angeles CA 90012

City of Malibu Mr. Jim Thorsen City Manager 23825 Stuart Ranch Rd. Malibu CA 90265
City of Malibu Ms. Joyce Parker-Bozylinski Planning Director 23825 Stuart Ranch Rd. Malibu CA 90265

City of Palmdale Mr. David Childs City Manager 38300 Sierra Highway, Suite A Palmdale CA 93550
City of Palmdale Planning Director 38250 Sierra Highway Palmdale CA 93350

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT B



Agency Name Salutation Contact Title Address Address 2 City State Zip

City of Pasadena Mr. Michael J. Beck City Manager
100 N. Garfield Ave., Room 
S228 Pasadena CA 91109

City of Pasadena Mr. Vincent P. Bertoni, AICP
Director of Planning and 
Community Development 175 N. Garfield Ave. Pasadena CA 91101

City of Rancho Palos Verdes Ms. Carolynn Petru Acting City Manager Rancho Palos Verdes City Hall 30940 Hawthorne Blvd.
Rancho Palos 
Verdes CA 90275

City of Rancho Palos Verdes Mr. Joel Rojas
Director of Community 
Development Rancho Palos Verdes City Hall 30940 Hawthorne Blvd.

Rancho Palos 
Verdes CA 90275

City of Redondo Beach Mr. Joe Hoefgen Interim City Manager City Manager's Office 415 Diamond St. Redondo Beach CA 90277
City of Redondo Beach Planning Director 415 Diamond St. Redondo Beach CA 90277

City of Rolling Hills Mr. Raymond R. Cruz City Manager Two Portuguese Bend Rd. Rolling Hills CA 90274

City of Rolling Hills Ms. Yolanta Schwartz Planning Director Two Portuguese Bend Rd. Rolling Hills CA 90274

City of San Dimas Mr. Blaine Michaelis City Manager City Manager's Office 245 E. Bonita Ave. San Dimas CA 91773

City of San Dimas
Director of Community 
Development

San Dimas City Hall, 
Community Development 245 E. Bonita Ave. San Dimas CA 91773

City of Santa Monica Mr. Rod Gould City Manager 1685 Main St., Room 209 Santa Monica CA 90401

City of Santa Monica
Planning and Community 
Development Director City Hall 1685 Main St., Room 212 Santa Monica CA 90401

City of Signal Hill Mr. Kenneth R. Farfsing City Manager 2175 Cherry Ave. Signal Hill CA 90755

City of Signal Hill
Director of Community 
Development 2175 Cherry Ave. Signal Hill CA 90755

City of West Hollywood Mr. Paul Arevalo City Manager 8300 Santa Monica Blvd. West Hollywood CA 90069

City of West Hollywood Ms. Stephanie DeWolfe
Director of Community 
Development 8300 Santa Monica Blvd. West Hollywood CA 90069

City of Westlake Village Mr. Raymond B. Taylor City Manager 31200 Oak Crest Dr. Westlake Village CA 91361
City of Westlake Village Mr. Scott Wolfe Planning Director 31200 Oak Crest Dr. Westlake Village CA 91361

City of Whittier Mr. Jeff Collier City Manager 13230 Penn St. Whittier CA 90602

City of Whittier
Director of Community 
Development

City of Whittier, Community 
Development Department 13230 Penn St., Second Floor Whittier CA 90602

County of San Bernardino Director Planning Department 385 N. Arrowhead Ave. San Bernardino CA 92415
County of San Bernardino Mr. Gregory C. Devereaux Chief Executive Officer 385 N. Arrowhead Ave. San Bernardino CA 92415

Santa Monica Mountains Conservancy
Mr. Joseph T. Edmiston, FAICP Executive Director Ramirez Canyon Park 5750 Ramirez Canyon Road Malibu CA 90265

County of Los Angeles Public Works 
Department Ms. Gail Farber Director 900 S. Fremont Ave. Alhambra CA 91803
Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles 
County Ms. Grace Robinson Hyde 

Chief Engineer and General 
Manager 1955 Workman Mill Road Whittier CA 90607

State Clearinghouse Mr. Scott Morgan Director 1400 10th Street Sacramento CA 95812

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT B



EqåAilg l*s G![mes
MEDI,A,. C ROUP

Sold To:
Katz & Associates lnc - CU00303252
5440 Morehouse Drive, Suite 1000

San Diego ,CA92121

BillTo:
Katz & Associates Inc - GU00303252
5440 Morehouse Drive, Suite 1000
San Diego ,CA92121

NotlcË of Preparatlon of a Sr¡lt ËnvlronmGätål
lmprct ñrporf for thc L¡nd Mobtlc ßadlo S¡ttrm
ln Í.ol Angeltr Count¡

l' lpnio¡¡ ì50¡t úÍ tbÊ (al&rna En*rq
uldelín$ $rs it tç ne{rfy ¡tìå (¿tifornía

Planr*ç aa,J F*:evrfio {IQÀ *erponsibÞ Égrns€l, at}d ¿R(ðrer¡€d

f*itis5 th¡t lhe rÐs ångdrs {egioral interoptrtÞ.ls (orñfiünrcàtim!
5yìrTêrìr (i-å"81Ë$¡ fulthgntf {JP,{I v¡ilt prepar* iln
[mrk*nmÉwal larpa ] ts +ddfri$ Ffiferlddl ffivírnfirnè,nÌfi|

thc p opmfion of tñe
L$ft) dâç üP !0 90
¡¡tp! y in lcr Ång€,bt

{eunty. tn ¡ddinrn, rl¡e tÂ-8lct iFA is solielting i:rElt firø i$ÊnGcr,
orgrnlralioø, rrd $e publÈ on tñe :cûpt ,Trd runl.nt ûf tfrt
ÊlTvlronmfft¡l iÍfunnfitod t0 b€ úÊdûdçé in rhÊ 0R, Tls Notic¡ sf
ftepantion l.llOPl and tnitiaf Sturfy rre *vaÍÀ¡ble f¡rretlev¡ ¡¡
wwrøfr-rin.*rq,

tlatië of Publir kÕFiog iÊeetjry$ Thp tÁ-&1(5 tfA has ¡rïedrdrd Êve
public:topmç ñïeeti*g& Í{ iner*¿se ¿l¡r gehllc! appidunñ} tc prft}cc
lrlp$t l$rt0g tlrÊ ài0Ê rcqsr Þ¡riEd, The publi( Kç¡,rrt rnrxingr wrll ôe
rcfldÞcied ¿t the ftllo*ing {ocrfiæ: fiwr 6:}û p.rr. ta t:J0p,m,:

thursdry, Saptcmhcr T t. ¿O14
Sauth lù¿tt Á{l¡,1S 8uiø¡ng, 80gdn 6ü
iïåé5 {.cpley Ottue,ü¿¡æd B¡r, $ 9?Tô5

iáand*n SlpÉçmbcr 1å 3ê?4
i,{rlrå!t{r {Ìty P;rt- Stenlet¡(le¡rt|rld¡vn! CentEr

4l{ll xtrh** W'Lanr¿ner,(A !}5}4

Tuerdey. Septbrftbr. t6, ZOI¡l
f! t¿mkrc Bcr[{ù¿rte l{igh frhool,,4rÉitonum
S{4ð Vallry (rnìe Ë1!d." Wo¿dland ilrtîs, ft *t]öl

Sfednesdayn Septemb*i I¿ fOT{
Sxk Pulr {qmmrnrty d.çter. Aùd¿tûrãrm

5S l{.ltsrçrn Âye", t¡nPrd¡o"(å 9{fft

Tfturvday, Sapt aÌbËr I8r 2014
Gry of qn!ðod, Ð¿tãNan Ìlall, Êcon I
TIÌJ ! {ßrè,fiiile êvå," t$wood,(,* 9S:61

P*lod of Publk *r*ier*: Tle ruvic* pøiod fø *re NOe hegiø on
Wednrsd¡I Àugaç! t¿ ¿0f 4 ård ffdr on f rrday, S4rrmber 16,1014.

lecd w¡itten rommens tol ÐarcyYaE; Pr@ec fnginaerrat t5i5
ftForålefÊqçÉ,lultr 20û, *þfferey F¡rk, Qliforntð 9Ìt5t. tf Êrtràit
î*fl ry,lår|981a'r{r,ø9 b¡ ISûp"m, on Friday, kprmÞel 16, ?0il.

': l':

.-:,i' r*i,:i:i,

1 ,-' ',ri,,f.t,; iJet:j
, 1';,:.ri:':,ii','.i"rl

26357L7 - Los Angeles Times

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT C



&sÊéÐssles Gtmes
MEDfA CROUP

PROOF OF PUBLICATION
(201s.5 C.C.P.)

STATE OF ILLINOIS
Gounty of Gook

I am a citizen of the United States and a

resident of the County aforesaid; I am
over the age of eighteen years, and not
a party to or interested in the action for
which the attached notice was published.
I am a principal clerk of the Los Angeles Times,
which was adjudged a newspaper of general
circulation on May 21,l-952, Cases 598599 for
the City of Los Angeles, County of los Angeles,
and State of California. Attached to this
Affidavit is a true and complete copy as was
printed and published on the following
date(s):
Aug27,2Ot4

I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury
under the laws of the State of Galifornia that the foregoing is true and correct.

lllinois

435 N. Michigan Ave.

Chicago, lt 60611

Dated at Chicago,

ontnsflday of

2635717 - Los Angeles Times

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT C



figp=Lgsd+E Gtmes
¡\/tEDIA Ctr.OL}P

Sold To:
Katz & Associates lnc - CU00303252
5440 Morehouse Drive, Suite 1000

San Diego ,C492121

BillTo:
Katz & Associates Inc - CU00303252
5440 Morehouse Drive, Suite 1000
San Diego ,CA92121

f'lotlcr of PrÉp¿räË¡or ef ¡ Ð¡aft ãnvlronm¡nlrl
lmpe*t ftsport for tft* L¿nd Mobllc Badl* Syctrm
in 1-os Angrele r úaunty

Pâ¡'ruårr t0 lÉcliqn ;506¡ of tl¡* Ç¿i¡frrni¡ EruirpnmËnt¡l Qsalrry År
lGQÅ3 guídeiìnø, thir i! to n.xrfy tùe (difÐfftu õovemo¡-:l fffice d
Fh,nnr4 a*d fiere;rú, {.1üA 3e¡unlbte ,Ågarrier, ¿rd lfl{Êle3iÉd

ûrrtlff ìhðt lhÊ gùr 

^aqelä 
lagion*i frrfcropeËb!€ to{ïmüñr{åtirirlç

Srrtem ll*^filfSl jcÈrt Pov¡ec r{i:thority IJPA} rsill lfegiàre ¡fi
ån¡i¡srrflpnt¡l ûnpaci flrpø*r 1Ii4) t¡ addlcss pü{$$þl m?iroilment¡l
iür¡åfi,lnr(idtÊd y.ilh th? pruÞorÈd rfir.tr¡¡åtrcn and oÞe¡¡lion af t*.r
Land il4ok¡Íf¡ Redie {LMS} sy$ern, üùsô indudss up Ào gt
tEçftomtau$irdtimr feilittrs $ riìer l¿c¡ted pfunalåy in Los Ânqekr

fcunty" {n addi¡ton, rfre il-qlcs ipA rr so/ìritinç tnpt fro*r rgrnÊ¡sr.
øganiretioa*, aod tl¡t ætd¡c on Êe r<ope a¡d rsnl¡rlt cf tf¡å
çnvirp*mÉfttal infnrmario¡ 1{ bÐ ,rdudd Èn *¡e Bã, Th* lkbre of
Feparxhn {*0f}¿nd lnittal S?udy rrr¡v¡¡hhle fcrrc'v*w ¡t
uiwwJa+le.org,

llwica of ?tàilr Scspíû{ Mrcrlngn: Itp tA-fiKS l?A fi¡r s*èdul¿d fìtr
prùlle *apl*ç mæTlûgf ld lfl(r?ör rlç puÞuCl opgsrr¡riry ro øori{*
hgutdrring the fl0P reir* period Th* çub{k soping meetingr ,lvilib*

¿ørdw¡cd ufi e lû¡lowtnç ixrtms fru* ó:S prrr t08i!ûFrfl ,i

Thur*dry, September tr t, 2Ol ð.
5ouh {o¿st l{t*ô Suilorng" ftoøn 6B

ilEéSfopley 0tlw, ÐÌ¡nord8*r" ä 917ól

Monday" Septemþer tr91 20? 4
{-åficårlsrCity p¡rt - 9bnleg lJeiner Actvitl funEx
43QlI lÐrt5f" tl¿.¡¿nñtîr"{A ?}:l{

furrdan SrpfembÊf 16, 201¡f
Ð {ð$¡ho F*al çÞ¡rttr Hfgh tcÞeci, Arditcrl*n
54.t0 llalteyCi'rdr 8lvd" itûoedl¡nd Hrlls. Ê491367

llllrdn**dr¡ 5*Btqmbcr l¿ 20:4
FsrN s¿¡l (cmm**¡1y &ñt€r, AüdÍtur¡rfli
36tI l{" '*S'*nern *t¡., 5¿n Fdro; C,{ 9{FJl

Tburrday, 9cptrmbrr tt, lOI*
{iry cl lyr*,.ood, Satem¿n tl¿ll" ,bm t
1t111 frnr*mri'ir, lynwuod, {Â l{)62

Peried ¿f Puhin fi¡rir'r The reviea'pe*iod fôr tle fi0P beqim on
ÌÇdnøday, $ugurt 21, ltÌÌ { ¿nd snd¡ a¡ f rfra¡, leplmher ló,1Sì d

Sbçd¡*lltten rommrnÎrroì ô¿¿nE Yang Pmj<t tn$neer, at1525
dorpontefiace, fuhe åflt finntuey Park.(¡ltf¡rnb Ç1754, ç¡ z-¡¡¿t|
fiâtr|Ì.yangg,lí-tts.or4 by 5d0 p."nt. on ÊridåÍ, sÉptårftbrr ¿q t014.

2651381 - Los Angeles Times

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT C



EqË Aegelss flltrnes
futEDIA GROUP

PROOF OF PUBLICATION
(20r5.5 c.c.P.)

STATE OF ILLINOIS
County of Cook

I am a citizen of the United States and a

resident of the County aforesaid; I am
over the age of eighteen years, and not
a party to or interested in the action for
which the attached notice was published.
I am a principal clerk of the Los Angeles Times,
which was adjudged a newspaper of general
circufation on May 21, L952, Cases 598599 for
the City of Los Angeles, County of Los Angeles,
and State of California. Attached to this
Affidavit is a true and complete copy as was
printed and published on the following
date(s):

Sep 03, 2014

I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury
under the laws of the State of Galifornia that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated at Chicago, illinoiç
on this 3 ¿"vot )C01- , 20 lLl .

435 N. Michigan Ave.

Chicago, lt 60611

2651381 - Los Angeles Times

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT C



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System

© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

Proposed Land Mobile Radio System Project
Environmental Scoping Meetings

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
Presentation Overview

• Introductions
• LA‐RICS overview
• Proposed Land Mobile Radio (LMR) system
• California Environmental Quality Act process
• How to provide scoping comments

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

Purpose
The proposed Land Mobile Radio (LMR) 
system will provide interoperable 
communications and shared data for 
multi‐jurisdictional responses to events, 
emergencies, and natural disasters

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
LMR Overview

Photo by Mike Meadows

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

What is a Land Mobile Radio system?

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
LMR Overview

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

• Interoperable, mission‐critical communications and 
data network for first responders
‐ Major finding 9/11 commission report

• Support 34,000 first responders and 17,000 secondary 
responders protecting 10 million residents across 
4,000 square miles
‐ Places first responders at the core of our mission 

• LA‐RICS Joint Powers Authority represents 86 
jurisdictions and 81 separate agencies

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
LMR Highlights

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

• Will improve operational efficiency of first and secondary 
responders

- Save lives, reduce property damage and minimize economic and 
social disruptions

• Will establish viable plan for mandatory radio frequency 
migration 

• Dedicated only to public safety agencies

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
LMR: The Need

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

Four Subsystems:
• Digital Trunked Voice Radio System:  Provides radio 

communications utilizing digital technology 
– Two bands (700 MHz and UHF)

• Analog Conventional Voice Radio System: Provides 
conventional analog 

• Los Angeles Regional Tactical Communications System: 
Allows outside agencies responding to events in Los Angeles 
County to have designated channels 

• Narrowband Mobile Data Network: A data system that 
provides critical dispatch communications 

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
LMR System

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

• 120 sites considered
– Up to 90 included in 
proposed system design

– Remaining 30 intended as 
potential alternate locations

• Locations widely dispersed 
across greater Los Angeles 
region

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
LMR System

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
LMR System

• Land Mobile Radio sites can include:
– Antenna support structures – new and existing

• Lattice towers, 90 to 200 feet tall
• Monopoles, 20 to 180 feet tall
• Building mounts (roof, facade)

– Equipment shelters
– Emergency generators

• The construction and/or operation of these facilities 
may cause environmental impacts

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

• The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
provides for development of an Environmental Impact 
Report (EIR) 
– EIR informs the public and decision makers about potential 
environmental impacts

– EIR helps identify ways to avoid or reduce potential impacts
– EIR provides the highest level of analysis under CEQA

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
Environmental Review Process

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

• Notice of Preparation (NOP), Initial Study, and 
Environmental Scoping Process
– Early Fall 2014

• Public Review Period for Draft EIR
– Winter 2014/15

• Response to Draft EIR Comments and Final EIR 
Certification
– Spring 2015

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
Steps in the EIR Process

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

• Aesthetics

• Air Quality

• Biological Resources

• Cultural Resources

• Geology/Soils

• Greenhouse Gas Emissions

• Hazards and Hazardous 
Materials

• Hydrology, Groundwater and 
Water Quality

• Land Use/Planning

• Noise

• Recreation

• Transportation/Traffic

• Utilities/Service Systems

12

Environmental topics to be addressed in the Draft EIR:

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
Topics for Draft EIR

Please refer to the Initial Study for more information

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.
13

www.LA‐RICS.org

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
Where to Find Documents

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

• During the environmental scoping period, comments 
from the public and government agencies are being 
solicited: 

- What environmental effects should be addressed in the 
Draft EIR? 

- Do you have ideas for project alternatives or mitigation 
measures? 

• Comments received during the scoping period will 
be used to help develop the Draft EIR. 

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
Purpose

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
Scoping Meeting Schedule

Diamond Bar | Thursday, September 11, 2014

Lancaster | Monday, September 15, 2014

Woodland Hills | Tuesday, September 16, 2014

San Pedro | Wednesday, September 17, 2014

Lynwood | Thursday, September 18, 2014

*All meetings are scheduled for 6:30 – 8:30 pm. 
See the Notice of Preparation for address information. 

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



© Copyright 2014, LA‐RICS Authority.  All Rights Reserved.

• Complete written comment form 
- Turn in this evening or mail in later

• Mail or email comments
– Nancy Yang, Project Engineer

Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System
2525 Corporate Place, Suite 200
Monterey Park, California 91754
E‐mail: nancy.yang@la‐rics.org

Deadline to submit comments: 
Friday, September 26, 2014 at 5:00 pm

LMR EIR -- Environmental Scoping Meetings
How to Provide Comments

AGENDA ITEM 5 - ATTACHMENT D



6Ð
Aâ

LOS ANGELES REGIONAL INTEROPERABLE
COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM AUTHORITY

2525 Corporate Place, Suite 200
Monterey Park, California 91754

(323) 881-8291LA.RICS

PATRICK J. MALLON
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

October 2,2014

Board of Directors
Los Angeles Regional lnteroperable Communications System ("LA-RlCS") Authority
(the "Authority")

Dear Directors:

APPROVE SITE ACCESS AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF COMPTON

SUBJECT

Board approval is requested to delegate authority to the Executive Director to finalize and
execute one or more Site Access Agreement with the City of Compton.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

It is recommended that your Board:

1. Find that the approval and execution of the Site Access Agreements by the LA-RICS
Authority does not result in any change to the PSBN project, or to the circumstances
under which the project is being undertaken, and that the determination that these
activities are exempt from review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEOA)
pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21080.25, the statutory exemption adopted
specifically for the LA-RICS project, remains unchanged.

2. Authorize the Executive Director to finalize and execute, substantially similar in form,
one or more Site Access Agreements with the City of Compton. This Site Access
Agreement is for the Long Term Evolution (LTE) broadband communication sites within
its respective jurisdictions or under its control.

BACKGROUND

At the May 16,2013 Board meeting, your Board directed staff to begin negotiations with various
jurisdictions for Site Access Agreements ("SAAs") for licensing the use of specific sites to the
Authority for its use as a Land Mobile Radio ("LMR") and/or Long Term Evolution ("LTE")
broadband communication site. With respect to LTE, discussions and negotiations with the City
of Compton have resulted in the attached Site Access Agreement, Attachment A.

AGENDA ITEM 6



LA-RICS Board of Directors
Meeting of October 2,2014
Page 2

By entering into the Site Access Agreement with the City of Compton, the City will provide the
Authority with a license to use a poftion of their owned or leased property for use as a Long
Term Evolution (LTE) broadband communications site(s). A list of the sites is attached as
Attachment B. The licensed site(s) would include all necessary space and easements for
access and utilities to construct, install, operate, maintain and repair an unmanned LTE
communications facility. A brief summary of relevant provisions follow below:

City of Compton

Number of Sites 2

Term ln Effect Until
Terminated

Lease Cost* Gratis

Zoning
Requirements

Expedited
process

Ministerial
Permitting Costs Waived

however. oav for anv iwill, however, pay for any incrementalt-t '-'-"t

cost in utilities at these sites resulting from its operations.

By granting approval for the execution of the SAAs with the City of Compton, it will assist in
keeping the LTE project schedule on track, and make the goal of interoperable communications
in Los Angeles County a reality.

PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION

The purpose of the recommended action is to provide the Executive Director authorization to
execute the attached Site Access Agreement, with the City of Compton, for the implementation
of the LA-RICS LTE installations.



LA-RICS Board of Directors
Meeting of October 2,2014
Page 3

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCI NG

There is no fiscal impact.

ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION

On March 6,2014, the Board determined that design, construction, implementation, operation,
and maintenance of the PSBN project (also known as the Long Term Evolution (LTE) Project)
collectively and individually at the 229 sites where PBSN infrastructure will be constructed,
installed, operated and maintained, including those sites identified on Attachment D, are exempt
from review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEOA) pursuant to Public
Resources Code Section 21Q80.25, the statutory exemption adopted specifically for the LA-
RICS project. Approval of the Site Acquisition Agreements does not result in any change to the
PSBN project, or to the circumstances under which the project is being undertaken, and the
determination that these activities are exempt from CEQA remains unchanged. As the CEQA
Lead Agency, the LA-RICS Authority has determined that all of the LTE sites, including those
covered by the attached Site Access Agreements, meet the statutory exemption. This
determination is supported by substantial evidence in the custody of the Authority, which is
incorporated in relevant part into the record of proceedings for these Site Access Agreements.

Upon the your approval of the recommended actions, a Notice of Exemption for the Site Access
Agreements will be filed with the Registrar Recorder/County Clerk pursuant to Section 15062 of
the State CEQA Guidelines.

FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENT

The Authority's counsel has reviewed the recommended action.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

PJM:wst

c: Counsel to the Authority



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

 

LONG TERM EVOLUTION (“LTE”) BROADBAND COMMUNICATIONS 
SITE LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 

THIS LTE SITE ACCESS AGREEMENT ("Agreement"), is made and entered 
into in duplicate original this _____ day of ______________, 2014, 

BY AND BETWEEN [CITY OF COMPTON], a municipal 
corporation, hereinafter referred to as 
"Owner" 

AND THE LOS ANGELES REGIONAL 
INTEROPERABLE COMMUNICATIONS 
SYSTEM AUTHORITY, a Joint Powers 
Authority, hereinafter referred to as "LA-
RICS Authority." 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, Owner is a member of the LA-RICS Authority, which was 
established pursuant to a Joint Powers Agreement dated January 2009 ("JPA") for the 
purpose of coordinating governmental services to establish a wide-area interoperable 
public safety communications network commonly known as LA-RICS; 

WHEREAS, Owner owns certain real property described on Exhibit A (Site List) 
hereto ("Real Property"); and 

WHEREAS, Owner desires to permit use of a portion of the Real Property by the 
LA-RICS Authority for use as a Long Term Evolution broadband ("Broadband" or "LTE") 
communication site; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto acknowledge that: (a) LA-RICS AUTHORITY  has 
retained Motorola ("LMR Vendor") to design, construct, and perform services with 
respect to a regional interoperable LMR telecommunications system as a part of the LA-
RICS; (b) the LA-RICS Authority has retained Motorola ("LTE Vendor") to design and 
construct a regional interoperable Broadband telecommunications system as a part of 
the LA-RICS; (c) the federal First Responder Network Authority may, or may not retain 
one or more vendors (collectively, the "First Net Parties"), to design and construct a 
national interoperable Broadband telecommunications system of which the LA-RICS 
may be a part; and (d) any of the LA-RICS Authority member agencies may assume the 
LA-RICS Authority's rights and obligations under this Agreement and/or may perform 
services with respect to this LA-RICS; and 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

WHEREAS, LA-RICS AUTHORITY is willing to accept and exercise the rights 
granted by this Agreement for use of a LTE site located on the Real Property in 
accordance with the terms and conditions prescribed herein.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, which are hereby 
deemed a contractual part hereof, and the mutual promises, covenants, and conditions 
set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. LTE SITE; LICENSE 

1.01 Owner hereby licenses to the LA-RICS AUTHORITY and LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY hereby accepts from Owner on the terms and conditions set forth herein, 
the use of land within a portion of the Real Property, together with all necessary space 
and easements for access and utilities to install and operate an unmanned LTE 
communication facility, consisting of the parcels of land shown on Exhibit A (Site List) 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (collectively, the "LTE Site" 
and each, individually, a "LTE Site"). 

1.02 The LA-RICS AUTHORITY acknowledges its personal inspection of the 
LTE Site and the surrounding area and evaluation of the extent to which the physical 
condition thereof will affect its operations.  The LA-RICS AUTHORITY accepts the 
LTE Site in its as-is condition with no duty to investigate, and Owner makes no 
warranty, express or implied, as to the suitability of the LTE Site or the Real Property 
for the LA-RICS AUTHORITY's use; its physical condition, including the condition and 
stability of the soils or groundwater on or under any of the Real Property; and the 
presence of pollutants or contaminants therein.   

1.03 LA-RICS AUTHORITY, the LTE Vendor, and/or the First Net Parties may 
make or construct or cause to be made or constructed additions, alterations, repairs, 
replacements or other changes to the LTE Site at the LA-RICS AUTHORITY's 
expense in accordance with all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

1.04 LA-RICS AUTHORITY hereby acknowledges the title or other legal right of 
possession of the Owner or its successors in the Real Property and covenants and 
agrees never to assail, contest, or resist said title.   

1.05 Ownership of all improvements constructed by the LA-RICS AUTHORITY 
upon each and every site comprising the LTE Site and all alterations, additions or 
betterments thereto shall remain with the LA-RICS AUTHORITY or other agencies as 
may be provided by any applicable LA-RICS grant requirements.  The LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY may remove any of its own improvements to the Real Property at any 
time during the term of the Agreement, and Owner hereby waives any and all lien 
rights it may have in relation thereto, statutory or otherwise.  



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

2. PURPOSE AND USE 

2.01 The sole purpose of this Agreement is to allow the LA-RICS AUTHORITY 
to use a parcel of the land on the Real Property for the installation, operation, 
maintenance, and repair of a Broadband communication facility.  The LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY (and/or its member agencies, the LTE Vendor, the First Net Parties 
and/or other agents): (a) shall have the right to construct, install, repair, remove, 
replace, maintain, and operate the LA-RICS AUTHORITY's LTE communications 
system, which typically consists of, without limitation, the infrastructure, shelters, 
equipment and related improvements listed on Exhibit B (Equipment List) attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (such LTE system and associated 
infrastructure, shelters, equipment and related improvements, collectively, the "LA-
RICS Facility") and other related materials as may be deemed necessary by the LA-
RICS AUTHORITY, and (b) shall be allowed access over, through and across each 
site comprising the Real Property for ingress to and egress from the applicable LTE 
Site 24 hours per day, 7 days per week without notice.  Each LTE Site shall be used 
only for the purposes authorized by this Section 2.01, and such other purposes as are 
directly related thereto, and for no other purposes whatsoever (collectively the 
"Permitted Activities").   

 It is understood and agreed that LA-RICS AUTHORITY, by the acceptance of 
this Agreement and the grant of rights herein, and by LA-RICS AUTHORITY’s use and 
occupancy of the LTE Site for the sole purpose set forth above and no other, has not 
acquired and will not acquire at any time in the future any property rights or interest in 
or to the LTE Site, the Real Property or any other part thereof, including in buildings 
and other structures, and LA-RICS AUTHORITY does not nor will it ever obtain any 
right or claim to the continued use of the LTE Site or any other part of the Real 
Property beyond those specifically given in and by this Agreement. 

2.02 The LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall ensure that all usage of the LTE Site 
and/or the Real Property hereunder, including without limitation usage by the LTE 
Vendor, is in compliance with all terms and conditions of this Agreement.   

2.03 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed in any 
way to limit the Owner's authority to exercise any right or power concerning the 
utilization of the Real Property including without limitation the LTE Site; provided, 
however, that such Owner authority shall not include the exercise of any right or power 
that would interfere with the LA-RICS Facility. 

3. APPROVALS/DESIGN REVIEW 

The LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall furnish and submit to Owner copies of project 
plans and specifications (along with any other information reasonably requested by 
Owner) for the LTE Site at the 50%, 75%, and 100% stages of design development, for 
Owner's review and input.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY agrees to discuss with Owner the 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

Owner's concerns, if any, regarding the proposed plans and to work in good faith to 
address such concerns prior to implementation of said plans. 

Upon the LA-RICS AUTHORITY's approval of the final site plan for the LTE Site, 
such final site plan will be deemed incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit C (Site 
Plan).  Owner and the LA-RICS AUTHORITY acknowledge that the LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY is a California joint powers authority whose members have specified, 
pursuant to Section 4.04 of its Joint Powers Agreement and Section 6509 of the 
California Government Code, that all common powers exercised by the LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY's Board of Directors shall be exercised in a manner consistent with, and 
subject to all the restrictions and limitations upon the exercise of such powers, as are 
applicable to the County of Los Angeles ("County") (i.e., the LA-RICS AUTHORITY has 
adopted the County's operating mode).  Accordingly, Owner and the LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY agree that the LA-RICS AUTHORITY (i) will comply with the Owner's City 
Building Code requirements and (ii) will seek only those governmental approvals that 
would normally apply to the County, other than with respect to ministerial permits as 
described below.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties agree that their 
cooperation in addressing any concerns raised by the Owner is essential to the success 
of the LA-RICS project and that accordingly all such concerns will be taken into 
consideration throughout the LTE Site plan approval process, as described in this 
Section 3 (Approvals/Design Review and in Section 8 (Alterations). 

Should ministerial permits be required, Owner shall expeditiously process such 
permits within its jurisdiction.  To the extent there may be costs associated with Owner's 
review, such costs will be waived for LA-RICS AUTHORITY.  The LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY may perform and obtain, at the LA-RICS AUTHORITY's sole cost and 
expense, soil borings, percolation tests, engineering reports, environmental 
investigations or other tests or reports on, over, and under each LTE Site to the extent 
necessary to proceed with design, construction, or for compliance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act and/or the National Environmental Policy Act, and/or to 
determine if the LA-RICS AUTHORITY's use of the LTE Site will be compatible with the 
LA-RICS AUTHORITY's engineering specifications and design and operational 
requirements.  Owner shall work cooperatively and expeditiously with the LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY to complete review of any project plans and specifications, so as not to 
delay the design and construction of the LA-RICS Facility. 

4. TERM 

The initial term ("Initial Term") of the Agreement shall commence upon full 
execution of this Agreement ("Commencement Date") and shall terminate upon written 
notice of termination (a) by LA-RICS AUTHORITY or (b) by Owner pursuant to Section 
28 (Default) hereof.   



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

5. CONSIDERATION 

The consideration for the use granted herein shall be LA-RICS AUTHORITY's 
compliance with all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.   

6. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO INSTALLATION OR ALTERATIONS OF 
EQUIPMENT 

Owner shall have the opportunity to review and provide input, if any, as to all 
project plans and specifications for the LA-RICS AUTHORITY's proposed alterations of 
the equipment comprising the LA-RICS Facility (not including "like-kind" replacements) 
after LA-RICS AUTHORITY's initial installation of the LA-RICS Facility on the LTE Site.  
In addition, Owner shall have the right to inspect said equipment and the LTE Site at 
any time during and after installation upon not less than 24 hours prior written notice to 
the LA-RICS AUTHORITY (except in cases of emergency pursuant to Section 14 hereof 
(Emergency Access) and, at LA-RICS AUTHORITY's option, with the right to require an 
LA-RICS AUTHORITY representative to accompany Owner during any such inspection 
of or access to a LTE Site.  The LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall not commence installation 
of equipment or alteration of a LTE Site, or any portion thereof, until the Owner has 
reviewed the plans and specifications.  Owner's review of the plans shall not release the 
LA-RICS AUTHORITY from the responsibility for, or the correction of, any errors, 
omissions or other mistakes that may be contained in the plans and specifications.  The 
LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall be responsible for notifying Owner and all other relevant 
parties immediately upon discovery of such omissions and/or errors.  The LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY shall not cause or permit any change of any equipment installed by the 
LA-RICS AUTHORITY on a LTE Site including power outputs or changes in the use of 
frequencies described in Exhibit B hereto (Equipment List), but not including "like-kind" 
replacements, except after Owner has been provided an opportunity to review and 
provide input, if any, into such plans and specifications. 

Prior to the commencement of construction or installation of equipment or 
alteration of the LTE Site, and at all times thereafter, LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall (a) 
procure, maintain and comply with all permits, licenses, variances, authorizations and 
approvals required under applicable laws, rules and regulations of the jurisdiction in 
which the Site is located and any other governmental and quasi-governmental 
authorities having appropriate jurisdiction; ; and, (c) upon request, provide to the Owner 
copies of all permits, licenses, variances, authorizations and approvals obtained 
pursuant to this section and all insurance required hereunder.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY 
shall, upon 24 hours prior notice, permit the Owner, its employees, agents or 
contractors to inspect the LTE Site while in the course of construction or installation to 
conduct any inspection, testing and approval of work.  No construction materials or 
debris shall be stored in or on the Real Property without the prior written consent of the 
Owner.  Upon completion of any construction or installation work, LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY shall entirely remove all material and debris related to such construction or 
installation from the Real Property. 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

7. INSTALLATION 

7.01 LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall install the LA-RICS Facility at its own 
expense and risk as approved by Owner in accordance with the terms hereof, and 
such installation shall not cause radio frequency interference with equipment, 
transmission or reception (operated currently or in the future) by the Owner.  LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY and/or its agent shall install interference protection devices such as 
isolators, cavities, circulators, or combiners as required or recommended by accepted 
industry practices.  Each component of the LA-RICS Facility shall be clearly identified 
with LA-RICS AUTHORITY's and, as applicable, member agency, LTE Vendor, and/or 
First Net Party's name, address, telephone number, Federal Communications 
Commission ("FCC") Agreement and frequencies in use.  Such identification shall be 
attached to each component of the LA-RICS Facility in plain view.   

7.02 LA-RICS AUTHORITY agrees that Owner may grant the use of any 
unused portion of the Real Property to any third party for the purpose of installing 
communications transmitting equipment, so long as such uses do not conflict or 
interfere with LA-RICS AUTHORITY's operations as provided for pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Any third party granted rights by the Owner shall be required to comply 
with all applicable noninterference rules of the FCC.     

7.03 Owner reserves the right, at its expense, to install on the Real Property, 
including without limitation within the LTE Site, its own communications shelter, 
telecommunication equipment, and appropriate tower space for telecommunications 
and/or microwave (collectively, the "Owner Facilities") so long as the installation of 
said Owner Facilities does not interfere with LA-RICS AUTHORITY's operations.  LA-
RICS AUTHORITY and Owner agree to make commercially reasonable efforts to 
resolve any radio frequency interference issues with equipment, transmission or 
reception caused by the installation of the Owner Facilities. 

7.04 LA-RICS AUTHORITY accepts the LTE Site in an "as is" condition as of 
the date of full execution of this Agreement.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall have the 
right to finance and construct approved equipment and related improvements on the 
LTE Site at LA-RICS AUTHORITY' sole cost and expense, except as may be provided 
otherwise by other agreements.  Following the construction and installation of LA-
RICS AUTHORITY's infrastructure, shelter, equipment, and related improvements, 
LA-RICS AUTHORITY may thereafter, at its sole cost and expense, perform 
construction, maintenance, repairs, additions to, and replacements of its equipment as 
necessary and appropriate for its ongoing business and has the right to do all work 
necessary to prepare, modify and maintain the LTE Site to accommodate LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY's infrastructure, shelter, equipment, and related improvements and as 
required for LA-RICS AUTHORITY's operations of the LA-RICS Facility at the LTE 
Site, including any structural upgrades required to accommodate LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY's infrastructure, shelter, equipment, and related improvements on the 
LTE Site.  Except in cases of emergency, LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall provide Owner 
with at least 24-hour advance notification of its plans to enter upon the Owner’s Real 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

Property to perform construction, maintenance, repairs, additions to, and 
replacements of its equipment, including any structural upgrades required to 
accommodate LA-RICS AUTHORITY's infrastructure, shelter, equipment, and related 
improvements on the LTE Site. 

7.05 Upon completion of the installation of the equipment comprising the LA-
RICS Facility at the LTE Site, LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall provide Owner with as-built 
drawings of the LA-RICS Facility ("As-Builts").  Such As-Builts shall include the 
location of any of LA-RICS AUTHORITY shelters, cabinets, grounding rings, cables, 
and utility lines associated with LA-RICS AUTHORITY use of the LTE Site in CAD and 
PDF formats.  Upon receipt of the As-Builts by Owner, the As-Builts shall be deemed 
incorporated herein by reference as updates to Exhibit C (Site Plan).  In the event that 
LA-RICS AUTHORITY fails to deliver the As-Builts as required by this section within 
ten business days of receipt of written notice, Owner may cause such As-Builts to be 
prepared on behalf of LA-RICS AUTHORITY and Owner shall assess a fee for such 
As-Builts, the cost of which shall become immediately due and payable to Owner upon 
invoice accompanied by supporting documentation of such fee.  Owner shall be 
responsible for completion of and costs associated with As-Builts resulting from any 
modifications required by Owner. 

8. ALTERATIONS 

LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall make no renovations, alterations or improvements to 
the LTE Site or the Real Property other than to install, maintain, replace and operate the 
LA-RICS Facility in accordance with the documentation attached hereto as Exhibits A 
(Site List), B (Equipment List), and C (Site Plan) and/or as permitted elsewhere herein, 
without providing prior written notice to Owner, provided that such renovations, 
alterations, or improvements shall be consistent with the authorized use set forth in 
Section 2.0 2.02 hereof.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, it is understood and 
agreed that LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall have the right to: (a) make repairs and 
replacements of "like-kind" infrastructure, shelters, equipment, and/or related 
improvements without providing notice to the Owner, and (b) perform any alterations or 
modifications that may be required pursuant to the Spectrum Manager Lease 
Agreement between LA-RICS AUTHORITY and the First Net Parties dated July 1, 2013 
(the "Spectrum Lease Agreement") or that may be required as a result of FCC rules or 
regulations, after providing notice to the Owner.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY agrees to 
submit to the Owner, for review, all plans and specifications, working drawings, and 
other information reasonably required by the Owner covering proposed alterations by 
LA-RICS AUTHORITY.  All work to be done by LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall be 
performed in accordance with the plans provided to Owner and shall, where required, 
be subject to inspection by Owner's City Building Inspector. 

9. MAINTENANCE 

Owner shall be responsible for maintenance of the Real Property, including the 
LTE Site, and such maintenance responsibility shall include general upkeep, 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

landscaping, lawn-mowing, and related maintenance activities.  The LTE Site shall be 
kept neat and clean by LA-RICS AUTHORITY and ready for normal use by Owner and 
other users.  Should LA-RICS AUTHORITY fail to accomplish this, following 30 days 
written notice from Owner, Owner may perform the work and LA-RICS AUTHORITY 
shall pay the cost thereof upon written demand by Owner. 

LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall be responsible for the timely repair of all damage to 
the LTE Site or the Real Property caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of LA-
RICS AUTHORITY, its employees, agents or business vendors, including without 
limitation the LTE Vendor.  Should LA-RICS AUTHORITY fail to promptly make such 
repairs after 30 days written notice from Owner, Owner may have repairs made and LA-
RICS AUTHORITY shall pay the cost thereof upon written demand by Owner. 

10. CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS 

Installation and maintenance of LA-RICS AUTHORITY's equipment including 
without limitation the LA-RICS Facility shall be performed in a neat and workmanlike 
manner and shall at all times comply in all respects to the statutes, laws, ordinances 
and regulations of any governmental authority having jurisdiction which are applicable to 
the installation, construction, operation and maintenance of LA-RICS AUTHORITY's 
equipment, including but not limited to the Owner's City Building Code. 

LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall pay, or cause to be paid, all costs for work to be 
done by it, on the LTE Site, and for all materials furnished for or in connection with such 
work.  If any lien is filed against the Real Property and/or LTE Site, LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY shall cause the lien to be discharged or recorded within 10 days after LA-
RICS AUTHORITY receives written notice that such a lien has been filed.  LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY shall indemnify, defend and hold the Owner harmless from any and all 
liability, loss, damage, costs, attorneys’ fees and all other expenses on account of 
claims of liens or laborers or material men or others for work performed or materials or 
supplies furnished for LA-RICS AUTHORITY or persons claiming under LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY. 

LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall remove any debris to the extent resulting from 
maintenance, operation and construction on the LTE Site by LA-RICS AUTHORITY, its 
agents or contractors (including without limitation the LTE Vendor).  In the event that 
LA-RICS AUTHORITY fails to remove such debris from the LTE Site, Owner shall 
provide written notice to LA-RICS AUTHORITY and allow LA-RICS AUTHORITY ten 
business days after receipt of notice to remove such debris.  After the expiration of such 
ten-business day period, Owner shall cause such debris to be removed and invoice LA-
RICS AUTHORITY for the reasonable costs of said removal. 

11. OTHER OPERATIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

11.01 As applicable, LA-RICS AUTHORITY or its LTE Vendor or the First Net 
Parties shall: 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

(a) Comply with and abide by all applicable rules, regulations and 
directions of Owner.   

(b) At all times hold a valid FCC Agreement for the Permitted Activities 
and comply with all applicable City and County ordinances and all State and Federal 
laws, and, in the course thereof, obtain and keep in effect all required permits and 
Agreements required to engage in the Permitted Activities on the LTE Site. 

(c) Conduct the Permitted Activities in a courteous and non-profane 
manner, operate without interfering with the use of the Real Property by Owner or the 
public, except as herein permitted, and remove any agent, invitee or employee who fails 
to conduct Permitted Activities in the manner heretofore described. 

(d) Assume the risk of loss, damage or destruction to the LA-RICS 
Facility and any and all fixtures and personal property belonging to LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY that are installed or placed within the LTE Site, unless such loss, damage 
or destruction was caused by the negligent or willful act or omission of the Owner, its 
agents, employees or contractors. 

12. RELOCATION 

12.01 Owner shall have the right to request relocation of the LA-RICS Facility or 
any portion thereof on no more than one occasion during the term hereof to another 
location on the Real Property ("Alternate Site"), provided: 

(a) the Alternate Site: (i) is substantially similar to LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY's current LTE Site in size, (ii) is compatible with LA-RICS AUTHORITY's 
use pursuant to Section 2 hereof, and (iii) does not interfere with any portion of the LA-
RICS Facility or the LA-RICS system or equipment; 

(b) Except when relocation is necessitated through no act, fault or 
request of the Owner (e.g. acts of God, war, fire, earthquake, flood, calamity, terrorism, 
riot, etc.), Owner shall pay all costs incurred by LA-RICS AUTHORITY for relocation of 
LA-RICS AUTHORITY's equipment from the LTE Site to the Alternate Site and any 
improvement of the Alternate Site to make it substantially similar to the LTE Site, 
including all costs incurred to obtain all of the certificates, permits, and other approvals 
that may be required by any agency having jurisdiction, including costs required to 
comply with CEQA and the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), as applicable, 
prior to any activity at an Alternate Site that would constitute a “project” as that term is 
defined in Title 14, Section 15378 of the California Code of Regulations, as well as any 
soil boring tests needed to permit LA-RICS AUTHORITY's use of the Alternate Site; 

(c) Owner shall give LA-RICS AUTHORITY at least six (6) months 
written notice before requiring relocation; and 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

(d) LA-RICS AUTHORITY's use pursuant hereto will not be interrupted 
and LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall be allowed, if necessary, to place temporary 
equipment on the Real Property during the relocation. 

 12.02 LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall have the right to request relocation of the LA-
RICS Facility or any portion thereof to an Alternate Site on the Real Property pursuant 
to LA-RICS AUTHORITY's obligations under the Spectrum Lease Agreement, provided 
that: 

(a) the Alternate Site: (i) is substantially similar to LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY's current LTE Site in size, (ii) is compatible with LA-RICS AUTHORITY's 
use pursuant to Section 2 hereof, and (iii) does not interfere with any portion of the LA-
RICS Facility or the LA-RICS system or equipment; 

(b) LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall pay all costs relating to relocation of 
LA-RICS AUTHORITY's equipment from the LTE Site to the Alternate Site and any 
improvement of the Alternate Site to make it substantially similar to the LTE Site, 
including all costs incurred to obtain all of the certificates, permits, and other approvals 
that may be required by any agency having jurisdiction, including costs required to 
comply with CEQA and the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), as applicable, 
prior to any activity at an Alternate Site that would constitute a “project” as that term is 
defined in Title 14, Section 15378 of the California Code of Regulations, as well as any 
soil boring tests needed to permit LA-RICS AUTHORITY's use of the Alternate Site; 

(c) LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall give Owner at least six (6) months 
written notice of the requested relocation; 

(d) LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall, at its sole cost and expense restore 
the initial Site in as good order and condition as when first occupied by LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY, reasonable wear and tear excepted.  If LA-RICS AUTHORITY fails to 
restore the initial Site as required herein, the Owner may, at its option, upon giving of 30 
days prior written notice, restore the initial LTE Site, and LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall 
reimburse the Owner for all reasonable cost and expense incurred in the restoration 
within 30 days after receipt of an invoice for such cost and expense. 

13. ACCESS TO LTE SITE 

13.01 Owner hereby grants to the LA-RICS AUTHORITY, its member 
agencies, the LTE Vendor, the First Net Parties, and other agents a nonexclusive right 
to use, at its sole risk, during the term of this Agreement, the access which serves the 
LTE Site ("Access").  The LA-RICS AUTHORITY, on behalf of itself and its member 
agencies, the LTE Vendor, and the First Net Parties, acknowledge and accept the 
present condition of the Access on an "as is" basis.    The LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall 
provide Owner with notice of all of its representatives or agents who are authorized to 
access the LTE Site pursuant to this Section.    



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

13.02 LA-RICS AUTHORITY acknowledges and agrees that occasions may 
arise requiring the LA-RICS AUTHORITY to share in the cost of cleaning up of mud-
slide debris and repairing the Access to its original accessible condition after a storm 
or heavy rainfall.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY hereby agrees to pay its reasonable 
proportionate share of such clean-up repair costs within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
an invoice from Owner, and acknowledges and agrees that the details of any such 
clean-up or repair and associated cost may be disclosed to LA-RICS AUTHORITY by 
Owner upon at least thirty (30) days notice.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the LA-
RICS AUTHORITY's financial burden pursuant to this Section shall not exceed five 
thousand dollars ($5,000) per incident.   

14. EMERGENCY ACCESS BY OWNER 

The Owner and its authorized agents may access the LTE Site at any time for 
the purpose of inspection and/or for making emergency improvements or repairs to the 
LTE Site or to interrupt or terminate LA-RICS AUTHORITY's transmission(s) from the 
LTE Site should LA-RICS AUTHORITY be unable or unwilling to respond to Owner's 
request to take immediate action to correct any deficiency which threatens Owner's 
operation on the LTE Site, provided that Owner shall endeavor to provide a 24-hour 
prior notice to LA-RICS AUTHORITY and shall access the LTE Site in the presence, if 
possible, of an LA-RICS AUTHORITY representative, if provided by LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Owner shall not be required to provide 
notice to LA-RICS AUTHORITY prior to entering the LTE Site due to an emergency; 
provided, however, that under no circumstance shall the Owner access LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY's equipment cabinets.  Owner shall use its best efforts to minimize any 
inconvenience or disturbance to LA-RICS AUTHORITY when entering the LTE Site.  
LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall reimburse Owner within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
Owner's written request for Owner's actual costs to correct any deficiency that is 
corrected by Owner pursuant to this Section. 

15. RADIO FREQUENCY EMISSIONS/INTERFERENCE 

15.01 No Interference.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall not use the LTE Site in 
any way which causes radio frequency ("RF") interference in excess of levels 
permitted by the FCC or otherwise interferes with the use of the Property by Owner or 
Owner's agents, invitees or other licensees or users who may occupy portions of the 
Real Property at the time this Agreement is entered into.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall 
be responsible for electromagnetic compatibility of LA-RICS AUTHORITY's equipment 
with existing and future equipment at the Real Property.     

15.02 Interference With Public Safety Systems.  In the event of any 
interference with Owner's Police or Fire Department, CWIRS, Paramedic or LAnet 
systems, or any future public safety-related systems, which is caused by LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY's equipment or operations, LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall be immediately 
notified by Owner of such interference.  Following such notification, the parties will 
cooperatively discuss and reach agreement on how such interference will be resolved. 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

15.03 Interference With Non-Public Safety Systems.  In the event LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY's operations or equipment causes interference with non-public safety-
related systems of Owner or any other duly authorized occupant of the Real Property, 
written notice of such interference shall be provided to LA-RICS AUTHORITY.  Owner 
agrees that Owner and/or any other occupants of the Real Property who currently 
have or in the future take possession of the Real Property will be permitted to install 
only such radio equipment that is of the type and frequency which will not cause 
measurable interference with the existing equipment of LA-RICS AUTHORITY. 

15.04 Interference During Emergency.  If any measurable interference 
caused by LA-RICS AUTHORITY's equipment with Owner's electronic equipment 
during an emergency incident occurs, the LA-RICS AUTHORITY will immediately 
cease operation, transmission or further use of LA-RICS AUTHORITY's equipment 
until such time as the emergency incident or interference has ended but LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY shall be permitted to power up its equipment for intermittent testing with 
notice.   

15.05 Compliance With Law.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY is aware of its obligation 
to comply with all applicable rules and regulations of the FCC pertaining to RF 
emissions standards, as well as applicable rules and/or regulations of any other 
federal or state agency (including without limitation the Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration ("OSHA") having jurisdiction over the installation, operation, 
maintenance and/or working conditions involving RF emissions and/or safety and work 
standards performed on or near communications towers and antenna-licensed 
premises.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY agrees to be solely responsible for compliance with 
all applicable FCC and other governmental requirements with respect to installation, 
operation, and maintenance of its own equipment and for repairs to its own equipment 
at the LTE Site.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY will immediately remedy its operations to 
comply with such applicable laws, rules and regulations as they apply to its 
operations, individually and in the aggregate, with all applicable FCC and other 
applicable governmental RF emissions standards, but shall only be liable for any 
violations of such applicable standards to the extent arising solely from LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY's equipment alone and not in combination with others.  Where LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY's equipment, in combination with other, exceed or violates such 
standards, LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall reasonably cooperate with Owner and with 
other relevant parties to mitigate such violations in a timely manner. 

16. UTILITIES 

LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall, at its sole cost and expense, cause the installation 
of any utility service line required by or for the conduct of the Permitted Activities, and 
shall be responsible for the payment of all utilities necessary for the operation of the LA-
RICS Facility on the LTE Site.  If such installation is not feasible, as determined by 
Owner, LA-RICS AUTHORITY acknowledges and agrees that LA-RICS AUTHORITY 
nonetheless shall be responsible for any all costs of utilities used by LA-RICS 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

AUTHORITY, which costs will be invoiced by Owner and paid by LA-RICS AUTHORITY 
within thirty (30) days of its receipt of such invoice.   

17. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

LA-RICS AUTHORITY agrees to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless 
Owner and its agents, elected and appointed officers, and employees from and against 
any and all liability, expense (including, without limitation, defense costs and legal fees), 
and claims for damages of any nature whatsoever, including, without limitation, bodily 
injury, death, personal injury, or property damage arising from or connected with LA-
RICS AUTHORITY's operations or its services hereunder, including, without limitation, 
any Workers' Compensation suit, liability, or expense, arising from or connected with 
services performed on behalf of LA-RICS AUTHORITY by any person pursuant to this 
Agreement including without limitation the LTE Vendor. 

Owner agrees to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY and its member agencies, agents, elected and appointed officers, 
employees, and contractors from and against any and all liability, expense (including, 
without limitation, defense costs and legal fees), and claims for damages of any nature 
whatsoever, including, without limitation, bodily injury, death, personal injury, or property 
damage arising from or connected with the negligence or willful misconduct of Owner 
and/or its agents, elected and appointed officers, employees, and contractors in 
connection with the performance of Owner's obligations hereunder. 

18. INSURANCE 

18.01 Without limiting LA-RICS AUTHORITY's obligations to Owner, LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY shall provide and maintain, at its own expense during the term of this 
Agreement, the following program(s) of insurance covering its operations hereunder.  
Such insurance shall be provided by insurer(s) satisfactory to the Owner's Risk 
Manager, and evidence of such programs satisfactory to the Owner Risk Manager, 
shall be delivered to the City Attorney’s Office/Risk Manager 
_________________________ [CITY RISK MGMT CONTACT], on or before the 
effective date of this Agreement.  Such evidence shall specifically identify this 
Agreement and shall contain express conditions that Owner is to be given written 
notice at least thirty (30) days in advance of any modification or termination of any 
provisions of insurance and shall name the Owner as an additional insured (except for 
the Workers’ Compensation Insurance).  LA-RICS AUTHORITY may self-insure the 
insurance required under this Agreement, but LA-RICS AUTHORITY will require its 
contractors and subcontractors to provide commercial insurance as required in the 
Section, and any additional insurance required by LA-RICS AUTHORITY of its 
contractor(s) and/or subcontractor(s), shall name the Owner as an additional insured. 

(a) General Liability.  A program of insurance which shall be primary to 
and not contributing with any other insurance maintained by Owner, written on ISO 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

policy form CG 00 01 or its equivalent, and endorsed to name the Owner as an 
additional insured, and shall include, but not be limited to: 

(1) Comprehensive general liability insurance endorsed 
for Site-operations, products/completed operations, contractual, broad  form property 
damage, and personal injury with a limit of not less than  

General Aggregate:     $2 million 

Products/Completed Operations Aggregate: $2 million 

Personal and Advertising Injury:   $1 million 

Per occurrence     $ 1 million 

 
(2) Automobile Liability insurance (written on ISO form 

CA 00 01 or its equivalent) with a limit of liability of not less than $1 million for each 
accident, and providing coverage for all “owned,” “hired” and “non-owned” vehicles, or 
coverage for “any auto,” used in LA-RICS AUTHORITY’s business operations. 

(b) Workers Compensation.  If applicable, a program of workers’ 
compensation insurance in an amount and form to meet all applicable requirements of 
the labor code of the State of California, and which specifically covers all persons 
providing services on behalf of LA-RICS AUTHORITY and all risks to such persons 
under the Agreement.  

Each Accident:      $1 million 

Disease – policy limit:    $1 million 

Disease – each employee:    $1 million 

(c) Commercial Property Insurance.  Such coverage shall: 

 Provide coverage for  Owner’s property, and any improvements and betterments; 
This coverage shall be at least as broad as that provided by the Causes-of-Loss 
Special Form (ISO form CP 10 30), including Ordinance or Law Coverage, flood, 
and Business Interruption equal to two (2) years annual rent;  

 Be written for the full replacement cost of the property, with a deductible no 
greater than $250,000 or 5% of the property value whichever is less. Insurance 
proceeds shall be payable to the Owner and LA-RICS AUTHORITY as their 
interests may appear and be utilized for repair and restoration of the Premises. 
Failure to use such insurance proceeds to timely repair and restore the Premises 
shall constitute a material breach of the Agreement. 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

(d) Construction Insurance. If major construction work is performed 
by LA-RICS AUTHORITY during the term of this Agreement (i.e. the initial 
construction/installation of structures, demolition of structures, construction of new 
structures, renovation or retrofit involving structures frame, foundation or supports, or 
more than 50% of building, etc.) then LA-RICS AUTHORITY or LA-RICS AUTHORITY’s 
contractor shall provide the following insurance. Owner shall determine the coverage 
limits required on a project by project basis: 

 Builder’s Risk Course of Construction Insurance.  Such 
coverage shall insure against damage from perils covered by the 
Causes-of-Loss Special Form (ISO form CP 10 30). This insurance 
shall be endorsed to include earthquake, flood, ordinance or law 
coverage, coverage for temporary offsite storage, debris removal, 
pollutant cleanup and removal, testing, preservation of property, 
excavation costs, landscaping, shrubs and plants, and full collapse 
coverage during construction, without restricting collapse coverage 
to specified perils. Such insurance shall be extended to include 
boiler & machinery coverage for air conditioning, heating and other 
equipment during testing. This insurance shall be written on a 
completed-value basis and cover the entire value of the 
construction project, including Owner furnished materials and 
equipment, against loss or damage until completion and 
acceptance by the LA-RICS AUTHORITY and the Owner if 
required. 

 
 General Liability Insurance. Such coverage shall be written on 

ISO policy form CG 00 01 or its equivalent, naming Owner as an 
additional insured, with limits of not less than the following: 

 
General Aggregate:           $50 million 

 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate:  $50 million 
 Personal and Advertising Injury:         $25 million 
 Each Occurrence:           $ 25 million 

 
The Products/Completed Operations coverage shall continue to be 
maintained in the amount indicated above for at least two (2) years 
from the date the Project is completed and accepted by the LA-
RICS AUTHORITY and the Owner if required.  

 Automobile Liability. Such coverage shall be written on iso policy 
form ca 00 01 or its equivalent with limits of not less than $5 
MILLION for bodily injury and property damage, in combined or 
equivalent split limits, for each single accident. Such insurance 
shall cover liability arising out of LA-RICS AUTHORITY’s or LA-
RICS AUTHORITY’s contractor use of autos pursuant to this lease, 
including owned, leased, hired, and/or non-owned autos, as each 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

may be applicable. 

 Professional Liability. Such insurance shall cover liability arising 
from any error, omission, negligent, or wrongful act of the LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY’s contractor and/or licensed professional (i.e. 
architects, engineers, surveyors, etc.) with limits of not less than $5 
million per claim and $10 million aggregate.  The coverage shall 
also provide an extended two-year reporting period commencing 
upon expiration, termination or cancellation of the construction 
project. 

   Workers Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance or 
qualified self-insurance satisfying statutory requirements. Such 
coverage shall provide Employers’ Liability coverage with limits of 
not less than $1 million per accident. Such policy shall be endorsed 
to waive subrogation against the Owner for injury to the LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY’s or LA-RICS AUTHORITY’s contractor employees. If 
the LA-RICS AUTHORITY’s or LA-RICS AUTHORITY’s contractor 
employees will be engaged in maritime employment, the coverage 
shall provide the benefits required by the U.S. Longshore and 
Harbor Workers Compensation Act, Jones Act or any other federal 
law to which the LA-RICS AUTHORITY is subject. If LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY or LA-RICS AUTHORITY’s contractor will provide 
leased employees, or, is an employee leasing or temporary staffing 
firm or a professional employer organization (PEO), coverage also 
shall include an Alternate Employer Endorsement (providing scope 
of coverage equivalent to ISO policy form WC 00 03 01 A) naming 
the Owner as the Alternate Employer, and the endorsement form 
shall be modified to provide that Owner will receive not less than 
thirty (30) days advance written notice of cancellation of this 
coverage provision.    

18.02 Insurer Financial Ratings.  Insurance is to be provided by an insurance 
company acceptable to Owner with an A.M.  Best rating of not less than A:VII, unless 
otherwise approved by Owner. 

18.03 Failure to Maintain Coverage.  Failure by LA-RICS AUTHORITY to 
maintain the required insurance, or to provide evidence of insurance coverage 
acceptable to Owner, shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement. 

18.04 Notification of Incidents.  Claims or Suits.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall 
report to Owner any accident or incident relating to activities performed under this 
Agreement which involves injury or property damage which might reasonably be 
thought to result in the filing of a claim or lawsuit against LA-RICS AUTHORITY and/or 
Owner.  Such report shall be made in writing within 72 hours of LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY’s knowledge of such occurrence. 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

18.05 Compensation for Owner Costs.  In the event that LA-RICS AUTHORITY 
fails to comply with any of the indemnification or insurance requirements of this 
Agreement, and such failure to comply results in any costs to Owner, LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY shall pay full compensation for all reasonable costs incurred by Owner. 

19. FAILURE TO PROCURE INSURANCE 

19.01 Failure on the part of LA-RICS AUTHORITY to procure or maintain the 
required program(s) of insurance shall constitute a material breach of contract upon 
which Owner may immediately terminate this Agreement, or at its discretion, procure 
or renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, and 
all monies so paid by Owner shall be repaid by LA-RICS AUTHORITY to Owner upon 
demand. 

19.02 Use of the LTE Site shall not commence until LA-RICS AUTHORITY has 
complied with the aforementioned insurance requirements, and shall be suspended 
during any period that LA-RICS AUTHORITY fails to maintain said insurance policies 
in full force and effect. 

20. TAXES 

20.01 The interest (as defined in California Revenue and Taxation Code 
Section 107) in the LTE Site created by this Agreement may be subject to property 
taxation if created.  The party in whom the property interest is vested may be subject 
to the payment of the property taxes levied on the interest.   

20.02 LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall pay before delinquency all lawful taxes, 
assessments, fees or charges which at any time may be levied by the Federal, State, 
Owner, City, or any other tax or assessment-levying body upon the LTE Site arising 
from LA-RICS AUTHORITY’s use of the LTE Site.  

20.03 If LA-RICS AUTHORITY fails to pay any lawful taxes or assessments 
upon the LTE Site which LA-RICS AUTHORITY is obligated to pay, LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY will be in default of the Agreement.  

21.04 Owner reserves the right to pay any such tax, assessment, fees or 
charges, and all monies so paid by Owner shall be repaid by LA-RICS AUTHORITY to 
Owner upon demand.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY and Owner agree that this is an 
Agreement and not a lease and no real estate interest is being conveyed herein. 

21. NOTICES 

Notices desired or required to be given pursuant to this Agreement or by any law 
now in effect shall be given by enclosing the same in a sealed envelope, Certified Mail –
Return Receipt Requested, addressed to the party for whom intended and depositing 
such envelope, with postage prepaid, in the U.S. Post Office or any substation thereof, 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

or any public letter box, and any such notice and the envelope containing the same, 
shall be addressed to LA-RICS AUTHORITY as follows: 

LA-RICS AUTHORITY 
2525 Corporate Place, Second Floor 

Monterey Park, California 91754 

ATTN: Executive Director 

 

or such other place as may hereinafter be designated in writing by LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY.  .  24-hour emergency contact information for LA-RICS is as follows: 

  CONSTRUCTION PERIOD: Patrick J. Mallon, (626) 969-6163 

  NETWORK OPERATIONS CENTER (Post-Construction):   
  Lieutenant Mark Wilkins, (323) 351-6507  

The notices and the certificate of insurance and envelopes containing the same to the 
Owner shall be addressed as follows: 

City of Compton Fire Department 
201 South Acacia Avenue 
Compton, California 90220 
(310)  605-5670 
(310) 632-8414 fax 
Attn:  Fire Chief 

   
 

    Copies to: City of Compton  
205 South Willowbrook Avenue 
Compton, California 90220 
Attn:  City Manager 
 

Downey Dispatch Center 

(562) 904-7313 

City of Compton Fire Department On-Duty Battalion Chief 

(310) 605-6272 office; (310) 612-1134 cell 

or such other place or person as may hereinafter be designated in writing by Owner.   



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

Notice shall be effective upon actual receipt or refusal as shown on the receipt obtained 
pursuant to the foregoing.  Notices may also be provided by electronic mail or facsimile 
transmission, provided that such notices are followed up with a copy sent via US Mail. 

22. LA-RICS FACILITY REMOVAL 

22.01 LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall remove all of its LA-RICS Facility and 
personal and improvements from the LTE Site and the Real Property and restore the 
LTE Site to its original condition, reasonable wear and tear and damage or destruction 
by the acts of God beyond the control of LA-RICS AUTHORITY excepted, on or 
before the expiration of this Agreement, unless this Agreement is otherwise terminated 
or cancelled prior to the expiration date provided herein, in which case LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY shall remove from the LTE Site and the Real Property all of its LA-RICS 
Facility and personal property and improvements and restore the LTE Site to its 
original condition, reasonable wear and tear and damage or destruction by the acts of 
God beyond the control of LA-RICS AUTHORITY excepted, within ninety (90) days of 
the cancellation.  If weather conditions or lack of access to the LTE Site render the 
timely removal of LA-RICS AUTHORITY's property impossible, then LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY shall have thirty (30) days from the earliest date on which access is 
possible in which to comply with this provision. 

22.02 If LA-RICS AUTHORITY does not timely remove all of its LA-RICS 
Facility, personal property and improvements from the LTE Site and the Real Property 
within the time provided in this section, Owner may, but shall not be required to, 
remove the LA-RICS Facility and all personal property and improvements at LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY's expense.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall reimburse Owner within thirty 
(30) days of receipt of an itemized accounting of the cost for such removal of personal 
property and improvements.  Owner shall incur no liability for any damage to the LA-
RICS Facility during removal or storage.   

23. INDEPENDENT STATUS 

This Agreement is by and between Owner and LA-RICS AUTHORITY and is not 
intended and shall not be construed to create the relationship of agent, servant, 
employee, partnership, joint venture or association as between Owner and LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY understands and agrees to bear the sole 
responsibility and liability for furnishing Workers' Compensation with respect to services 
performed on behalf of LA-RICS AUTHORITY pursuant to this Agreement. 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

24. AMENDMENT 

Any modification of any of the terms and conditions hereof shall require a written 
amendment signed by an authorized agent of the LA-RICS AUTHORITY and an 
authorized agent of Owner. 

25. ASSIGNMENT 

25.01 This Agreement may not be sold, assigned or transferred by LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY without the approval or consent of the Owner, which consent may not be 
unreasonably withheld or conditioned.  No change of stock ownership, partnership 
interest or control of LA-RICS AUTHORITY or transfer upon partnership or corporate 
dissolution of LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall constitute an assignment hereunder.   

25.02 To effect an assignment or transfer pursuant to this Section 25 
(Assignment), LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall first deliver to the Owner: 

(i) A written request for approval; 

(ii) The name, address, and most recent financial statements of 
the proposed transferee, assignee or sublicensee; 

(iii) Proposed unredacted instrument of transfer or assignment 
or any or all of its rights hereunder; and 

(iv) Any other information reasonably requested by the CEO. 

25.03 Owner shall approve or disapprove a proposed transfer, assignment or 
sublicense within sixty (60) days after LA-RICS AUTHORITY delivers all such items to 
the Owner.  Owner's failure to respond to any request pursuant to this Section shall be 
deemed disapproval of said request. 

25.04 In the case of an assignment of this Agreement, the proposed instrument 
shall include a written assumption by the assignee of all obligations of LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY under the Agreement arising thereafter and assignee shall be liable to 
perform the full obligations of the LA-RICS AUTHORITY under this Agreement and as a 
condition to the completion of such transfer must cure, remedy, or correct any event of 
default existing at the time of such transfer in a manner satisfactory to the Owner. 

25.05 In the case of a sublicense, the proposed instrument shall specifically 
include a provision that the sublicensee shall comply with and be subject to all of the 
terms covenants, and conditions of this Agreement. 

25.06 Owner shall have the right to lease or license the use of space on LA-
RICS Authority's telecommunications pole to third party(ies), if such telecommunications 
pole is capable of housing such third party(ies), based on terms mutually agreeable to 
the LA-RICS Authority.  Owner shall submit any proposed lease or license to the LA-



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

RICS Authority for review and approval prior to entering into such lease or license.  
Such proposed instrument shall specifically include: (a) a provision that the lease or 
license shall comply with and be subject to all of the terms covenants, and conditions of 
this Agreement, and (b) a requirement that any third party use of LA-RICS Authority's 
telecommunications pole shall not interfere with LA-RICS Authority's use of the LA-
RICS Facility or its operations.  The parties agree that any revenues generated by such 
third party leases or licenses by Owner shall be retained by Owner, except for an 
amount to be agreed upon between Owner and LA-RICS Authority, which sum is 
intended to compensate LA-RICS AUTHORITY for its operational, administrative and 
other costs associated with third party use of the LA-RICS Authority's 
telecommunications pole. 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

26. SUBORDINATION AND NON-DISTURBANCE 

 Owner shall obtain, not later than 15 days following the execution of this 
Agreement, a Non-Disturbance Agreement, as defined below, from its existing 
mortgagees, ground lessors and master lessors, if any, of the Real Property.  At 
Owner's option, this Agreement shall be subordinate to any future master lease, ground 
lease, mortgage, deed of trust, or other security interest (a "Mortgage") by Owner which 
from time  to time may encumber all or part of the Real Property; provided, however, as 
a condition precedent to LA-RICS AUTHORITY being required to subordinate its 
interest in this Agreement to any future Mortgage covering the Real Property, Owner 
shall obtain for LA-RICS AUTHORITY's benefit a non-disturbance and attornment 
agreement in a form reasonably satisfactory to LA-RICS AUTHORITY and containing at 
a minimum the terms set forth herein below ("Non-Disturbance Agreement"), and shall 
recognize LA-RICS AUTHORITY's right to remain in occupancy of and have access to 
the LTE Site as long as LA-RICS AUTHORITY is not in default of this Agreement 
beyond applicable notice and cure periods.  The Non-Disturbance Agreement shall 
include the encumbering party's ("Lender's") agreement that, if Lender or its successor 
in interest or any purchase of Lender's or its successor's interest (a "Purchaser") 
acquires an ownership interest in the Real Property, Lender or such successor in 
interest or Purchaser will (a) honor all of the terms of this Agreement, (b) fulfill Owner's 
obligations under this Agreement, and (c) promptly cure all of the then-existing Owner 
defaults under this Agreement.  Such Non-Disturbance Agreement must be binding on 
all of Lender's participants in the subject loan (if any) and on all successors and assigns 
of Lender and/or its participants and on all Purchasers.  In return for such Non-
Disturbance Agreement, LA-RICS AUTHORITY will execute an agreement for the 
Lender's benefit in which LA-RICS AUTHORITY:  (i) confirms that the Agreement is 
subordinate to the Mortgage or other real property interest in favor of the Lender, (ii) 
agrees to attorn to Lender if Lender becomes the owner of the Real Property, and (iii) 
agrees to accept a cure by Lender of any of Owner's defaults, provided such cure is 
completed within the deadline applicable to Owner. 

27. CONDEMNATION 

In the event of any condemnation of the Real Property (or any portion thereof), 
LA-RICS AUTHORITY may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Owner if 
such condemnation may reasonably be expected to disrupt LA-RICS AUTHORITY's 
operations at the LTE Site for more than forty-five (45) days.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY 
may on its own behalf make a claim in any condemnation proceeding involving the LTE 
Site for losses related to the equipment comprising the applicable LA-RICS Facility, its 
relocation costs and its damages and losses (but not for the loss of its interest, if any, 
under this Agreement).  Any such notice of termination shall cause this Agreement to 
expire with the same force and effect as though the date set forth in such notice were 
the date originally set as the expiration date of this Agreement, and Owner and LA-
RICS AUTHORITY shall make an appropriate adjustment, as of such termination date, 
with respect to payments due to the other, if any, under this Agreement. 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

28. DEFAULT 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, in the event of a default 
hereunder by LA-RICS AUTHORITY, Owner shall provide written notice thereof to LA-
RICS AUTHORITY.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall have sixty (60) days from the date of 
said notice in which to cure the default, provided that LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall have 
such extended period beyond sixty (60) days as may be required if the nature of the 
cure is such that it reasonably requires more than sixty (60) days and LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY has commenced to cure the default within the 60-day period and has 
acted with reasonable diligence in commencing and pursuing such cure to completion.  
Owner may not maintain any action or effect any remedies for default against LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY unless and until LA-RICS AUTHORITY has failed to cure a default within 
the time periods set forth in this section.  In the event that LA-RICS AUTHORITY fails to 
cure a default within sixty (60) days or as otherwise provided in this section, Owner 
may:  (a) cure the default and invoice LA-RICS AUTHORITY for all costs reasonably 
incurred in effecting such cure, or (b) terminate this Agreement upon written notice to 
LA-RICS AUTHORITY, take possession of the LTE Site and remove all LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY's improvements located thereon.  In the event of a default hereunder by 
Owner, LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall provide written notice thereof to Owner.  Owner 
shall have sixty (60) days from the date of said notice in which to cure the default, 
provided that Owner shall have such extended period beyond sixty (60) days as may be 
required if the nature of the cure is such that it reasonably requires more than sixty (60) 
days and Owner has commenced to cure the default within the 60-day period and has 
acted with reasonable diligence in commencing and pursuing such cure to completion.  
LA-RICS AUTHORITY may not maintain any action or effect any remedies for default 
against Owner unless and until Owner has failed to cure a default within the time 
periods set forth in this section.  In the event that Owner fails to cure a default within 
sixty (60) days or as otherwise provided in this section, LA-RICS AUTHORITY may:  (a) 
cure the default and invoice Owner for all costs reasonably incurred by LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY in effecting such cure, or (b) terminate this Agreement upon written notice 
to Owner. 

29. WAIVER 

29.01 Any waiver by either party of the breach of any one or more of the 
covenants, conditions, terms and agreements herein contained shall not be construed 
to be a waiver of any other breach of the same or of any other covenant, condition, 
term or agreement herein contained, nor shall failure on the part of either party to 
require exact, full and complete compliance with any of the covenants, conditions, 
terms or agreements herein contained be construed as in any manner changing the 
terms of this Agreement or stopping either party from enforcing the full provisions 
thereof. 

29.02 No option, right, power, remedy, or privilege of either party shall be 
construed as being exhausted by the exercise thereof in one or more instances.  The 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

rights, powers, options, and remedies given either party by this Agreement shall be 
cumulative. 

30. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

The parties hereto hereby warrant and represent that they shall comply with all 
applicable Federal, State, and local laws and regulations concerning the use, release, 
storage and disposal of hazardous substances on the LTE Site and the Real Property.  
For purposes of this Agreement, the term "hazardous substances" shall be deemed to 
include hazardous, toxic or radioactive substances, as defined in California Health and 
Safety Code Section 25316, as amended from time to time, or the same or a related 
defined term in any successor or companion statutes, and crude oil or byproducts of 
crude oil other than crude oil which exists on the Real Property as a natural formation, 
and those chemicals and substances identified pursuant to Health and Safety Code 
Section 25249.8., as it may be amended from time to time. 

The parties each agree to indemnify and defend the other and the other's agents, 
officers, employees, and contractors against any and all losses, liabilities, claims and/or 
costs (including reasonably attorneys' fees and costs) to the extent arising from the 
indemnifying party's breach of any warranty or agreement contained in this Section. 

31. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION  

Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement with respect to all or 
any portion of the LTE Site in the event of one of the following:  (a) the applicable Real 
Property or the LTE Site is damaged by fire or other casualty, incidents of war, 
earthquake, or other violent action of the elements such that repairs cannot reasonably 
be expected to be completed within forty-five (45) days following said damage (or 
Owner in its sole discretion elects not to make such repair);or (b) the applicable Real 
Property or LTE Site is damaged by fire or other casualty, incidents of war, earthquake, 
or other violent action of the elements such that such damage may reasonably be 
expected to disrupt LA-RICS AUTHORITY's operations at such LTE Site for more than 
forty-five (45) days.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of any of the damage 
described in this Section, LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall have the right to elect to perform 
or cause to be performed any of the required repairs to the applicable Real Property or 
LTE Site should Owner elect not to undertake such repairs.  Any notice of termination 
provided pursuant to this Section shall cause this Agreement to expire with the same 
force and effect as though the date set forth in such notice were the date originally set 
as the expiration date of this Agreement, and the parties shall make an appropriate 
adjustment, as of such termination date, with respect to payments due to the other 
under this Agreement, if any.   

Should any matter or condition beyond the control of the parties, such as war, 
public emergency, calamity, fire, earthquake, flood or act of God prevent performance of 
this Agreement by either party, such party shall be relived of the performance of such 
obligations during the time period of the event. 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall be solely responsible for any damage or loss to LA-
RICS AUTHORITY's equipment resulting from theft or vandalism or resulting from any 
other cause, except to the extent caused by Owner's acts or omissions. 

32. AUTHORIZATION WARRANTY 

The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this 
Agreement for each of them is an authorized agent who has actual authority to bind 
such party to each and every term, condition, and obligation of this Agreement and that 
all requirements of such party have been fulfilled to provide such authority.   

33. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS 

This Agreement is not intended, and shall not be construed, to create the 
relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture, or association 
between Owner and LA-RICS AUTHORITY.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall bear the sole 
responsibility and liability for furnishing Worker's Compensation benefits to any person 
for injuries from or connected with services performed on behalf of LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY pursuant to this Agreement as required by law.  The foregoing 
indemnification does not apply to liability caused by the negligence of the Owner. 

34. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE 

This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with the 
internal laws of the State of California.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY agrees and consents to 
the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of California for all purposes 
regarding this Agreement and further agrees and consents that venue of any action 
brought hereunder shall be exclusively in the County of Los Angeles. 

35. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW 

In the performance of this Agreement, each party and anyone acting on such 
party's behalf pursuant to this Agreement shall comply with all applicable Federal, State 
and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, directives, guidelines, policies and 
procedures (including without limitation the rules and regulations of the FCC, the 
Federal Aviation Administration ("FAA"), and OSHA, and all provisions required thereby 
to be included in this Agreement are hereby incorporated herein by reference. 

36. COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS, NONDISCRIMINATION AND          
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION 

36.01 LA-RICS AUTHORITY hereby assures that it will comply with 
Subchapter VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 USC Sections 2000 (e) (1) through 
2000 (e) (17), to the end that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, 
sex, religion, ancestry, age, condition or physical handicap, marital status, political 
affiliation, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

of, or be otherwise subject to discrimination under this Agreement or under any 
project, program or activity supported by this Agreement. 

36.02 LA-RICS AUTHORITY certifies and agrees that it will deal with its 
subcontractors, bidders, or vendors without regard to or because of race, color, religion, 
ancestry, national origin, sex, age, physical or mental disability, material status, or 
political affiliation. 

36.03 LA-RICS AUTHORITY certifies and agrees that it, its affiliates, 
subsidiaries, or holding companies shall comply with all applicable Federal and State 
laws and regulations to the end that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, 
religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, age, physical or mental disability, marital status, 
or political affiliation, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
otherwise subjected to discrimination under this Agreement or under any project, 
program, or activity supported by this Agreement. 

36.04 If the Owner finds that any of the above provisions of this Section have 
been violated, such violation shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement upon 
which the Owner may terminate, or suspend this Agreement. 

36.05 While the Owner reserves the right to determine independently that the 
anti-discrimination provisions of this Agreement have been violated, in addition, a 
determination by the California Fair Employment Practices Commission, the Federal 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission that LA-RICS AUTHORITY has violated 
Federal or State anti discrimination laws or regulations shall constitute a finding by 
Owner that LA-RICS AUTHORITY has violated the anti-discrimination provisions of this 
Agreement. 

36.06 In the event LA-RICS AUTHORITY violates the antidiscrimination 
provisions of the Agreement, the parties agree that it is difficult to ascertain the amount 
of liquidated damages, and hereby agree that the Owner shall, at its sole option, be 
entitled to the sum of FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($500.00) for each such violation 
pursuant to California Civil Code 1671 as liquidated damages in lieu of terminating or 
suspending this Agreement. 

37. NON EXCLUSIVITY 

Nothing herein is intended or shall be construed as creating any exclusive 
arrangement with LA-RICS AUTHORITY.  This Agreement shall not restrict the Owner 
from acquiring similar, equal or like goods and/or services from other entities or 
sources. 

38. NOTICE OF EMPLOYEES REGARDING THE FEDERAL EARNED INCOME 
CREDIT 

LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall notify its employees, and shall require each 
Contractor and Subcontractor to notify its employees, that they may be eligible for the 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

Federal Earned Income Credit under the federal income tax laws.  Such notice shall be 
provided in accordance with the requirements set forth in Internal Revenue Service 
Notice No. 1015. 

39. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 

39.01 Any documents submitted by LA-RICS AUTHORITY or its agents 
including without limitation the LTE Vendor and all information obtained in connection 
with the Owner's right to inspect the LTE Site or any other rights provided by this 
Agreement shall become the exclusive property of the Owner.  All such documents 
become a matter of public record and shall be regarded as public records, except as 
specifically provided by California Government Code Section 6250 et seq. ("Public 
Records Act") and which are marked "trade secret," "confidential," or "proprietary."  The 
Owner shall not be in any way liable or responsible for the disclosure of any such 
records including, without limitation, those so marked, if disclosure is required by law, or 
by an order issued by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

39.02 In the event the Owner is required to defend an action on a Public 
Records Act request as requested by LA-RICS AUTHORITY for any of the 
aforementioned documents, information, books, records, and/or contents of a proposed 
marked "trade secret," "confidential", or "proprietary," LA-RICS AUTHORITY agrees to 
refund and indemnify the Owner from all costs and expenses, including without 
limitation reasonable attorney's fees, incurred in such action or liability arising under the 
Public Records Act within thirty days after LA-RICS AUTHORITY's receipt of Owner's 
invoice. 

39.03 Any documents submitted by Owner or its agents and all information 
obtained in connection with LA-RICS AUTHORITY's rights provided by this Agreement 
shall become the exclusive property of LA-RICS AUTHORITY.  All such documents 
become a matter of public record and shall be regarded as public records, except as 
specifically provided by California Government Code Section 6250 et seq. ("Public 
Records Act") and which are marked "trade secret," "confidential," or "proprietary."  LA-
RICS AUTHORITY shall not be in any way liable or responsible for the disclosure of any 
such records including, without limitation, those so marked, if disclosure is required by 
law, or by an order issued by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

39.04 In the event the LA_RICS AUTHORITY is required to defend an action on 
a Public Records Act request as requested by the Owner for any of the aforementioned 
documents, information, books, records, and/or contents Owner agrees to refund and 
indemnify the LA-RICS AUTHORITY from all costs and expenses, including without 
limitation reasonable attorney's fees, incurred in such action or liability arising under the 
Public Records Act within thirty days after Owner's receipt of LA-RICS AUTHORITY's 
invoice. 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

40. OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

40.01 Advertising Materials and Signs.  Except for warning signs required by 
law, LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall not post signs upon the LTE Site or improvements 
thereon, or distribute or cause to be distributed any advertising materials unless prior 
approval therefor is obtained from the Owner.  

40.02 Habitation.  The LTE Site shall not be used for human habitation. 

40.03 Illegal Activities.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall not knowingly permit any 
illegal activities to be conducted upon the LTE Site. 

40.04 Safety.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall immediately correct any unsafe 
condition on the LTE Site, as well as any unsafe practices occurring thereon; to the 
extent such unsafe condition or practice occurs as a result of LA-RICS AUTHORITY's 
use of the LTE Site.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall cooperate fully with Owner in the 
investigation of any accidental injury or death occurring on the LTE Site, including a 
prompt report thereof to the Owner.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall cooperate and 
comply fully with Owner, State, municipal, federal or any other regulatory agency 
having jurisdiction there over, regarding any safety inspections and certifications of 
any and all LA-RICS AUTHORITY's structures and enclosures.  LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY, at its expense, may use any and all appropriate means of restricting 
public access to the LTE Site. 

40.05 Sanitation.  No offensive matter, refuse, or substance constituting an 
unnecessary, unreasonable or unlawful fire hazard, or material detrimental to the 
public health in violation of the law, shall be permitted or remain on the LTE Site and 
within a distance of fifty (50) feet thereof, and LA-RICS AUTHORITY and Owner shall 
prevent any accumulation thereof from occurring. 

40.06 Security Devices.  LA-RICS AUTHORITY, at its own expense, may 
provide any legal devices or equipment and the installation thereof, designated for the 
purpose of protecting the LTE Site from theft, burglary or vandalism, provided written 
approval for installation thereof is first obtained from the Owner.  Owner shall be 
responsible for securing the Real Property. 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

41. NON-AVAILABILITY OF FUNDING 

 The parties acknowledge and agree that LA-RICS' AUTHORITY's performance 
of its obligations under this Agreement is subject to the continuing availability of federal 
grants or other funds for the LA-RICS Project.  This Agreement may be terminated by 
LA-RICS AUTHORITY (and the LA-RICS Facility removed from the LTE Site in 
accordance with Section 22 (LA-RICS Facility Removal)hereof) upon a loss or reduction 
of grant funds or other applicable funding sources. 

42. ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF INELIGIBILITY FOR RELOCATION ASSISTANCE 

LA-RICS AUTHORITY hereby disclaims any status as a "displaced person" as 
such is defined in Government Code Section 7260 and hereby acknowledges his 
ineligibility for relocation assistance as provided in Government Code Section 7260 
through 7276, inclusive, as interpreted in Title 25, Chapter 6, Section 6034(b) (1) of the 
California Administrative Code upon the future cancellation or termination of this 
Agreement. 

43. LA-RICS AUTHORITY'S STAFF AND EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 

43.01 LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall designate one member of its staff as an 
Operations Manager with whom the Owner may deal with on a daily basis.  Any 
person selected by LA-RICS AUTHORITY as an Operations Manager shall be fully 
acquainted with LA-RICS AUTHORITY's operation, familiar with the terms and the 
conditions prescribed therefore by this Agreement, and authorized to act in the day-to-
day operation thereof. 

43.02 LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall establish an identification system for each of 
its personnel assigned to service the LTE Site that clearly indicates the name of the 
person.  The identification system shall be furnished at LA-RICS AUTHORITY 
expense and may include appropriate uniform attire and name badges as routinely 
maintained by LA-RICS AUTHORITY. 

44. BANKRUPTCY 

The Owner and LA-RICS AUTHORITY hereby expressly agree and acknowledge 
that it is the intention of both parties that in the event that during the term of this 
Agreement LA-RICS AUTHORITY shall become a debtor in any voluntary or involuntary 
bankruptcy proceeding (a Proceeding) under the United States Bankruptcy Code, 11 
U.S.C. 101, et seq. (the Code), this Agreement is and shall be treated as an unexpired 
lease of nonresidential real property for purposes of Section 365 of the Code, 11 U.S.C. 
365 (as may be amended), and, accordingly, shall be subject to the provisions of 
subsections (d)(3) and (d)(4) of said Section 365 (as may be amended). 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

45. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

Subject to any provision hereof restricting assignment or subletting by LA-RICS 
AUTHORITY, this Agreement shall bind the parties, their personal representatives, 
successors and assigns. 

46. SEVERABILITY 

The invalidity of any provision of this Agreement, as determined by a court of 
competent jurisdiction shall in no way affect the validity of any other provision hereof. 

47. INTERPRETATION 

Unless the context of this Agreement clearly requires otherwise: (i) the plural and 
singular numbers shall be deemed to include the other; (ii) the masculine, feminine and 
neuter genders shall be deemed to include the others; (iii) "or" is not exclusive; and (iv) 
"includes" and "including" are not limiting. 

48. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement (and the attached exhibits) contains the entire agreement 
between the parties hereto with respect to the matters set forth herein, and no addition 
or modification of any terms or provisions shall be effective unless set forth in writing, 
signed by both Owner and LA-RICS AUTHORITY. 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the LA-RICS AUTHORITY has executed this 
Agreement or caused it to be duly executed and Owner has caused this Agreement to 
be executed on the day, month and year first above written.  

THE LOS ANGELES REGIONAL 
INTEROPERABLE COMMUNICATIONS 
SYSTEM AUTHORITY 
 
A California Joint Powers Authority 
 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
 
Print Name:___________________________ 
Its:___________________________________

CITY OF COMPTON, A Municipal 
Corporation of the State of California 
 
 
 
 
 
By:  ___________________________ 
        G. Harold Duffey, City Manager 

  
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
RICHARD D. WEISS 
Acting County Counsel 
 
 
By:____________________________ 
 Deputy  

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
By:  ___________________________ 
 Alita Godwin, City Clerk 
  

 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
By:  ___________________________ 
        Craig J. Cornwell, City Attorney 

  
 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

EXHIBIT A 

SITE LIST 

 
City of Compton 

     
Site ID  Facility 

Name 
Organization  Address Line  City  State  Zip 

Code 
Parcel Owner per 
Assessor's Office 

CPTFD02  FS 2  Compton 
Fire Dept 

1323 E. Palmer St  Compton CA  90221  City of Compton 

CPTFD04  FS 4  Compton 
Fire Dept 

950 W. Walnut St  Compton CA  90220  City of Compton, 
Redevelopment 
Agency 

 

 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

EXHIBIT B 

EQUIPMENT LIST 

Page 1 of 2 

 

Site CPTFD02 

 

 
• Monopole Tower 
• Tower Light Kits (where required by FAA) 
• Antenna Support Hardware 
• LTE Antennas and line 
• Microwave Dishes 
• Generator & Fuel 
• Automatic Transfer Switch 
• Electrical H‐Frame 
• Equipment Pad 
• RBS Radio Cabinet (at all LTE sites) 
• BBS Radio Battery Cabinet (at all LTE sites) 
• TMR Microwave Cabinet (at sites with microwave) 
• BBS Microwave Battery Cabinet (at sites with more than 6 microwave radios) 
• MPLS Site Router (at all LTE sites) 
• Fiber Network Interface Device (at Fiber Sites) 

 

 

 

 

 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

EXHIBIT B 

EQUIPMENT LIST 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Site CPTFD04 

 
• Monopole Tower 
• Tower Light Kits (where required by FAA) 
• Antenna Support Hardware 
• LTE Antennas and line 
• Microwave Dishes 
• Generator & Fuel 
• Automatic Transfer Switch 
• Electrical H‐Frame 
• Equipment Pad 
• RBS Radio Cabinet (at all LTE sites) 
• BBS Radio Battery Cabinet (at all LTE sites) 
• TMR Microwave Cabinet (at sites with microwave) 
• BBS Microwave Battery Cabinet (at sites with more than 6 microwave radios) 
• MPLS Site Router (at all LTE sites) 
• Fiber Network Interface Device (at Fiber Sites) 

 



 

AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT A 

 

EXHIBIT C 

 

[To be incorporated by reference] 
 



  AGENDA ITEM 6 – ATTACHMENT B 

EXHIBIT A 
City of Compton 

     
Site ID  Facility 

Name 
Organization  Address Line  City  State  Zip 

Code 
Parcel Owner per 
Assessor's Office 

CPTFD02  FS 2  Compton 
Fire Dept 

1323 E. Palmer St  Compton  CA  90221  City of Compton 

CPTFD04  FS 4  Compton 
Fire Dept 

950 W. Walnut St  Compton  CA  90220  City of Compton, 
Redevelopment Agency 

 



LOS ANGELES REGIONAL INTEROPERABLE
COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM AUTHORITY

2525 Corporate Place, Suite 200
Monterey Park, California 9 17 54

(323) 881-8291

LA-RICS

PATRICK J, MALLON
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

October 2,2014

Board of Directors
Los Angeles Regional lnteroperable Communications System Authority (the "Authority")

Dear Directors:

ACCEPT 2011 & 20r2 URBAN AREAS SECURTTY TNTTTAT|VE (UAS|) FUNDS

SUBJECT

Board approval is requested to accept the LA-RICS Project's allocation of the 2011 &2012
Urban Areas Security lnitiative (UASI) funds.

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT YOUR BOARD:

1. Accept fi18,227 ,386 in grant funds from the Fiscal Year 2Q11 UASI funds as distributed
through the California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES); and

2. Accept $18,263,579 in grant funds from the Fiscal Year 2012 UASI funds as distributed
through the California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES); and

3. Authorize the Executive Director to execute the 201 1 &2012 UASI Sub-recipient
Agreements, substantially similar to the attached from 2010, between the City of Los
Angeles and the Authority.

PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION

The Board's acceptance of grant funds and authorization of the Executive Director to execute
the Sub-recipient Agreements will allow the Authority to request reimbursement for approved
project expenditures. Project expenditures forthe UASI '11 &'12 grants include Land Mobile
Radio project management, environmentalwork, System design, construction and equipment
purchase.

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCI NG

These grants are fully funded by the Department of Homeland Security through CalOES. There
is no matching fund requirement.

AGENDA ITEM 7



LA-RICS Board of Directors
Meeting of October 2,2014
Page 2

FAGTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENT

The Authority's counsel has reviewed the recommended actions.

AG RE EM ENTS/CONTRACTI NG

The recommended actions will authorize the Executive Director to execute the Sub-Recipient
Agreements with the City of Los Angeles. The City of Los Angeles is the administrator of the
UASI '1 1 &'12 grants, and has advised Authority staff the Sub-Recipient Agreement is being
finalized. lt is expected that the Sub-Recipient Agreement for the UASI '1 1 &'12 will not differ
materially from the agreement for the UASI '10 grant.

Respectfully submitted,

.j/,,Á-
PATRICK J. MAL
LA-RICS EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR

c: Counsel to the Authority

Attachment



SUBRECIPI ENT AGREEMENT

Jurisdiction: Los Angeles Regional I nteroperable Communications System
Authority (.LA-RICS,,), r joint powers authority - ' --

Title: FY 10 urban Area security lnitiative (uAsl) Grant program

CitY Gontract Number Ô - tara*e t \

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section Description Paqe

t.

INTRODUCTION

5101. Parties to the 49reement............... .....................6
S102. Representatives of the Parties and service of Notices............. .........6
5103. lndependent Party... ...........1
5104. Conditions Precedent to Execution of This Agreement ......7

il.
TERM AND SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED

5201. Time of Performance........ ..................g
5202. Use of Grant Funds ............9

ilt.
PAYMENT

S301. Payment of Grant Funds and Method of payment.......... .................11

tv.
STANDARD PROVISIONS

S401. Construction of Provisions and Tifles Herein..... ...............20
5402. Applicable Law, lnterpretation and Enforcement...... ........2O
5403. lntegrated A9reement............... ........2O
5404. Excusable Delays..... ........21
5405. Breach ..............21
5406. Prohibition Against Assignment or Delegation .................21
5407. Permits .............21
5408. Nondiscrimination and Affirmative Action.............. ...........22
5409. Los Angeles city Business Tax Registration certificate ...................22
5410. Bonds ...............22
5411. lndemnification........ .........22
5412. Conflict of lnterest ............23
5413. lnsurance .........25
5414. Restriction on Disclosures......... .......25
S415. statutes and Regulations Applicable To All Grant contracts ...........2s
5416. Federal, State and Local Taxes .......3S
5417. lnventions, Patents and Copyrights....... ...........35
S418. Living Wage Ordinance Service Contractor Worker Retention and Living WagePolicy....... .........36
5419. Earned lncome Tax Credit.............. .................37

9/'10UASI '10 Subrecipient Agreement

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



5420. Equal Benefits Ordinance .................37
$421.Contractor Responsibility Ordinance.......... ........97
5422. Slavery Disclosure Ordinance ..........37
5423. Child Support Assignment Orders ....37
5424. Minority, Women, and Other Business Enterprise Outreach Program .............37
5425. Publications............ ..........3g

V.
DEFAULTS, SUSPENSION. TERMINATION. AND AMENDMENTS

S50f . Defaults ............39
5502. This section intentionally left blank. ..................39
5503. This section intentionally left blank. ..................39
5504. This section intentionally left blank. ..................39
5505. Amendments........... .........39

vt.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT

S601. Complete Agreement.............. .........40
5602. Number of Pages and Attachments .................40

Execution (Signature)... . ......41

9/1 0UASI '10 Subrecipient Agreement
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



EXHIBITS

Exhibit A lnsurance (Not applicable to this Agreement)

Exhibit B Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, lneligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transactions

Exhibit C Ceftification Regarding Lobbying

Exhibit D Certification Regarding Drug Free Requirements

Exhibit E Grant Assurances

Exhibit F Part lV: Application and Submission Subpart E Funding Restrictions

Exhibit G Part Vlll, Other lnformation - HSGP Allowable Costs, HSGP Allowable
Expenses, Allowable Planning, Training, and Exercise Examples Specific
to Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention-oriented Activities

Exhibit H lntentionally Omitted

Exhibit I Equipment Ledger

Exhibit J Training Roster

Exhibit K Exercise Roster

Exhibit L Planning Roster

Exhibit M Modification Request Form

Exhibit N Sole Source Request Form

Exhibit O lntentionally Omitted

Exhibit P Reimbursement Request Form

Exhibit Q Aviation Equipment Request Form

Exhibit R Establish/Enhance EOC Request Form

Exhibit S EstablishiEnhance JRIC Request Form

Exhibit T Project Timeline

iltUASI '10 Subrecipient Agreement 9110
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



AGREEMENT NUMBER OF CITY CONTRACTS
BETWEEN

THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES
AND LOS ANGELES REGIONAL INTEROPERABLE COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM

AUTHOR|TY ("LA-R|CS"), A JOTNT POWERS AUTHORITY

THIS SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement" or "Contract") is made and
entered into by and between the City of Los Angeles, a municipal corporation (the
"City,"), and the Los Angeles Regional lnteroperable Communications System Authority
("LA-R|CS"), a joint powers authority created under the laws of California (the
"Subgrantee" or "Subrecipient").

WIINESSEIH

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security ("DHS" or "Granto/'),
through the Office of Grants and Training ("G&T"), has provided financial assistance to
the Los Angeles/ Long Beach Urban Area ("LA/LBUA') through the Fiscal Year (Fy)
2010 Urban Areas Security lnitiative Grant Program ("UASI 10" or the "Grant") in the
amount of $69,922,146 ("Grant Funds"), such Grant Funds having been awarded by
Grantor to the City, as a Core City, for use in the LA/LBUA and such Grant having been
accepted by the City Council on July 1 9, 2011(C.F. # 10-1166); and

WHEREAS, DHS is providing Federal grants funding and assistance to the
LA/LBUA in order help achieve its mission of securing America from the many threats it
faces; and

WHEREAS, DHS achieves its mission by meeting four areas of responsibility,
which are: guarding against terrorism, securing our borders, enforcing our immigration
laws, and improving readiness for, response to and recovery from disasters;

WHEREAS, the LA/LBUA consists of the City of Los Angeles, the City of Long
Beach, the unincorporated area of the County of Los Angeles, and participating
jurisdictions, including the Subrecipient; and

WHEREAS, this financial assistance is administered by the City of Los Angeles
and ís overseen by the california Emergency Management Agency ("calEMA"); ãnd

WHEREAS, this financial assistance is being provided to address the unique
equipment, training, planning, organization, and exercise needs of large urban areas,
and to assist them in building an enhanced and sustainable capacity to prevent,
respond to, and recover from threats or acts of terrorism; and

WHEREAS, the City has designated the Office of the Mayor, Office of Homeland
Security and Public Safety ("Mayor's Office") to provide for the proper monitoring of the
funding and administration of the Grant; and

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



WHEREAS, the Mayor's Office now wishes to distribute UASI 10 Grant Funds
allocated to the Subrecipient as a participating jurisdiction in the LA/LBUA as further
detailed in this Agreement;

WHEREAS, the City and Subrecipient are desirous of executing this Agreement
as authorized by the City Council and the Mayor (refer to Council File Number # 10-
1166 dated 0711912011) which authorizes the City to prepare and execute this
Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein
and the mutual benefits to be derived therefrom, the City and the Subrecipient (each a
"Parly" and collectively, the "Parties") agree as follows:

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



5101 . Parties to the Aqreement

The Parties to this Agreement are:

A. The City, a municipal corporation, having its principal office aI2OO North
Spríng Street, Los Angeles, California g0012; and

B. Los Angeles Regional lnteroperable Communications System Authority
("LA-RICS"), a joint powers authority, having its principaÌ office at2525
Corporate Place, Suite 200, Monterey park, CA 91754.

5102. Representatives of the Parties and Service of Notices

A. The representatives of the respectíve parties who are authorized to
administer this Agreement and to whom formal notices, demands and
communications shall be given are as follows:

1- The representative of the City of Los Angeles shall be, unless
othen¡r¡ise stated in this Agreement:

Eileen Decker, Deputy Mayor
office of the Mayor, Homeland Security and public safety
200 N. Spring Street, Room 303
Los Angeles, CA 90012
Phone: (213)978-0687
Fax: (213) 978-0718
Eileen. Decker@lacity.org

2- The representative of the Los Angeles Regional lnteroperable
Communications System Authority ("LA-RICS',), a joint powers
authority shall be:

Patrick Mallon, LA-RICS Executive Director
2525 Corporate Place, Suite 200, Monterey park, CA 91754
Office: 323-881-8290
Fax: 323-264-0718
Email: pat.mallon@la-rics.org

UASI 10 Subrecípient Agreement

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



with a copy to:

Susy Orellana-Curtiss
2525 Corporate Place, Suite 200
Monterey Park, CA 91754
Office: (323) 881-8292
Fax: (323) 264-0718
Email: Susy. Orellana-Curtiss@LA-RlCS.org

B. Formal notices, demands and communications to be given hereunder by
either party shall be made in writing and may be effected by personal
delivery or by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt
requested and shall be deemed communicated as of the date of mailing.

C. lf the name of the person designated to receive the notices, demands or
communications or the address of such person is changed, written notice
shall be given, in accord with this section, within five (5) business days of
said change.

5103. lndependent Partv

Subrecipient is acting hereunder as an independent party, and not as an agent or
employee of the City. No employee of Subrecipient is, or shall be, an employee
of the City by virtue of this Agreement, and Subrecipient shall so inform each
employee organization and each employee who is hired or retained under this
Agreement. Subrecipient shall not represent or othen¡rise hold out itself or any of
its directors, officers, partners, employees, or agents to be an agent or employee
of the City by virtue of this Agreement.

s104. conditions Precedent to Execution of rhis Aqreement

Subrecipient shall provide copies of the following documents to the City, unless
otherwise exempted.

A. This Section is Left lntentionally Blank

B. Certifications Regarding lneligibility, Suspension and Debarment as
required by Executive Order 12549 in accordance with S41S.4.12 of this
Agreement and attached hereto as Exhibit B and madeã part hereof.

C. Ceftifications and Disclosures Regarding Lobbying in accordance with
S415.4.4 of this Agreement and attached hereto as Exhibit C and made a
part hereof. Subrecípient shall also file a Dísclosure Form at the end of
each calendar quarter in which there occurs any event requiring disclosure
or which materially affects the accuracy of the information contained in
any Disclosure Form previously filed by Subrecipient.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



il.

TERM AND SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED

5201. Time of Performance

The performance period of this Agreement shall commence on October 28,2O1O
and extend to March 31, 2014 (the "Term"), any additionat period of time as is
required to complete any necessary close out activities. Said performance period
is subject to the provisions herein.

5202. Use of Grant Funds

A. Subrecipient's allocations and use of funds under this Grant shall comply
and be in accordance with, and subject to, the guidance, regulations and
requirements set forth in the following: (1) DHS FY 2010 Homeland
security Grant Program Guidance and Application Kit ("DHS 10
Guidance"), (2) DHS lnformation Bulletins, (3) CaIEMA's FY 10 Homeland
Security Grant Program California Supplement to Federal Guidance and
Application Kit ("CalEMA 10 Supplement"), (a) CaIEMA Grant
Management Memos ("GMM"), (5) the current editions of the Office of
Justice Programs ("OJP") Financial Guide and the DHS Financial
Management Guide, (6) DHS/FEMA's Grants Management Common Rule
as codified in Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 13, (7)
CaIEMA FY 10 Grant Assurances, attached hereto as Exhibit E and made
a part hereof, and (8) this Agreement. Subrecipient shall use the Grant
Funds allocated to it to support the goals and objectives included in the
State and/or Urban Area Homeland Security Strategies as well as the
investments and projects identified in the lnvestment Justifications, which
were submitted as part of the California FY 2010 Homeland Security Grant
Program application. Further, use of the Grant Funds is limited to those
investments and projects included in the California FYl0lnvestment
Justifications submitted to DHS/FEMA/CaIEMA and evaluated through the
peer review process. Subrecipient shall comply with any cost sharing
commitments included in such FY10 lnvestment Justifications, where
applicable. Subrecipient agrees that Grant Funds will be used to
supplement existing funds for program activities, and will not supplant
(replace) non-Federal funds. Subrecipient shall assure that the Grant
Funds will support efforts related to providing an integrated mechanism to
enhance the coordination of national priority efforts to prevent, respond to,
and recover from terrorist attacks, major disasters and other emergencies.

Subrecipient hereby certifies that it has the legal authority to apply for the
financial assistance given through the Grant and has the institutional,
managerial and financial capability to ensure proper planning,

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



management and completion of its projects being funded by the Grant
Funds. Subrecipient shall assure that Grant Funds allocated to it are used
for allowable, fair and reasonable costs only and will not be transferred
between programs (state Homeland security program, urban Area
security lnitiative, citizen corps Program, and Metropolitan Medical
Response System) or fiscal years. Subrecipient shall notify City and
CaIEMA of any developments that have a significant impact on Grant
Fund supported activities of subrecipient, incruding changes to key
program staff. subrecipient shall cooperate with any assessments,
national evaluation efforts, or information or data collection requests,
including, but not limited to, the provision of any information required for
the assessment or evaluation of any activities contemplated by this
Agreement. Subrecipient shall not be delinquent in the repayment of any
Federal debt.

B. Subrecipient and the City have previously completed a mutualty approved
BudgeuExpenditure Plan, dated August 29,2013 (the "Budget"). The
Budget contains detailed listings of items and projects for expenditure
under the terms of this Agreement and the Grant, and Subrecipient shall
use the funds disbursed under this Agreement only for such items. Any
request by Subrecipient to modify the Budget must be made in writing and
must be approved in writing by the parties during the term of this
Agreement.

1. Any request by Subrecipient to modify the Budget must be made in
writing and accompanied by a completed Modification Request
Form, attached hereto as Exhibit M. All modification requests must
be approved in writing by the City during the term of this Agreement
to be effective.

2. Budget modification requests must be submitted to the City no later
than 15th day of each month before for which the modification is
sought. Submissions made after the deadline will be returned to
the Subrecipient and will not be accepted untilthe following
submission period. The City will notify the Subrecipient in writing if
modifícation requests are inaccurate and/or incomplete. lnaccurate
and/or incomplete modification requests shall be returned to the
Subrecipient for revision and shall be accepted by the City when
modification requests are accurate and complete. Subrecipient
shall not expend any Grant Funds on modified budget items until
such modification is approved by the City and CaIEMA/Grantor.

3. Final modification requests must be submitted to the City no later
than 80 days prior to the end of the applicable Grant performance
period deadline to provide the City time to meet CaIEMA/Grantor
requirements. At that time, any unexpended funds may be re-
directed to other needs across the LA/LBUA. The City will notify

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 10
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



subrecipient, in writing, when unexpended balances may be re-
dírected.

Subrecipient has completed a UASI 10 Timeline ("Timeline") setting forth
project milestones, deliverables and a schedule of payments,
reimbursements and expenditures for Grant Funds. such rimelíne, as
approved by the city, is attached hereto as Exhibit r. Amendments or
modifications to such Timeline, including periodic updates, shall be made
deemed effective only upon prior written approvar of the city.
Subrecipient shall notify the City of any such contemplated amendments,

modifications or updates to the Timeline in a timely manner. Subrecipient
shall provide timely status reports and any other reports requested by the
city regarding subrecipient's project performance under the
Timeline. The completion of each milestone and deliverable referenced in
the Timeline is subject to the prior review and written approval of the
city. Failure to meet any milestones or deadlines as set forth in
subrecipient's uASl 10 Timeline may result in the city reducing Grant
Funds allocated to the Subrecipient, as more fully set forth in gãOt of ttris
Agreement."

subrecipient shall initiate and complete work on a project within the
applicable time frame after receipt of approval for such project from
calEMA. calEMA may grant extensions to the time of peiormance for a
project at its sole discretion. Any request by Subrecipient to extend the
time of performance for a project must be made in writing to the Mayor's
office. All extension requests must be approved by catÈn¡R in writing
during the term of this Agreement to be effective.

Project extension requests must be submitted to the City no later than 120
days before the end of the applicable project time of performance. The
City will notify the Subrecipient in writing if project extension requests are
inaccurate and/or incomplete. lnaccurate and/or incomplete project
extension requests shall be returned to the Subrecipient for reviéion and
shall be accepted by the city when project extension requests are
accurate and complete.

Any equipment acquired pursuant to thís Agreement shall be authorized
subject to, and in compliance with the calEMA 1o supplement, GMMs,
uASl Authorized Equipment List (https://www. rkb. us), DHS lnformation
Bulletins, and DHS 10 Guidance, which includes part v: Application and
Submission Subpart E Funding Restrictions (attached as Exhibit F hereto
and made a part hereof), and part Vlll, other lnformation - HSGp
Allowable costs, HSGP Allowable Expenses, Alrowable planning,
Training, organization, and Exercise Examples specific to Law
E nforcement Terrorism Preventio n-o riented Activities (attached as Exh i bit
G hereto and made a part hereof). subrecipient shall provide the city a
copy of its most current procurement guidelines and follow its own

C.

D.

E.

F.

t1UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



procurement requirements as long as they meet the minimum federal
requirements, which ínclude, but are not limited to, those regulations set
forth in OMB Circulars A-87 , A-21 , A-21 , A-102 A-1 10, A_1t2, A_133,
Executive Order (E.O.) 12372, Title 28 CFR Parts 66 and 70, the current
editions of the OJP Financial Guide and the DHS Financial Management
Guide, and Title 44 CFR Part 13.

Any equipment acquíred or obtained with Grant Funds:

1. shall be made available pursuant to applicable terms of the
California Disaster and Civil Defense Master Mutual Aid Agreement
in consultation with representatives of the various fire, emergency
medical, hazardous materials response services, and law
enforcement agencies within the jurisdiction of the LA/LBUA, and
deployed with personnel trained in the use of such equipment in a
manner consistent with the California Law Enforcement Mutual Aid
Plan or the California Fire Services and Rescue Mutual Aid Plan;

2. Shall be consistent with needs as identified in the State Hometand
Security Strategy and will be deployed in conformance with that
Strategy.

G. For the purposes of this subsection, "Equipment" is defined as
nonexpendable property that is not consumed or does lose its identity by
being incorporated into another item of equipment, which costs $5,000 or
more per unit, or is expected to have a useful life of one (1) year or more.
Items costing less than $5,000, but falling into the following óategories are
also considered Equipment: (1) electronics communications equþment for
stationary or vehicular use, including cellular telephones acquired by lease
or purchase, and (2) electronic office equipment, including facsimile
machines, copiers, electric typewriters, personal computeis (monitors and
CPU's), terminals and printers.

1. Equipment shall be used by Subrecipient in the program or project
for which it was acquired as rong as needed, whethér or not the
project or program continues to be supported by Federalfunds.
when no longer needed for the original program or project, the
Equipment may be used in other activities currently or þreviously
supported by a Federal agency.

2- Subrecipient shall make Equipment available for use on other
projects or programs currenfly or previously supported by the
Federal Government, providing such use will not interfere with the
work on the projects or program for which it was originally acquired.
First preference for other use shall be given to other programs or
projects supported by the awarding agency.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement t2
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



3. An equipment ledger, attached hereto as Exhibit l, shall be
maintained for each item of Equipment acquired for the program.
This record must be updated quarterly and fonryarded to the city
along with completed reimbursement request forms (Exhibit p),
when applicable. Records must be retained pursuant to 2g CFR
Part 66, the current editions of the OJP Financial Guide and the
DHS Financial Management Guide, and Tifle 44 CFR part 13. For
each piece of equipment, the record shall include:

(a) The line item number and project number as stated in the
Budget

(b) The equipment description as stated in the Budget

(c) The Authorized Equipment Listing number (AEL) found at
http://www. rkb. mipt.org

(d) The AEL title

(e) The invoice number

(Ð The vendor

(g) Total cost (prime vendor)

(h) Total cost (general)

(i) Cash request #

û) Acquired date

(k) lD Tag #

(l) The condition and disposition of the equipment, indicating
whether it is new or used

(m) The deployed location, including the address and/or name of
the facility where the equipment is located

(n) The name and contact information to whom the equipment is
assigned.

(o) Environmental and Historical Preservation (EHp) Notes

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 13

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



4. All equipment obtained under this Agreement shall have an
LA/LBUA identification decal affixed to it, and, when practical, shail
be affixed where it is readily visible. subrecipient also agrees that,
when practicable, any equipment purchased with Grant Funds shail
be prominently marked as follows: "Purchased with funds provided
by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security;'

A physical inventory of the Equipment shall be taken and the
results reconciled with the Equipment records at least once every
year.

Subrecipient must obtain a performance bond for any equipment
item over $250,000; or any vehicle, aviation or watercraft
(regardless of the cost) financed with UASI grant funds.

Requests for aviation equipment must be made in writing and
accompanied by a completed Aviation Equipment Request form,
attached hereto as Exhibit Q.

Requests to establish or enhance Emergency Operation Centers
(EOCs) must be made in writing and accompanied by a completed
Establish/Enhance Eoc Request form, attached hereto as Exhibit
R.

Requests to establish or enhance the LA/LBUA Joint Regional
lntelligence Center (JRIC) must be made in writing and
accompanied by a completed Establish/Enhance JRIC Request
form, attached hereto as Exhibit S.

Aviation, EOC and JRIC Request forms must be approved by
CaIEMA in writing during the term of this Agreement. Request
forms must be submitted to the City within 60 days of project
commencement date. Purchases may not be made nor may the
project commence until Request forms are submitted to and
approved by the city. The city will notify the subrecipient in writing
if Request forms are inaccurate andior incomplete. lnaccurate
and/or incomplete Request forms shall be returned to the
Subrecipient for revision and shall be accepted by the City when
Request forms are accurate and complete.

lf applicable, Subrecipient must meet the deadline for the any
equipment items listed in its UASI 10 Timeline, as approved by the
City.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement t4
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



12- Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement,
Equipment must meet all mandatory regulatory and/or DHS-
adopted standards to be eligible for purchase using Grant Funds.
ln addition, subrecipient shall be responsibre for obtaining and
maintaining all necessary certifications and licenses for the
requested Equipment.

Any training paid pursuant to this Agreement shall be authorized subject
to, and in compliance with the CaIEMA 10 Supplement, GMMs, DHS
Information Bulletins, and DHS 10 Guidance, which includes part V:
Application and Submission Subpart E Funding Restrictions (attached as
Exhibit F hereto and made a paft hereof), and part Vlll, other lnformation
- HSGP Allowable costs, HSGP Allowable Expenses, Allowable planning,
Training, and Exercise Examples Specific to Law Enforcement Terrorism
Prevention-oriented Activities (attached as Exhibit G hereto and made a
part hereof) and must be pre-authorized by CaIEMA at
http://www. ohs. ca.qov/hseep/Trai n i nq Ho me. htm L A cata log ue of G ra nto r
approved and sponsored training courses are available at
http ://www.fi rstrespo nd e rtra i n i nq. qov/od p we bfo rm s.

Any exercise pursuant to this Agreement shall be authorized subject to,
and in compliance with the CaIEMA 10 Supplement, GMMs, DHS
lnformation Bulletins, and DHS 10 Guidance, which includes part v:
Application and Submissíon Subpart E Funding Restrictions (attached as
Exhibit F hereto and made a part hereof), and part Vlll, other lnformation
- HSGP Allowable costs, HSGP Allowable Expenses, Allowable planning,
Training, and Exercise Examples specific to Law Enforcement Terrorism
Prevention-oriented Activities (attached as Exhibit G hereto and made a
part hereof). Detailed Homeland security Exercise and Evaluation
Program Guidance is available at http://hseep.dhs.qov.

Any planning paid pursuant to this Agreement shall be authorized subject
to, and in compliance with the CaIEMA 10 Supplement, GMMs, DHS
lnformation Bulletins, and DHS 10 Guidance, which includes part V:
Application and Submissíon Subpart E Funding Restrictions (attached as
Exhibit F hereto and made a part hereof), and part vlll, other lnformation
- HSGP Allowable costs, HSGP Allowable Expenses, Allowable planning,
Training, and Exercise Examples specific to Law Enforcement Terrorism
Prevention-oriented Activities (attached as Exhibit G hereto and made a
paft hereof). Subrecipient must have a City approved, tangible deliverable
for the planning project. Reference materials and additional details are
available at http://www.calema.ca.qov

H.

l.

J.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 15

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



K. Funds utilized to establish or enhance state and local fusion centers must
support the development of a statewide fusion process that corresponds
with the Global Justice/Homeland security Advisory council (HSAC)
Fusion center Guidelines, follow the Federal and state approved privacy
policies, and achieve (at a minimum) a baserine level of capability as
defined by the Fusion Capability Planning Tool.

Any organizational activities paid pursuant to this Agreement shall be
authorized subject to, and in compliance with the CaIEMA 10 supplement,
GMMs, DHS lnformation Bulletins, and DHS 10 Guidance, which includes
Part V: Application and submission subpart E Funding Restrictions
(attached as Exhibit F hereto and made a part hereof), and part Vlll, other
lnformation - HSGP Allowable costs, HSGP Alrowabre Expenses,
Allowable Planning, Training, and Exercise Examples specific to Law
Enforcement Terrorism Prevention-o riented Activities (attached as Exh i bit
G hereto and made a part hereof). Plans and reports shall be in the form
requested by the city, and shall be provided in a timely manner.

As required by calEMA, the city shall provide Subrecipient with an
electronic, interactive, Financial Management Forms Workbook, based on
the pro forma template, incorporated herein by reference. subrecipient
shall continuously maintain the Project Management Workbook to access,
complete and update the following documents:

(1) Reimbursement Checklist
(2) Reimbursement Request Form
(3) Equ¡pment Ledger
(4) Training Roster
(5) Exercise Roster
(6) Planning Roster

Any and all requests for sole source procurements or contracts must be
approved by the City and CaIEMA prior to Subrecipient entering into such
contract. such request shall be made on a sole source Request Form, as
attached hereto as Exhibit N. Any such request may be denied by city
and CaIEMA in their sole discretion.

L.

M.

N.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement I6
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



1il.

PAYMENT

5301. Pavment of Grant Funds and Method of pavment

A. The City of Los Angeles shall disburse to Subrecipient its allocated Grant
amount of Nineteen Million, Four Hundred Six Thousand, Seventy-Nine
Dollars ($19,406,079.00) to be used for purchase of equipment, planning,
exercises, organizational activities, and training as described in Section
202 above. The Grant Amount represents the amount altocated to
Subrecipient in the UASI 10 grant award and the Budget, as provided by
the Subrecipient. The disbursement shall be made on a reimbursemeni
basis only.

Subrecipient shall maintain procedures to minimize the time elapsing
between the award of Grant Funds and the expenditure of funds to be
reimbursed by such Grant Funds.

B. Subrecipient shall prepare, maintain and provide to the City invoices
requesting payment as well as purchase orders, proof of delivery, proof of
payment and payroll records, timesheets, receipts and any other
supporting documentation necessary to fully and accurately describe the
expenditure of funds for which reimbursement from Grant Funds is sought
under this Agreement. All such supporting documentation shall satisfy
applícable federal, state and City audit and review standards and
requirements. Such documentation shall be prepared at the sole expense
and responsibility of the Subrecipient, and the City will not reimburse the
Subrecipient for any costs incurred for such preparation. The City may
request, in writing, changes to the content and format of such
documentation at any time, and the City reserves the right to request
additional supporting documentation to substantiate costs incurred at any
time. In addition, each reimbursement request shall be accompanied by
the Reimbursement Request Form (attached hereto as Exhibit P) and
Equipment Ledger (Exhibit l), Training Roster (Exhibit J), Planning Roster
(Exhibit L) and/or Exercise Roster (Exhibit K), as applicable, detaiing the
expenditures made by Subrecipient as authorized by Section 202 above.
For equipment for which Subrecipient is requesting reimbursement, an
equipment ledger (Exhibit l) and all appropriate back-up documentation
must be attached to the reimbursement form, including invoices and
supporting documentation, including proof of payment and proof of
delivery. For training and exercise reimbursements, Subrecipient must
include a copy of the class training roster (attached hereto as Exhibit L) or
class exercise roster (attached hereto as Exhibit K) verifying training
attendees, proof that a CaIEMA tracking number has been assigned to the
course, and supporting documentation, including timesheets and payroll
registers for all training attendees.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement I7
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



1. The Grantor seeks to encourage Regional projects, where two or
more jurisdictions or urban Areas join together on a given project
for the common good of the region. For regional project
reimbursements, subrecipient must include approvar from the lead
agency for all submitted invoices.

2. Reimbursement requests must be submitted to the City in
accordance with the approved rimeline, attached as Exhibit r
hereto.

Requests for reimbursement submitted not in accordance with the
schedule set forth in such timeline shall be deemed ineligible for
reimbursement. Modifications or amendments to such timeline shall
be effective only by written consent of both the City and
Subrecipient.

The city will notify the subrecipient in writing if reimbursement
requests are inaccurate and/or incomplete. lnaccurate and/or
incomplete reimbursement requests shall be returned to the
subrecipient for revision and shall be accepted by the city when
reimbursement requests are accurate and complete.

Payment of final invoices shall be withheld by the city until the city has
determined that Subrecipient has turned in all supporting documentation
and satisfied the requirements of this Agreement.

lf applicable, Subrecipient must account separately for all interest income
earned from the Grant Funds. ln accordance with OJP financial guidelines
and 44 cFR Part 13, interest earned on Grant Funds must be reported
and returned to the City. Subrecipient will maintain records of and account
for any interest earned, if applicable, on Grant Funds. rf appricabre,
Subrecipient shall promptly return to the City all Grant Funds received
which exceed the approved, actual expenditures as accepted by calEMA
and Grantor.

It is understood that the city makes no commitment to fund this
Agreement beyond the terms set forth herein. In the event the amount of
the Grant Funds allocated to Subrecipient is reduced, the City shall timely
provide written notice to Subrecipient of such reduction and the
reimbursement payable to the Subrecipient will be reduced accordingly for
expenditures incurred following such notice of reduction, provided,
however, that, for reductions in Grant Funds allocation made pursuant to
section 301 H below, the reduction in reimbursement payable to the
subrecipient shall be made without regard to whether subrecipient's
expenditures were made prior to such notice of reduction. All such
reductions shall be in accordance with the applicable Grant regulations.

D.

c.

E.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 18

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



This section intentionally blank.

Funding for all periods of this Agreement is subject to the continuing
availability to the City of federal funds for this program from the Grantor.
The Agreement may be terminated immediately upon written notice to
Subrecipient of such loss or reduction of federal grant funds.

Subject to Section 301 8.2, the City reserves the right at any time to modify in
accordance with the applicable Grant regulations the amount of Grant Funds
allocated to the Subrecipient in this Agreement in the event that the
Subrecipient does not meet milestone spending deadlines or other project
milestones for their contemplated projects as set forth in Subrecipient's UASI
10 Timeline. The Subrecipient will be notified in writing of such modifications
made to its allocation of Grant Funds for failure to meet milestones or
deadlines set foÍh in its UASI 10 Timeline. Such modificatíons include, but
are not limited to, suspension, termination or reduction of Grant Funds
allocated to the Subrecipient. In addition, Subrecipient shall promptly repay
to City any reimbursement made for Subrecipient's expenditures made not in
accordance with the approved UASI 10 Timeline.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANKI

F.

G.

H.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement t9
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



lv.
STANDARD PROVISIONS

S401. Construction of Provisions and Titles Herein

Alltitles, subtitles, or headings in this Agreement have been inserted for
convenience and shall not be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of
any of the terms or provisions hereof. The language of this Agreement shall be
construed according to its fair meaning and not strictly for or against either party.
The word "Subrecipient" herein and in any amendments hereto includes the party
or parties identified in this Agreement. The singular shall include the plural. lf
there is more than one Subrecipient as identified herein, unless expressly stated
othen¡rrise, their obligations and liabilities hereunder shall be joint and several.
Use of the feminine, masculine, or neuter genders shall be deemed to include the
genders not used.

5402. Applicable Law. lnterpretation and Enforcement

Each party's performance hereunder shall comply with all applicable laws of the
United States of America, the State of California and the County of Los Angeles,
including but not limited to, laws regarding health and safety, labor and
employment, wage and hours and licensing laws which affect employees. This
Agreement shall be enforced and interpreted under the laws of the State of
California and the City without regard to conflict of law principles. Subrecipient
shall comply with new, amended, or revised laws, regulations, andior procedures
that apply to the performance of this Agreement.

ln any action arising out of this Agreement, Subrecipient consents to personal
jurisdiction, and agrees to bring all such actions, exclusively in state and federal
courts located in Los Angeles County, California.

lf any part, term or provision of this Agreement shall be held void, illegal,
unenforceable, or in conflict with any law of a federal, state or local government
having jurisdiction over this Agreement, the validity of the remaining pafts, terms
or provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby.

5403. lnteqrated Aqreement

This Agreement sets forth all of the rights and duties of the parties with respect to
the subject matter hereof, and replaces any and all previous agreements or
understandings, whether written or oral, relating thereto. This Agreement may be
amended only as provided for herein.

UASI l0 Subrecipient Agreement 20
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



5404. Excusable Delavs

ln the event that performance on the part of any party hereto shall be delayed or
suspended as a result of circumstances beyond the reasonable control and
without the fault and negligence of said party, none of the parties shall incur any
liability to the other parties as a result of such delay or suspension.
Circumstances deemed to be beyond the control of the parties hereunder shall
include, but not be limited to, acts of God or of the public enemy; insurrection;
acts of the Federal Government or any unit of State or Local Government in
either sovereign or contractual capacity; fires; floods; epidemics; quarantine
restrictions; strikes, freight embargoes or delays in transportation; to the extent
that they are not caused by the party's willful or negligent acts or omissions and
to the extent that they are beyond the party's reasonable control.

5405. Breach

Except for excusable delays as described in $404 herein, if any party fails to
perform, in whole or in paÍ, any promise, covenant, or agreement set forth
herein, or should any representation made by it be untrue, any aggrieved party
may avail itself of all rights and remedies, at law or equity, in the courts of law.
Said rights and remedies are cumulative of those provided for herein except that
in no event shall any party recover more than once, suffer a penalty or forfeiture,
or be unjustly compensated.

5406. Prohibition Aqainst Assiqnment or Deleqation

Subrecipient may not, unless it has first obtained the written permission of the
City:

A. Assign or othenruise alienate any of its rights hereunder, including the right
to payment; or

B. Delegate, subcontract, or othenvise transfer any of its duties hereunder.

5407. Permits

Subrecipient and its directors, officers, agents, employees and
contractors/subcontractors, to the extent allowed hereunder, shall obtain and
maintain all licenses, permits, certifications and other documents necessary for
Subrecipient's performance hereunder and shall pay any fees required therefore.
subrecipient certifies to immediately notify the city of any suspension,
termination, lapses, non-renewals or restrictions of licenses, permits, certificates,
or other documents.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 21

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



5408. Nondiscrimination and Affirmative Action

A. Subrecipient shall comply with the applicable nondiscrimination and
affirmative action provisions of the laws of the United States of America,
the State of Californía and the County of Los Angeles. ln performing this
Agreement, the Subrecipient shall not discriminate in its employment
practices against any employee or applicant for employment because of
such person's race, religion, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual
orientation, age, physical handicap, mental disability, marital status,
domestic partner status, or medical condition. The Subrecipient shall
complywith Executive Order 11246, entitled "Equal Employment
Opportunity", as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as
supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR Part 60).

B. (This section intentionally left blank.)

C. Any subcontract entered into by the Subrecipient relating to this
Agreement, to the extent allowed hereunder, shall be subject to the
provisions of this paragraph.

5409. Los Anqeles Citv Business Tax Reqistration Certificate

Under the terms of this Agreement, the City's Business Tax Ordinance (Article 1,
Chapter 2, Sections 21.00 and following, of the Los Angeles Municipal Code) is
not applicable.

S410. Bonds

Duplicate copies of all bonds, which may be required hereunder, shall conform to
City requirements established by charter, ordinance or policy and allfederal
requirements regarding the use of Grant Funds and shall be filed with the Office
of the City Administrative Officer, Risk Management for its review in accordance
with Los Angeles Administrative Code Sections 11.47 through 11.56.

S411. lndemnification

Each of the parties to this Agreement is a public entity. ln contemplation of the
provisions of Section 895.2 of the Government Code of the State of California
imposing certain toft liability jointly upon public entities, solely by reason of such
entities being parties to an Agreement as defined by Section 895 of said Code,
the parties hereto, as between themselves, pursuant to the authorization
contained in Sectíon 895.4 and 895.6 of said Code, will each assume the full
liability imposed upon it or upon any of its officers, agents, or employees by law,
for injury caused by a negligent or wrongful act or omission occurring in the
performance of this Agreement, to the same extent that such liability would be

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 22
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



imposed in the absence of Section 895.2 of said Code. To achieve the above-
stated purpose, each party indemnifies and holds harmless the other party solely
by viftue of said Section 895.2. The provision of Section 2778 of the California
Civil Code is made a part hereto as if fully set forth herein. Subrecipient certifies
that it has adequate self insured retention of funds to meet any obligation arising
from this Agreement.

A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4 and 895.6, the parties shall
each assume the full liability imposed upon it, or any of its officers, agents
or employees, by law for injury caused by any negligent or wrongful act or
omission occurring in the performance of this Agreement.

B. Each party indemnifies and holds harmless the other party for any loss,
costs, or expenses that may be imposed upon such other party by virtue
of Government Code section 895.2, which imposes joint civil liability upon
public entities solely by reason of such entities being parties to an
agreement, as defined by Government Code section B9S.

C. ln the event of third-party loss caused by negligence, wrongful act or
omission by both Parties, each party shall bear financial responsibility in
proportion to its percentage of fault as may be mutually agreed or judicially
determined. The provisions of Civil Code Section 2778 regarding
interpretation of indemnity agreements are hereby incorporated.

5412. Conflict of Interest

A. Subrecipient shall establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using
their positions for a purpose that constitutes, or presents the appearance
of, personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain for
themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have family,
business, or other ties. Subrecipient covenants that none of its directors,
officers, employees, or agents shall participate in selecting, or
administrating any subcontract supported (in whole or in part) by Federal
funds where such person is a director, officer, employee or agent of the
subcontractor; or where the selection of subcontractors is or has the
appearance of being motivated by a desire for personal gain for
themselves or others such as family business, etc.; or where such person
knows or should have known that:

1. A member of such person's immediate family (as such term is
defined under the California Political Reform Act, California
Government Code S 87100 et seq.), or domestic partner or
organization has a financial interest in the subcontract;

2. The subcontractor is someone with whom such person has or is
negotiating any prospective employment; or

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 23
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



3. The participation of such person would be prohibited by 44 CFR
Section 13.36 or the California Political Reform Act, California
Government Code 587100 et seq. if such person were a public
officer, because such person would have a "financial or other
interest" in the subcontract.

B. Definitions:

1. The term "immediate family" shall be as defined under the
applicable provisions of the California Political Reform Act,
California Government Code S 87100 et seq.

2. The term "financial or other interest" includes but is not limited to:

a. Any direct or indirect financial interest in the specific
contract, including a commission or fee, a share of the
proceeds, prospect of a promotion or of future employment,
a profit, or any other form of financial reward.

b. Any of the following interests in the subcontractor ownership:
partnership interest or other beneficial interest of five percent
or more; ownership of five percent or more of the stock;
employment in a managerial capacity; or membership on the
board of directors or governing body.

(This section intentionally left blank.)

The Subrecipient further covenants that no officer, director, employee, or
agent shall solicit or accept gratuities, favors, anything of monetary value
from any actual or potential subcontractor, supplier, a party to a sub
agreement, (or persons who are otherwise in a position to benefit from the
actions of any officer, employee, or agent).

The Subrecipient shall not subcontract with a former director, officer, or
employee within a one year period following the termination of the
relationship between saíd person and the Subrecipient.

Prior to obtaining the City's approval of any subcontract, the Subrecipient
shall disclose to the City any relationship, financial or otherwise, direct or
indirect, of the Subrecipient or any of its officers, directors or employees or
their immediate family with the proposed subcontractor and its officers,
d irectors or employees.

For further clarification of the meaning of any of the terms used herein, the
parties agree that references shall be made to the guidelines, rules, and
laws of the City of Los Angeles, State of California, and Federal
regulations regarding conflict of interest.

c.

D.

E.

F.

G.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 24
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



H. The Subrecipient warrants that it has not paid or given and will not pay or
give to any third person any money or other consideration for obtaining
this Agreement.

l. The Subrecipient covenants that no member, officer or employee of
Subrecipient shall have interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or
subcontract or the proceeds thereof for work to be performed in
connection with this project during his/her tenure as such employee,
member or officer or for one year thereafter.

J. The Subrecipient shall incorporate the foregoing subsections of this
Section into every agreement that it enters into ín connection with this
project and shall substitute the term "subcontractor" for the term
"Contractor" and "sub subcontractor" for "Subcontractor".

S413. lnsurance

This section is not applicable to this Agreement, and is intentionally left blank.

S414. Restriction on Disclosures

Any repofts, analysis, studies, drawings, information, or data generated as a
result of this Agreement are to be governed by the California Public Records Act
(California Government Code Sec. 6250 et seq.).

S415. Compliance with State and Federal Statutes and Requlations

A. Statutes and Requlations Applicable To All Grant Contracts

Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable requirements of Federal,
State and County laws, executive orders, regulations, program and
administrative requirements, policies and any other requirements
governing this Agreement. Subrecipient shall comply with state and
federal laws and regulations pertaining to labor, wages, hours, and other
conditions of employment. Subrecipient shall comply with new, amended,
or revised laws, regulations, and/or procedures that apply to the
performance of this Agreement. These requirements include, but are not
limited to:

1. Office of Manaqement and Budoet (OMB) Circulars

Subrecipient shall comply with OMB Circulars, as applicable: OMB
Circular A-21 (Cost Principles for Educational lnstitutions); OMB
Circular A-87 (Cost Principles for State, Local, and lndian Tribal
Governments); OMB Circular A-102 (Grants and Cooperative
Agreements with State and Local Governments); Common Rule,
Subpart C for public agencies or OMB Circular A-1 10 (Uniform

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 25
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



2.

Administrative Requirements for Grants and other Agreements with
lnstitutions of Higher Education, Hospitals and other Non-profit
organizations); oMB circular A-122 (cost Principles for Non-profit
Organizations); OMB Circular A-133 (Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

Sinqle Audit Act

lf Federal funds are used in the performance of this Agreement,
Subrecipient shall, as applicable, adhere to the rules and
regulations of the Single Audit Act, 31 USC Sec. 7501 et seq.; City
Council action dated February 4, 19BT (C.F. No. 84 2259 51); and
any administrative regulation or field memos implementing such
Act.

Americans with Disabilities Act

Subrecipient hereby certifies that, as applicable, it will comply with
the Americans with Disabilities Act 1990 ("ADA"), 42 USC SS 12101
et seq., and its implementing regulations, including subtifle A, Tifle
ll of the ADA. As applicable, subrecipient will provide reasonable
accommodations to allow qualified individuals with disabilities to
have access to and to participate in its programs, services and
activities in accordance with the provisions of the ADA.
subrecipient will not discriminate against persons with disabilities
nor against persons due to their relationship to or association with a
person with a disability. Any contract entered into by the
Subrecipient (or any subcontract thereof), relating to this
Agreement, to the extent allowed hereunder, shall be subject to the
provisions of this paragraph.

Political and Sectarian Actívitv Prohibited

a. None of the funds, materials, property or services provided
directly or indirectly under this Agreement shall be used for
any partisan political activity, or to further the election or
defeat of any candidate for public office. subrecipient shail
not use any funds provided under this Agreement be used,
directly or indirectly, to support the enactment, defeat,
repeal, modification or adoption of any law, regulation,
pending legislation, pending regulation, or policy (pending or
otherwise), at any level of government. None of the funds
provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be used for any
sectarian purpose or to support or benefit any sectarian
activity.

3.

4.

26UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



5.

b. Concurrent with the execution of this Agreement,
Subrecipient shall submit to the City a Certification
Regarding Lobbying and a Disclosure Form in accordance
with 31 U.S.C. 1352. A copy of the Certificate is attached
hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein. No funds will
be released to Subrecipient until the Certification is filed.

c. Subrecipient shall file a Disclosure Form at the end of each
calendar quarter in which there occurs any event requiring
disclosure or which materially affects the accuracy of any of
the information contained in any Disclosure Form previously
filed by Subrecipient. Subrecipient shall require that the
language of this Certification be included in the award
documents for all sub-awards at alltiers and that all
subcontractors shall certify and disclose accordingly.

Records lnspection

a. At any time during normal business hours and as often as
the City, the Federal government, the GeneralAccounting
Office, the Comptroller General of the United States, the
State of California and the Office of lnspector General may
deem necessary, Subrecipient shall make available for
examination all of its records with respect to all matters
covered by this Agreement. Subrecipient hereby gives City,
the Federal government, the General Accounting Office, the
Comptroller General of the United States, the State of
California and the Office of lnspector General, through any
authorized representative, access to, and the right to
examine, audit and make excerpts or transcripts of, all paper
or electronic records, books, or documents related to the
Grant Funds and all matters covered by this Agreement,
including, but not limited to all Subrecipient's invoices,
materials, payrolls, records of personnel, conditions of
employment and other data.

b. Subrecipient agrees to provide any reports requested by the
City regarding performance of the Agreement.

Records Maintenance

Records, in their original form, shall be maintained in accordance
with requirements prescribed by the City and CaIEMA/Grantor with
respect to all matters covered on file for all documents specified in
this Agreement. Original forms are to be maintained on file for all
documents specified in this Agreement. Such records shall be
retained for a period of five (5) years after termination of this

6.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 27
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Agreement and after final disposition of all pending matters.
"Pending matters" include, but are not limited to, an audit, litigation
or other actions involving records. The City may, at its discretion,
take possession of, retain and audit said records. Records, in their
original form pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement, shall
at all times be retained within the County of Los Angeles unless
authorization to remove them is granted in writing by the City.
Subrecipient shall establish a proper accounting system in
accordance with generally accepted accounting standards and/or
Ca I EMA/G ranto r d i rectives.

7. Subcontracts and Procurement

Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, with the State, Federal
and Subrecipient standards in the award of any subcontracts. For
purposes of this Agreement, subcontracts shall include but not be
limited to purchase agreements, rental or lease agreements, third
party agreements, consultant service contracts and construction
subcontracts.

Subrecipient shall ensure that the terms of this Agreement with the
City are incorporated into all subcontract agreements. Subrecipient
shall submit all Subcontractor Agreements to the City for review
prior to the release of anv funds to the subcontractor. Subrecipient
shall withhold funds to any subcontractor agency that fails to
comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and their
respective su bcontract agreement.

B. Labor

a. Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, with the
lntergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C.
554728-4763) relating to prescribed standards for merit
systems for programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or
regulations specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for
a Merit System Personnel Administration (5 CFR 900,
Subpart F).

b. Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, with the provisions
of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. SS276a to 276a-7),lhe
Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. $276c and 18 U.S.C. 9874), the
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C.
SS32 7-333), rega rd i n g labo r standa rd s fo r federal ly-assisted
construction subagreements, and the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C.
SS1501-1508 and7324-7328), which limit the political
activities of employees whose principal employment
activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 28
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



c. Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, with the Federal
Fair Labor Standards Act (29 U.S.C. S 201), as they apply to
employees of institutions of higher education, hospitals, and
other non-profit organizations.

d. None of the funds shall be used to promote or deter
union/labor organizing activities in accordance with
California Government Code S16645 et seq.

9. Civíl Rishts

Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, with all Federal and State
statutes relating to civíl ríghts and nondiscrimination. These include
but are not limited to: (a) Title Vl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
(P.L. 88-352), as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title lX of the Education
Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. SS1681- 1683, and
1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c)
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29
U.S.C. 5794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of
handicaps; (d) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended
(42 U.S.C.556101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Actof 1972
(P.L.92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the
basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and
Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970
(P.L.91-616) as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the
basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) SS523 and 527 of the
Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. SS290 dd-3 and 290
ee-3), as amended, relatíng to confidentiality of alcohol and drug
abuse patient records; (h) Title Vlll of the Civil Rights Act of 1968
(42 U.S.C. 553601 et seq.), as amended, relating to non-
discrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) Title 44
Code of Regulations (CFR) Parts 7 , 16, and 19 relating to
nondiscrimination; (j) the requirements of any other
nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which
application for Federal assistance is being made; (k) the
nondiscrimination requirements and all other provisions of the
current edition of the OJP Financial and Administrative Guide for
Grants, M7100.1 ; and (l) P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of
human subjects involved in research, development, and related
activities supported by this award of assistance.

In the event that a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination after a due
process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national
origin, gender or disability against Subrecipient or any of its

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 29
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



subgrantees, contractors or subcontractors being funded with Grant
Funds, the Subrecipient will forward a copy of the finding to the City
and the Office of Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs.

10. Environmental

a. Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, or has already
complied, with the requirements of Titles ll and lll of the
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. 54601 et seq.
[P.L. 91-646]) which provide for fair and equitable treatment
of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a
result of Federal or Federally-assisted programs. These
requirements apply to all interests in real propefty acquired
for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in
purchases. Subrecipient shall also comply with Title 44
CFR, Parl25, Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisition for Federal and Federally-assisted
programs.

b. Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, with, and provide
any information requested by DHSiFEMA/CaIEMA to ensure
compliance with, the following laws: (a) institution of
environmental quality control measures under the National
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and
Executive Orders (EO) 11514 and 12898; (b) notification of
violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of
wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood
hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 1 1988; (e)
assurance of project consistency with the approved State
management program devefoped under the CoastalZone
Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. SS1451 et seq.); (f)
conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air)
lmplementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air
Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. SS7401 et seq.); (g)
protection of underground sources of drinking water under
the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-
523); (h) protection of endangered species under the
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93205);
and (i) the flood insurance purchase requirements of the
Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 51 02(a) (P.1. 93-234)
which requires recipients of Federal funds in a special flood
hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase
flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and
acquisition is ten thousand dollars ($10,000) or more.

30UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



c. Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable Federal, State,
and local environmental and historical preservation (EHP)
requirements. Failure to meet Federal, State, and local EHP
requirements and obtain applicable permits may jeopardize
Federal funding. Subrecipient shall comply with all
conditions placed on any pro¡ect as the result of the EHP
review, and any change to the scope of work of a project will
require re-evaluation of compliance with these EHP
requirements. Subrecipient agrees not undertake any
project having the potentialto impact the EHP resources
without prior written approval of City and
DHS/FEMA/CaIEMA, including, but not limited to, ground
disturbance, construction, modification to any structure,
communications towers, physical security enhancements,
and purchase and/or use of any sonar equipment. Any
construction related activities initiated prior to full EHP
review will result in a noncompliance finding. lf ground-
disturbing activities occur during the project implementation,
the Subrecipíent must ensure monitoring of the disturbance.
lf any potential archaeological resources are discovered, the
Subrecipient will immediately cease activity in that area and
notify the City and DHS/FEMA/CaIEMA and the appropriate
State Historic Preservation Office.

Subrecipient shall, as applicable, comply with the Wild and
Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. SS1271 et seq.) related
to protecting components or potential components of the
nationalwild and scenic rivers system.

Subrecipient shall comply, if applicable, with the Lead-Based
Paint Poisoning Prevention Act(42 U.S.C. SS4801 et seq.)
which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or
rehabilitation of residence structures.

Subrecipient shall, as applicable, comply with the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. S 1251 et seq.) which
restores and maintains the chemical, physical and biological
integrity of the Nation's waters.

Subrecipient shall ensure that the facilities under its
ownership, lease or supervision which shall be utilized in the
accomplishment of Subrecipient's projects are not on the
Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) List of Violating
Facilities, and it will notify the City and DHS/FEMA/CaIEMA
of the receipt of any communication from the Director of the
EPA Office of Federal Activities indicating that a facility to be

d.

e.

g.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 31

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



11.

used ¡n the project is under consideration for listing by the
EPA.

h. Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, with the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Public Resources Code
S21000 et seq. and California Code of Regulations, Title 14,
Chapter 3 Section 15000-15007, and is not impacting the
environment negatively.

i. Subrecipient shall comply with the Energy Policy and
Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871).

j. Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, with applicable
provisions of the Coastal Barrier Resources Act (P.L. g7-
348) dated October 19,1982 (16 U.S.C. 3501 et seq.) which
prohibits the expenditure of most new Federalfunds within
the units of the Coastal Barrier Resources System.

Preservation

Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, with Section 106 of the
National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C.
5470), EO I 1593 (identification and protection of historic
properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of
1974 (16 U.S.C. $$a69a-1 et seq.).

Suspension and Debarment

Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, with Federal Register,
Volume 68, Number 228, regarding Suspension and Debarment,
and Subrecipient shall submit a Certification Regarding Debarment
required by Executive Order 12549 and 12689 and any amendment
thereto (attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof).
Said Ceftification shall be submitted to the City concurrent with the
execution of this Agreement and shall certify that neither
Subrecipient nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended,
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transaction by any federal department
head or agency. Subrecipient shall require that the language of this
Certification be included in the award documents for all sub-award
at all tiers and that all subcontractors shall certify accordingly.
Subrecipient shall not make any award or permit any award
(subcontract or contract) to any party which is debarred or
suspended or is otherwise excluded from or ineligible for
participation in Federal assistance programs under Executive Order
12549 and 12689, "Debarment and Suspension."

12.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 32
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



13. Druq-FreeWorkplace

Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, with the Federai Drug-
Free Workplace Act of 1988,41 U.S.C. 9701 et. seq., 28 CFR part
67, and the California Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990,
Government Code SS 8350-8357. Subrecipient shall execute and
submit to the City concurrent with the executíon of this Agreement
the Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements
attached hereto as Exhibit D and made a part hereof.

14. Miscellaneous

Subrecipient shall comply, if applicable, with the Laboratory Animal
Welfare Act of 1966, as amended (P.L. 89-544,7 U.S.C. 992131 et
seq.), pertaining to the care, handling and treatment of warm
blooded animals held for research, teaching, or other activities
supported by these Grant Funds. Pursuant to the Consolidated
Appropriations Act of 2008 (P.L. 1 10-161) grant funds must not be
used in contravention of the federal buildings performance and
reporting requirements of Executive Order No. 13123, part 3 of Title
V of the National Energy Conservation Policy Act (42 U.S.C. 8251
et seq.) or subtitle A of Title I of the Energy Policy Act of 2005
(including the amendments made thereby), nor shall Grant Funds
be used in contravention of section 303 of the Energy Policy Act of
1ee2 (42 U.S.C. 13212).

B. Statutes and Requlations Applicable To This Particular Grant

Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable requirements of state and
federal laws, executive orders, regulations, program and administrative
requirements, policies and any other requirements governing this
particular Grant program. Subrecipient shall comply with new, amended,
or revised laws, regulations, and/or procedures that apply to the
performance of this Agreement. These requirements include, but are not
limited to:

1. Title 28 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Parts 66 and 70; EO
12372; Current edítion of the OJP Financial Guide (M7100.1);
Current editíon of the DHS Financial Management Guide; U.S.
Department of Homeland Security, Office of State and Local
Government Coordination and Preparedness, Office for Domestic
Preparedness, Urban Areas Security lnitiative Grant Program ll;
ODP WMD Training Course Catalogue; and DOJ Office for Civil
Rights Regulations; Title 2 CFR Parts 215,225,220, and 230; Tifle
44 CFR, including part 13; Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR),
Part 31.2 Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, Contracts with
Commercial Organizations; DHS 10 Guidance; CaIEMA 10

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement JJ
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Supplement; CaIEMA 10 Grant Assurances (attached hereto as
Exhibit E); DHS lnformation Bulletins; and GMMs.

2. Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS)
requirements as stated in the California Emergency Services Act,
Government Code Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2, g 8607.1(e)
and CCR Title 19, SS 2445-2448.

3. Technology Requirement:

a. Subrecipient shall use the latest National lnformation
Exchange Model (NIEM) specifications and guidelines
regarding the use of Extensible Markup Language (XML) for
all projects funded by this Grant. Further information about
the required use of NIEM specifications and guidelines is
available at www. niem.gov.

b. For any information technology system funded by Grant
Funds under this Agreement, Subrecipient shall ensure that
such project complies with 28 CFR Part23, Criminal
lntelligence Sysfems Operating Policies, if such regulation is
determined to be applicable.

4. ln accordance with section 6 of the Hotel and Motel Fire Safety
Action of 1990, 15 U.S.C. $2225a, Subrecipient shall ensure that all
conference, meeting, convention, or training space funded in whole
or in part with Grant Funds complies with the fire prevention and
control guidelines of the Federal Fire Prevention and Control Act of
1974,15 U.S.C. 52225.

C. Travel Expenses

Subrecipient as provided herein shall be compensated for reasonable
travel expenses incurred in the performance of this Agreement, to include
travel and per diem, unless otherwise expressed. Subrecipient's total
travel for in-State and/or out-of-State and per diem costs shall be included
in the contract budget(s). All travel including out-of-State travel not
included in the budget(s) shall not be reimbursed without prior written
authorization from the Mayor's Office.

Subrecipient's travel and per diem reimbursement costs shall be
reimbursed in accordance with City policy, Subrecipient's policies and
procedures, and federal rules and regulations regarding this Grant.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 34
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



D. Noncompliance

Subrecipient understands that failure to comply with any of the above
assurances or the Grant Assurances (as hereinafter defined) may result in
suspension, termination or reduction of Grant Funds, and repayment by
Subrecipient to City of any unlawful expenditures.

E. Compliance with Grant Assurances

To obtain the Grant Funds, the Grantor required an authorized
representative of the City to sign certain promises regarding the way the
Grant Funds would be spent ("Grant Assurances"), attached hereto as
Exhibit E. By signing these Grant Assurances, the City became liable to
the Grantor for any funds that are used in violation of the Grant
requirements. Subject to and without waiver of Subrecipient's rights of
protest and appeal, Subrecipient shall be liable to the Grantor for any
funds the Grantor determines that Subrecipient used in víolation of these
Grant Assurances. Subrecipient shall indemnify and hold harmless the
City for any sums the Grantor determines Subrecipient used in violation of
the Grant Assurances; provided, however, and without limiting any of the
City's rights to such indemnity, that Subrecipient does not waive any rights
of protest and appealwith respect to any such determination by Grantor.
The provisions of this paragraph shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

S416. Federal. State and Local Taxes

Federal, State and local taxes shall be the responsibility of Subrecipient as an
independent party and not as a City employee.

S417. lnventions, Patents and Copvriqhts

A. Reporting Procedure for lnventions

lf any project of Subrecipient funded under this Agreement produces any
invention or discovery ("lnvention") patentable or otherwise under Title 35
of the U.S. Code, including, without limitation, processes and business
methods made in the course of work under this Agreement, Subrecipient
shall report the fact and disclose the lnvention promptly and fully to the
City. The City shall report the fact and disclose the lnvention to the
Grantor/FEMA/CalEMA. Unless there is a prior agreement between the
City and Grantor/FEMA/CalEMA, Grantor/FEMA/ CaIEMA shall determine
whether to seek protection on the lnvention. Grantor/FEMA/CalEMA shall
determine how the rights in the lnvention, including rights under any
patent issued thereon, will be allocated and administered in order to
protect the public interest consistent with the policy ("Policy") embodied in
the FederalAcquisition Regulations System, which is based on Ch. 18 of

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 35
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Title 35 U.S.C. Sections 200 et seq. (Pub. L. 95-S1T , Pub. L. 98-620, 3Z
CFR part 401); Presidential Memorandum on Government Patent Policy to
the Heads of the Executive Departments and Agencies, dated 211811983);
and Executive Order 12591, 4110187,52 FR 13414,3 CFR, 1987 Comp.,
p.220 (as amended by Executive Order 12618, 12122187,52 FR 48661, 3
CFR, 1987 Comp., p.262). Subrecipient hereby agrees to be bound by
the Policy, will contractually require its personnel to be bound by the
Policy, and will consult with Grantor/FEMA/CalEMA regarding allocation of
any patent rights that arise from, or are purchased with, Grant Funds.

B. Riqhts to Use lnventions

City and Grantor/FEMA/CalEMA shall have an unencumbered right, and a
non-exclusive, irrevocable, royalty-free license, to use, manufacture,
improve upon, and allow others to do so for all government purposes, any
lnvention developed under this Agreement.

C. Copvriqht Policv

1. Unless othenruise provided by the terms of the Grantor/FEMA or of
this Agreement, when copyrightable material ("Material") is
developeci as part of a project funded under this Agreement, the
Grantor/FEMA, at Grantor/FEMA's discretion, may copyright the
Material. lf the Grantor/FEMA declines to copyright the Material,
the Granto/FEMA shall have an unencumbered right, and a non-
exclusive, irrevocable, royalty-free license, to reproduce, publish, or
othenryise use, and authorize others to use, for all government
purposes: (a) any Material so developed and (b) any rights of
copyright to which Subrecipient purchases ownership with Grant
Funds.

2. Contractor shall comply with 24 CFR 85.34.

D. Riqhts to Data

The Grantor shall have unlimited rights or copyright license to any data
first produced or delivered under this Agreement. "Unlimited rights"
means the right to use, disclose, reproduce, prepare derivative works,
distribute copies to the public, and perform and display publicly, or permit
others to do so; as required by 48 cFR27.401. where the data are not
first produced under this Agreement or are published copyrighted data
with the notice of 17 U.S.C. Section 401 or 402, the Grantor acquires the
data under a copyright license as set forth in 48 CFR 27.4O4(fX2) instead
of unlimited rights. (48 CFR 27.ala@\.

E. Obliqations Bindinq on Subcontractors

36UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Subrecipíent shall require all its contractors and subcontractors funded by
Grant Funds to comply with the obligations of this section by incorporating
the terms of this section into all contracts and subcontracts.

s418.
Policv

This section is not applicable to this contract, and is intentionally left blank.

S419. Earned lncome Tax Credit

Under the terms of this Agreement, Subrecipient is exempt from compliance with
the provisions of Section 10.37.4 of the Los Angeles Administrative Code.

5420. Equal Benefits Ordinance

Under the terms of this Agreement, Subrecipient is exempt from compliance with
the provisions of Section 10.37.4 of the Los Angeles Administrative Code.

5421 . Contractor Responsibilitv Ordinance

Under the terms of this Agreement, Subrecipient is exempt from compliance with
the provisions of the Contractor Responsibility Ordinance (CRO), Section 10.40
et seq., of Article 14, Chapter 1 of Division 10 of the Los Angeles Administrative
Code.

5422. Slaverv Disclosure Ordinance

Under the terms of this Agreement, Subrecipient is exempt from compliance with
the Slavery Disclosure Ordinance, Section 10.41 of the Los Angeles
Administrative Code.

5423. Child Suppod Assiqnment Orders

Under the terms of this Agreement, Subrecipient is exempt from compliance with
the Child Support Assignment Orders Ordinance, Section 10.10 of the Los
Angeles Administrative Code. Subrecipient shall comply with California Family
Code Section 5230 et seq. as applicable.

5424. Minoritv. Women. and Other Business Enterprise Outreach Prooram

Subrecipient agrees that, to the extent contractors or subcontractors are utilized
with respect to the Grant Funds awarded to Subrecipient by this Agreement,
Subrecipient shall adhere to all policies, guidelines and regulations set forlh by
the Grantor and CaIEMA regarding the use of small, minority, women-owned, or

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 37

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



disadvantaged business concerns as may be applicable to the use of the Grant
Funds.

5425. Publications

All publications created or published with funding under this Grant shall
prominently contain the following statement: "Ihrs document was prepared
under a grant from FEMA's Grant Programs Directorate, U.S. Department of
Homeland Security. Points of view or opinions expressed in thís document are
those of the authors and do not necessarily represent the officiat position or
policies of FEMA's Grant Programs Directorate or the IJ.S. Department of
Homeland Security."

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANKJ

UASI l0 Subrecipient Agreement 38
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



V.
DEFAULTS, SUSPENSION. TERMINATION. AND AMENDMENTS

5501. Defaults

Should Subrecipient fail for any reason to comply with the contractual obligations
of this Agreement within the time specified by this Agreement, the City reserves
the right to terminate the Agreement, reserving all rights under state and federal
law.

5502. (This section intentionally left blank.)

5503. (This section intentionally left blank.)

5504. (This section intentionally left blank.)

5505. Amendments

Any change in the terms of this Agreement, including changes in the services to
be performed by Subrecipient, and any increase or decrease in the amount of
compensation/allocation which are agreed to by the City and Subrecipient shall
be incorporated into this Agreement by a written amendment properly executed
and signed by the person authorized to bind the parties thereto.

Subrecipient agrees to give fair and reasonable consideration to any requested
compliance with all future City Directives, or any rules, amendments or
requirements promulgated by the City affecting this Agreement; provided,
however, that county shall comply with any such directives, rures,
amendments or requirements if such directives, rules, amendments or
requírements directly relate to and are necessary to ensure City and/or
Subrecipient compliance with applicable state and federat requirements
regarding the UASI 09 Grant Funding and its use pursuant to this Agreement.

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 39
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



vt.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT

5601. Complete Aqreement

This Agreement contains the full and complete Agreement between the two
parties. Neither verbal agreement nor conversatíon with any officer or employee
of either party shall affect or modify any of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

5602. Number of Paqes and Attachments

This Agreement is executed in three (3) duplicate originals, each of which is
deemed to be an original. This Agreement includes one (41) pages and twenty
(20) Exhibits which constitute the entire understanding and agreement of the
pafties.

IREMATNDER OF PAGE |NTENT|ONALLY LEFT BLANIq

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 40
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:
MICHAEL N. FEUER, CITY ATTORNEY

By
Deput

Date

For:
ERIC

By

THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES

ERIC GARCETTI, Mayor
Homeland Security and
Public Safety, Mayor's Office

Date Of \Éf *stt
ATTEST:

By

Date

C- rz-e-¿1r \

HOLLY WOLCOTT, I

ffi

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

JOHN F. KRATTLI
County Counsel

By

Date

For: Los Angeles Regional lnteroperable
Communications System Authority ("LA-
RICS"), a joint powers authority

By

Date 7-42s

lsEALlATTEST:

By
, LA-RICS

Secretary

Date

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Subrecipient have caused this Agreement to be
executed by their duly authorized representatives.

City Business License Number:
lnternal Revenue Service lD Number:
Council File/OARS File Number:
City Contract Number:

UASI 10 Subrecipient Agreement 41

Date of Approval

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exhibit A

lnsu rance

(Not applicable to this Agreement)

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



ExhÍbit B

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension,
lneligibility and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier

Covered Transactions

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



l.

1

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTTFICATION

By sþing and submitting this document the prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds is providing the
certification as set out below.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliancç was placed when this
ftansaction was entered into. If it is later determined thatthe prospective recipient of Federal assisønce funds
knowingly rendered an eÌroneous ceftÍfication, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government the depalment or agency with which this t¡ansaction originated may pursue available remedies,
including suspension and/or deba¡ment-

The prospective recipient of Federal assistance fi¡nds shall provide immediate written notice to the person to
which this agreement is entered, if at any timc the prospective recipient of Federal assishnce fi¡nds leams that
its certihcation \ryas erroneous, when submitted or hæ become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

The terms ncovered fransactiol¡" "debarÇd," "suspended," tineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"

"participant," "petson,t' "primary covered Fansaction," "principaÌr" "proposal,'! and "voluntarily excluded," as

used in thís clause, have the meanings s€t out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing
Executive Order 12549.

The prospective recipient of Federal assistance funds ag,ees by submitting thís proposal thag should the
proposed covered tznsaction be entered intq it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
tansaction with a person who is debaned, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorizrdby the department or agency with which this
ûansaction orþinated.

The prospective recipient of Federal assistance ftnds fufher agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspensior¡ Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
- Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification, in all lower tier covered fransactions and in all
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certihcation of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debaned, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered
tansaction, unlæs it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the List of Parties Excluded from Procurement or Non-Procurement Prosrams.

Nottring contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to
render in good faith dre certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is
not required to exceed tbat which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of busincss
dealings-

Except for transactions authorized under Paragraph 5 ofthese instructions, ifa participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered t¡ansaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntary excluded from participation i¡ this transaction, in addition to other remedíes available to
the Federal Governmenl tle departnent or agency with which this hansaction originated may pursue available
remedies, including suspension and,/or debarment.

3.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Ð(HIBIT B
CERTIFICATION REGARDING

DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, I}IELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION
LOWER TTER COVERED TR,A.NSACTIONS

This certiflrcafion is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and

Suspension, 44 CFR Part 17, Participants' responsibilities.

'(READ ATTACHED INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICÄfiON BEFORE COMPLETTNG)

1. The prospective recipient (or subrecipient) of Federal assistance funds certifies that it o¡ its
principals:

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debalment, declared ineligible,
sentenced to a denial of Federal benefits by a State o¡ Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from
covered transactions by -y Federal deparunent or agency;

(b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this Agreement been convicted of or had a

civit judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud o¡ a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or perforrning a public (Federal, State, or local)
transaction or contract under a public tansaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes

or commission of embez,zlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,

makíng false statements, or receivingstolen propefy;

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental

entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph

1(b) of this certification; and

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this Agreement had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

2.. Where the prospective recipient of Federal assistance ñ¡nds is unable to certify to any of the
statements in this certification, such prospectíve participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

AGREEMENT NUMBER

RECIPIENT/SUBRECIPIENT/CON TRACTOR/B ORRO WER/AGEN CY

NAME ANÐ TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRBSENTATIVE

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exhib¡t C

Certification Regarding Lobbying

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Certification for Contracts. Grants. Loans
and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifres, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1 . No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of
a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making
of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an off,rcer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL "Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying" in accordance with its instructions.

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and
disclose accordingly.

4. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when
this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite
for making or entering into ttris transaction imposed by Section 1352 Title 31, U.S. Code.
Any person who fails to frle the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not
less that $ 10,000 and not more than $ 100,000 for each such failure.

AGREEMENT NTIMBER

LN -pìC S

S UB RECIPIENT/CONTRACTORÆ ORROWER/AGENCY

?atVroL .-t' M"\\orn, Gvec^rhve Dirc¿{"r'
NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORTZED REPRESENTATTVE

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG FREE íTOKKPI-ACE ACT REOUIREMENTS

(Capitalized terms herein shall have those meanings set forth in the Agreement to which this Certification
is attached as an Exhibit)

The Subrecipient certihes that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free worþlace, in accordance with
the federal Drug-Free Worþlace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. 701 et sea.), 28 CFR Part 67; and the Califomia
Drug-Free Worþlace Act of 1990, Government Code $$ 8350-8357, by:

l. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing,

possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Subrecipient's worþlace and

specifring the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prõhibition.

2. Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:

The dangers of drug abuse in the worþlace;
The Subrecipient's policy of maintaining a drug-free worþlace;
Aay available drug counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and

The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace.

3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the program be given

a copy of the statement required by paragraph 1 . above.

4. Notiffing the employee in the statement required by paragraph 1. that, as a condition of employment
under theGrant program, the employee will:
a. Abide by the terms of the statement, and

b. Notif, the Subrecipient in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute

occurring in the worþlace no later than hve calendar days after such conviction.

5. Notifuing the City and Grantor, in writing, within 10 calenda¡ days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 4. b. from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to:

Department of Justice, Offrce of Justice Programs
ATTN: Contol Desk
633 hdianaAvenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20531

6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph

4.b. with respect to any employee who is so convicted:
a. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination,

consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or
b. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation

program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or
other appropri ate agency.

7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free worþlace through implementation of
the provisions of this certification.

t* -fics
SUB RECIPIENT/B ORROWER/AGENCY

îecþ\/-

a.

b.
c.
d.

AGREEMENT #

REPRESENTATIVE

a\+\rl
SIGNATURE DATE

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exhibit E

Grant Assurances

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



California Emergency Management Agency

FY20 I0 Grønt Assarønces
(All HSGP Applicants)

Name of Applicant: b<^¿" Wr+eø¡ fu-^
Address: '?øo Noufitn sþnh1 

- 
st'r¿¿.t, l?¿orn 3o 3

citv, L¿s ârnäz t¿-r state: 4 Zip Code:

?.13'178-ô?3ÒraxNumber: ?.13- 1Tl - oTtY

loot t
Telephone Number:

E-Mail Address:

As the duly authorized representative of the applican! I certify that the applicant named above:

l. Will assure that grant funds will support efforts related to providing an integrated mechanism to

enhance the coordínation ofnational priority efforts to prevent respond to, and recover from
terrorist attacks, major disasters and other emergencies.

2. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance and has the institutional, managerial and

financial capability to ensure proper planning, management and completion of the grant provided

by the U.S. Departmpnt of Homeland Security (DHS)Æederal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) and sub-granted through the State of Califomia, California Emergency Management

Agency (Cal EMA).

3. Wilt assure that grant funds are used for allowable, fair, and reasonable costs only and will not
be transferred between gnnt programs (for example: State Homeland Security Program, Urban

A¡ea Security Initiative, Citízen Corps Program, and Metropolitan Medical Response System) or
fiscal years.

4. Will compty with any cost sharing commitments included in the FY2010 Investment
Justifications submitted to DHS/FEIvfA/Cal EMA, where applicable.

5. Will give the Federal govemment, the General Accounting Ofifice, the Comptroller General of
the United States, the State of California, the Offrce of Inspector General, through any authorized

representative, access to, and the right to examine, all paper or electronic records, books, or
documents related to the awa¡d; and will establish a proper accounting system in accordance

with generally accepted accounting standards and./or awarding agency directives.

6, Agrees that funds utilized to establish or enhance State and Local fusion centers must support the

development of a statewide fusion process that corresponds with the Global Justice/Homeland

Security Advisory Council (HSAC) Fusion Center Guidelines, follow the Federal and State

approved privacy policies, and achieve (at a minimum) baseline level of capability as defined by

the Fusion Capability Planning Tool.

F

a-lìs4.6'nslen @ la"t

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



7.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Will provide progress reports, and other such information as may be required by the awarding
agency, includingthe Initial Strategy Implementetion Plan QSIP) within 45 (forty-five) days of
the award and update via the Grant Reporting Tool (GRT) twice each year.

V/ill initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of approval
from Cal EMA.

V/itl maintain procedures to minimizethe time elapsing between the awa¡d of funds and the

disbwsement of fimds.

\Mill comply with all provisions of DHSÆEMA's codified regulation A4,Part 13, Uniform
Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local
Governments, including the payment of interest ea¡ned on advances.

Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that

constitutes, or presents the appearance of, personal or organizational conflict ofinterest, or
personal gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have family, business,

or other tìes.

Understands and agrees that Federal fl:nds will not be used, directly or indirectly, to support the

enactmenl repeal, modification or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, atarry level of
govemment, without the express prior written approval from DHSÆEMA/CaI EMA.

Agrees that, to the extent conhactors or subcontraetors are utilized, will use small, minority-
owned, \ryomen-owned, or disadvantaged business concerns and contractors or subcontractors to

the extent practicable.

Will notiS Cal EMA of any developments,that have a significant impact on award-supported

activities, including changes to key program staff.

Will comply, if applicable, wìth the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act(42 U.S.C. $$
4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead based paint in construction or rehabilitation of
structures.

'ù/ill comply with all Federal and State Statues relating to Civit Rights and Nondiscrimination.

These include, but a¡e not limited to:
a- Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L.88-352), as amended, whích prohibits

discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin.
b. Title IX of the Education Amendments of |972,as amended (20 U.S.C. $$ 1681-1683

and 1685-168Q, which prohibíts discrimination on the basis of gender.

c. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. $ 794)' which

prohibits dissrimination on the basis of handicaps.

d. Ífre ege Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. $$ 6101-6107), which

prohibits discrimination on the basis of age'

e. th" n*g Abuse Offìce and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L.92-255), as amended, relating to

nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse.

f, The Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatrnent and

Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on

the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholísm.

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



discovered, the subgrantee will immediately cease activity in that area and notifu
DHS/FEMA/CaI EMA and the appropriate State Historic Preservation Office.

21. Will ensure that the facilities under its ownership, lease or supervision, which shall be utilized in
the accomplishment of this project, are not on the Environmental Protection Agency's (EPAÐ
List of Violating Facilities, and will notify Cal EMA and the Federal Grantor agency of the
receipt of any commurrication from the Director of the EPA Ofiïce of Federal Activities
indicating if a facility to be used in the project is under consideration for listing by the EPA.

22. rffill provide any information requested by DHS/FEMA/CaI EMA to ensure compliance with
applicable laws, including the following:
a. Institution of environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental

Policy Act, National Historical Preservation Act, fuchaeological and Historic
Preservation Act, Endangered Species Act, and Executive Orders on Floodplains
(11988), W'etlands (11990) and Environmental Justice (EO12898) and Environmental

Quality (8O11514).
b. Notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO I1738,
c. Assu¡ance of project consistency with the approved state management program

developedundertheCoastal ZoneManagementActof 1972(16 U.S.C. $$ 1451 etseq.).
d. Confonnity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under Section

176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. $ 7401 et seq.).

e. Protection of underground sources of drinking wate¡ underthe Safe Drinking Wate¡ Act
of 1974, as amended, (P.L. 93-523).

f. CaliforniaEnvironmental Quality Act (CEQA). Califomia Public Resources Code

Sections 21080-21,098. California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter3 Section
15000-1s007.

E Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 196S (16 U.S.C. $$ l27l et.seq.) related to protecting

components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers system.

h. Applicable provisions of the Coastal Barrier Resources Act (P.L. 97-348) dated October
19,1982 (16 USC 3501 et seq.) which prohibits the expenditure of most new Federal

funds within the units of the Coastal Banier Resources System'

23. Will comply with Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) requirements as stated

in the California Emergency Services Ac! Government Codg Chapter 7 of Division I of Title 2,

Section 8607. 1 (e) and CCR Title I 9, Sections 2445, 2446,2447 , and 2448.

24. Agrees that all publications created or published with funding under this grant shall prominently

contain the foltowing statement: "This document was prepared under a grantfrom FEMA's
Grant Programs Directorate, U.S, Department of Homeland Securíty. Points ofvíew or opínions

expressed ìn this document are those of the authors and do not necessarily represent the ofi'cìal
position or polícies of FElulA's Grant Programs Directorate or the U.S. Department of
Homeland Security. " The recipient also agrees that, when practicable, any equipment purchased

with grant funding shall be prominently marked as follows: "Purchnsed wíthfunds provided by

the U.S. Department of Homelønd Searíty."

25, Acknowledges that DHS/FEMA reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and ìr¡evocable license to

reproduce, publislq or otherwise use, and authorize othefs to use, for Federal government

purposes, a) the copyright in any work developed under an award or sub-award; and b) any rights

óf óopyright to which a recipient or sub-recipient purchases ownership with Federal support.

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



26. The recipient agrees to consult \Ã,ith DHSÆEMA/CaI EMA regarding the allocation of any patent

rights that arise from, or are purchased wittr, this funding.

27. Has requested through the State of Californiq Federal financial assistance to be used to perform

eligible work approved in the submitted application for Federal assístance and after the receipt of
Federal fînancial assistance, through the Søte of Californi4 agrees to the following:
a. Promptly return to the State of Californiaall the funds received whích exceed the

approved, actual expendítures as accepted by the Federal or State government.

b. In the event the approved amount of the grant is reduced, the reimbursement applicable to

the amount of the reduction will be promptly refunded to the State of California.
c. Separately account for interest earned on grant funds, and will return all interest eanted,

in excess of$l00 per Federal Fiscal Year.

28. Will comply withthe lntergovernmental Personnel Act of 7970 (42 U.S C. Sections 4728-4763)

relating to prescribed sta¡dards for merit systems for programs funded under one of the nineteen

statutes or regulations specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of
Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).

29. Will comply wirhprovisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. Sections 1501-1508 and7324-7328)

which limit the political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are

funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

30. Will comply, if applicable, with P.L.93-348 regarding the protection of human subjects involved

in research, development, and related activities supported by this award of assistance.

31. Will comply, if applicable, with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P. L.89-5M, as

amended 7 U.S.C. 213I etseq,) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of warm blooded

animals held for research, teaching, or other activities supported by this award of assistance.

32. Will comply with the minimum wage and maximum hour provisions of the Federal Fair Labor

StandardsAct (29 U.S.C .201), as they apply to employees of institutions of higher education,

hospitals, and other non-profit organizations.

33. Witl comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. Section 276a

to 276a-7),the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. Section 276c and l8 U.S.C. Sections 874), and the

Contract Work Hou¡s and Safety Standa¡ds Act (40 U.S.C. Sections 327-333), regarding labor

standards for Federally-assisted construction sub-agreements.

34. Agrees that:
a^ No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be pai4 by or on behalf of the

undersigned, tõ *y person for influencing or attempting to influence an ofÍicer or

employãe of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or

uo 
"miloy*e 

of a Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal

grant,ìhe entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,

renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal gtant or cooperative agreement.

b. If any other funds than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agëlJLcy, a

Member of Congress, an officer or an employee of Congress, or employee of a Member

F
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



. of Congress in connection with the Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying
Activities," in accordance with its instructions.

c. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the

award documents for all sub awards at all tiers including subgrants, contract¡ under
grants and cooperative agreements, and subcontract(s) and that all sub recipients shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

d. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed

when this transaction was made or entered into, Submissíon of this certification is a

prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction Ìmposed by section 1352, Title
31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a
civil penalty of not less than S I 0,000 and not more than $ 100,000 for each such failure.

35. Agrees that equipment acquired or obtained wìth grant funds:

a. Will be made available pursuant to applicable terms of the Califomia Disaster and Civil
Defense Master Mutual Aid Agreement in consultation with representatives of the
various fire, emergency medical, hazardous materials response services, and law
enforcement agències within the jurisdiction of the applicant, and deployed with
personnel trained in the use of such equipment in a manner consistent with the Califomia
Law Enforcement Mutual Aid Plan or the Califomia Fire Services and Rescue Mutual
Aid Plan.

b. Is consistent with needs as identified in the State Homeland Security Strategy and will be

deployed in conformance with that Shategy.

36. Agrees that funds awarded under this grant will be used to supplement existing fi¡nds for
pro$am activities, and will not supplant (replace) non-Federal funds.

37. Witl comply vr/ith â11 applicable Federal statutes, regulations, policies, guidelines and

requirements, including OMB Circulars 4102 and A-133, E.O. 12372 and the current

Administrative Requirements, Co st P rinciples, and Audit Requirements-

38. Will comply with all provisions of 2 CFR, including: Partzls Uniform Administrative
Requirements for Grants and Agreements with Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and

Other Non-Profit Organizations (OMB Circular A-1 10); Part225 Cost Principles for State, Local
and Indian Tribal Govemments (OMB Circula¡ A-87); Part220 Cost Principles for Educational

Institutions (OI!ß Circular Ã-Zl);Part23} Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations (OMB

Circular A-122).

39. Will comply with Subtitle A, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1990.

40, Agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or information or data

collection requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any information required for
the assessment or evaluation of any activities within this agreement'

41. Will comply with Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR), parl3l.2 Contract Cost Principles and

Procedures, Contracts with Commercial Organizations.

42. Witl comply with the financial and administrative requirements set forth in the current edition of
the DHS Financial Management Guide.

F
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



43. Aglees that all allocations and use of funds under this grant will be in accordance with the FY

2010 Homeland Security Grant Program Guidance and Application Kit, and the Califomia

Supplement to the FY 2010 Homeland Secu¡ity Grant Program Guidance and Application Kit.
Af àllooations and use of flrnds under this grant will be in accordance with the Allocations, and

use of gtant funding must support the goals and objectives included in the State and/or Urban

A¡ea Homeland Security Stræegies as well as the investments identifïed in the Investnent

Justifications which were submitted as part of the Califomia FY2010 Homeland Securíty Grant

Program application. Further, use of FY10 funds is limited to those invesünents included in the

California FY10 Investment Justifications submitted to DHS/FEMA/CaI EMA and evaluated

through the peer review process.

Witl not make any award or permit any award (subgrant or contract) to any party which is

debaned or suspended or is othenvise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal

assistance progi*-s under Executive Order 12549 and 12689,"Debarment and Suspension".

As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, and implemented at 44 CFR

Part 17, for prospective participants in primary covered transactions,

a^ The applicant certifies that it and its principals:

i. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared

ineligible, sentenced to a denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or

agency.
ii- Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of

or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a

criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing

a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a public

transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of
embez-zlemen! theft, forgery bribery, falsification or destruction of records,

making false statements, or receiving stolen property.

üi. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a

governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the

offenses enumerated in paragraph (lxb) of this certification; and have not within

a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions

@ederal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default; and

b. Where the applicant is unable to certifu to any of the statements in this certification, he or

she shall attach an explanation úo this application.

Agrees to comply with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and certifies that it will or will
continue to provide a drug-free worþlace by:
a. Pubfishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession, or use of a conholled substance is prohibited in the-grantee's

worþlacã and specífying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of
such prohibition.

b. Esøbiishing an on-going drug-free awaÍeness progftim to inform employees about:

i. The dangers of drug abuse in the worþlace;
ii. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free worþlace;
iii. Anyàvailable drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance Programs;

and

44.

45.

46.

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



iv. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the worþlace.

ç. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the perfornance of the

grant be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a).

d. Notifying the employee in the statement required by parugraph (a) thaÇ as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

i. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
ii. Notiff the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a

criminal drug stafute occurring in the worþlace no later than five calendar days

after such convíction.
e. Notifring the agency, in writing, within l0 calendar days after receiving notice rurder

subparagraph (dxz) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such

conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position
title, to:

Department of Justice, Offrce of Justice Programs
ATTN: Control Ðesk
633 Indiana Avenue, N.W.
V/ashington, D.C. 20531

Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant.

f. Taking one ofthe fotlowing actions, within 30 calenda¡ days of recæiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted.

i. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and
including terminatíor¡ consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act
of 7973,as amended; or

ii. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

rehabilitation program approved for such pulposes by a Federal, Staten or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

g. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free worþlace through

implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (Ð.

47. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal arrd State laws, executive
orders, regulations, program and administrative requirements, policies and any other

requirements governing this program.

48. Understands that failure to comply with any of the above assurances may result in suspension,

termination, or rcduction of grant funds.

The undersigned represents that he/she is authorized by the above named applicant to enter into this

agreement for and on behalf of the said applicant.

Signature of Authorized Agent: fuÅr"?*l<^
Printed Name of Authorized Agent: Alisu. Ehslen

nr". Tvafiß AIYLW ,o", qluTlo

Page I
AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Part V: Appllcation and Submíssion Subpart E
Funding Restrictions

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



E. Funding Restrictions

DHS grant funds may only be used for the purpose set forth in the grant, and must be
consistent with the statutory authority for the award. Grant funds may not be used for
matching funds for other Federal grants/cooperative agreements, lobbying, or
intervention in Federal regulatory or adjudicatory proceedings. ln addition, Federal
funds may not be used to sue the Federal government or any other government entity.

Pre-award costs are allowable only with the written consent of DHS and if they are
included in the award agreement.

The applicable SAAs will be responsible for administration of the FY 2010 HSGP. ln
administering the program, the SAA must work with the eligible applicants to comply
with the following general requirements:

1. HSGP Priorities Threshold. As noted before, FY 2010 HSGP applies to all
capabilities with an emphasis on the eight National Priorities.

2. Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention. Per the 9/11 Act, States are required
to ensure that at least 25 percent of SHSP appropriated funds and 25 percent of
UASI appropriated funds are dedicated towards law enforcement terrorism
prevention-oriented planning, organization, training, exercise, and equipment
activities. This requirement does not include award funds from OPSG, MMRS,
and CCP.

3. Management and Administration (MAA) Limits. A maximum of up to five
percent (5%) of HSGP funds (exclusive of OPSG) awarded may be retained by
the State, and any funds retained are to be used solely for management and
administrative purposes associated with the HSGP award. States may pass
through a portion of the State M&A allocation to local subgrantees to support
local management and administration activities; the overall M&A amount may not
equal more than five percent (5%) of HSGP funds (exclusive of OPSG). /Vo
M&A funds may be used to support the FY 2010 OPSG Program.

4. Allowable Costs. A crosswalk of allowable costs across the HSGP programs
can be found in Part Vlll of this Guidance package, along with additional detail on
planning, organization, equipment, training, and exercises costs. The following
pages outline global allowable costs guidance applicable to all programs included
in the HSGP.

Allowable lnvestments made in support of the HSGP Priorities as well as other
capability-enhancing projects must fall into the categories of planning, organization,
equipment, training, or exercises. Additional detail about each of these allowable
expense categories, as well as sections on additional activities including explicitly
unallowable costs, is provided. ln general, grantees should consult their FEMA

35

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Headquarters Program Analyst (for SHSP, UASI, or OPSG questions) or FEMA
Regional Program Analyst (for MMRS or CCP questions) prior to making any
lnvestment that does not clearly meet the allowable expense criteria established by the
Guidance.

Planning Activities ISHSP, UAS[ OPSG, MMRS, CCP)
States and Urban Areas may use FY 2010 HSGP funds for planning efforts that enable
them to prioritize needs, build capabilities, update preparedness strategies, allocate
resources, and deliver preparedness programs across disciplines (e.9., tribal
governments, law enforcement, fire, EMS. health care systems, public health,
behavioraf health, public works, rural water associations, agriculture, and information
technology) and levels of government. States and Urban Areas are further encouraged
to include disciplines responsibfe for the health, safety, education, and care of infants
and children and those responsible for integrating the accessibility and functional needs
of children and adults with disabilities. Planning activities should focus on the four
homeland security mission areas of prevention, protection, response, and recovery.
HSGP funds should also be leveraged to integrate specialized programs, such as the
Regional Catastrophic Preparedness Grant Program, into the overall framework at the
State and Urban Area level. Alljurisdictions are encouraged to work through Citizen
Corps Councils, nongovernmental entities, and the general public in planning activities.a
Grantees are encouraged to use the Comprehensive Preparedness Guide 101 ,

Producing Emergency Plans: A Guide for All-Hazard Operations Planning for State,
Territorial, Local and Tribal Governmenfs in order to develop robust and effective plans.

Organizational Activities (SHSP and UASI only)
Section 2008 of the Homeland Security Act of 2002, as amended by the 9/1 1 Act,
includes the following allowable activities:

. Responding to an increase in the threat level under the Homeland Security
Advisory System, or needs resulting from a National Special Security Event

. Establishing, enhancing, and staffing State and Major Urban Area fusion
centers

. Paying salaries and benefits for personnel to serve as qualified intelligence
analysts

States and Urban Areas must justify proposed expenditures of SHSP or UASI funds to
support organization activities within their lJ submission by using historical data or other
analysis.s All States are allowed to utilize up to 50 percent of their FY 2O1O SHSP
funding and all Urban Areas are allowed up to 50 percent of their FY 2010 UASI funding

o Nongovernmental entities include the private sector, private nonprofits, faith-based, community,
volunteer, and other nongovernmental organizations.
5 The effectiveness of a request for the use of funds for allowable organizational costs will be judged on
the lnvestment Justification's ability to illustrate the need for such resources to effectively achieve a
capability that will have a meaningful impact in the reduction of risk.

36

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



for organizational activities.6 At the request of a recipient of a grant, the Administrator
may grant a waiver of the limitation noted above (50 percent).

. Intelligence Analysts - Per the Personnel Reimbursement for lntelligence
Cooperation and Enhancement (PRICE) of Homeland Securíty Acf (Public
Law 110-412), SHSP and UASI funds may be used to hire new staff and/oi
contractor positions to serve as intelligence analysts to enable
information/intelligence sharing capabilities, as well as support existing
intelligence analysts previously covered by SHSP or UASI funding. ln order
to be hired as an intelligence analyst, staff and/or contractor personnel must
meet at least one of the following criteria:

o Successfully complete training to ensure baseline proficiency in
intellígence analysís and producfion within six months of being hired;
and/or,

o Previously served as an intelligence analyst for a minimum of two
years either in a Federal intelligence agency, the military, or State
and/or local law enforcement intelligence unit

All intelligence analyst training should be in accordance with the Global
Justice lnformation Sharing lnitiative's (Global) Minimum Criminal Intelligence
Trainíng Standards for Law Enforcement and Other Criminal Justice Agencies
in the United Sfafes, which outlines the minimum categories of training
needed for intelligence analysts. These include subject-matter expertise,
analytic methodologies, customer-service ethics, information hand li ng and
processing skills, critical thinking skills, computer literacy, and objectivity and
intellectual honesty. A certificate of completion of such training must be on
file with the SAA and must be made available to FEMA Program Analysts
upon request.

. Ovértime Costs - Overtime costs are allowable for personnel to participate
in information, investigative, and intelligence sharing activities specifically
related to homeland security and specifically requested by a Federal agency.
Allowable costs are limited to overtime associated with Federally requested
participation in eligible fusion activities including antiterrorism task forces,
Joint Terrorism Task Forces (JTTFs), Area Maritime Security Committees (as
required by the Maritime Transporfation Security Act of 2002), DHS Border
Enforcement Security Task Forces, and lntegrated Border Enforcement
Teams. Grant funding can only be used in proportion to the Federal man-
hour estimate, and only after funding for these activities from other Federal
sources (i.e. FBI JTTF payments to State and local agencies) has been
exhausted. Under no circumstances should DHS grant funding be used to
pay for costs already supported by funding from another Federal source.

t Note: Both organizational costs (e.g., intelligence analysts, operational overtime), planning, equipment,
training, and exercise personnel costs are applied towards the 50 percent personnel cap.

37

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



. Operational Overtirne Gosts - ln support of efforts to enhance capabilities
for detecting, deterring, disrupting, and preventing acts of terrorism,
operational overtime costs are allowable for increased security measures at
critical infrastructure sites. FY 2010 SHSP or UASI funds for organizational
costs may be used to support select operational expenses associated with
increased security measures at critical infrastructure sites in the following
authorized categories :

o Backfill and overtíme expenses (as defined in this Guidance) for
staffing State or Major Urban Area fusion centers

o Hiring of contracted security for critical infrastructure sites
o Public safety overtime (as defined in this Guidance)
o Title 32 or State Active Duty National Guard deployments to protect

critical infrastructure sites, including all resources that are part of the
standard National Guard deployment package (Note: Consumable
costs, such as fuel expenses, are not allowed except as part of the
standard National Guard deployment package)

o lncreased border security activities in coordination with CBP, as
outlined in lnformation Bulletin #135

FY 2010 SHSP or UASI funds may only be spent for operational overtime
costs upon prior approval provided in writing by the FEMA Administrator.

Note: States with UAS|jurisdictions can use funds retained at the State level
to reimburse eligible operational overtime expenses incurred by the State (per
the above guidance limitations and up to a maximum of 50 percent of the
State share of the UASI grant). Any UASI funds retained by the State must
be used in direct support of the Urban Area. States must provide
documentation to the UAWG and FEMA upon request demonstrating how any
UASI funds retained by the State would directly support the Urban Area.

Equipment Activities ISHSP, UASI, MMRS, CCP)
The 21 allowable prevention, protection, response, and recovery equipment categories
and equipment standards for FY 2010 HSGP are listed on the web-based version of the
Authorized Equipment List (AEL) on the Responder Knowledge Base (RKB), at
https://www.rkb.us. Unless othen¡rise stated, equipment must meet all mandatory
regulatory and/or DHS-adopted standards to be eligible for purchase using these funds.
ln addition, agencies will be responsible for obtaining and maintaining all necessary
certifications and licenses for the requested equipment.

States that are using FY 2010 HSGP funds to purchase lnteroperable Communications
Equipment (Category 6) must consult SAFECOM's coordinated grant guidance, which
outlines standards and equipment information to enhance interoperable
communications. This guidance can be found at http://v'tww.safecomproqram.qov.
Additionally, grantees are required to coordinate with other State and local partners in

38

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



integrating their interoperable communications plans and projects as outlined in each
State's Statewide Communication lnteroperability Plan.

Training Activities ISHSP, UAS[ MMRS, CCP)

States, territories, and Urban Areas may use HSGP funds to develop a homeland
security training program. Allowable training-related costs under HSGP include the
establishment, support, conduct, and attendance of training specifically identified under
the SHSP, UASI, MMRS, and CCP grant programs and/or in conjunction with
emergency preparedness training by other Federal agencies (e.9., HHS, DOT).
Allowable training topics include, but are not limited to, CBRNE terrorism,
cyberiagriculture/food security, intelligence gathering and analysis, NIMS related
training, citizen and community preparedness, interoperable and emergency
communications, and training for volunteers, infants and children and individuals wíth
disabilities in disasters, pediatric medical surge, and evacuation and sheltering with
particular emphasis on children, keeping children with parents or guardians, addressing
needs of unaccompanied minors, and integrating the accessibility and functional needs
of children and adults with disabilities (see Comprehensive Preparedness Guide 301

[CPG-3011: Interim Emergency Management Planning Guide for SpecialNeeds
Populations and other resources for additional information).

Training conducted using HSGP funds should address a performance gap identified
through an After Action ReporUlmprovement Plan (AAR/IP) or contribute to building a
capability that will be evaluated through an exercise. Exercises should be used to
provide the opportunity to demonstrate and validate skills learned in training, as well as
to identify training gaps. Any training or training gaps should be identified in the AAR/IP
and addressed in the State or Urban Area training cycle. All training and exercises
conducted with HSGP funds should support the development and testing of the
jurisdiction's EOP or specific annexes, where applicable.

Exercise Activities ISHSP, UASI MMRS, CCP)
Exercises conducted with FEMA support must be managed and executed in

accordance with the Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program (HSEEP).
HSEEP Guidance for exercise design, development, conduct, evaluation, and
improvement planning is located at https://hseep.dhs.qov. The HSEEP Library provides

sample exercise materials and templates.

All exercises using HSGP funding must be NIMS compliant. More information is
available online at the NIMS lntegration Center,
http ://wvvw.fem a. oov/e me ro encv/n i m s/ind ex. shtm.

All Urban Areas are required to develop a Multi-Year Training and Exercise Plan (TEP)
and submít to the FEMA Grants and Preparedness Community of lnterest (COl) on the
Homeland Security lnformation Network (HSIN). Further, Urban Areas are encouraged
to develop a Multi-Year Plan and Schedule that takes into consideration anticipated
training needs of the Urban Area for at least the immediate year, with exercises being
timed to provide responders the opportunity to utilize training received. Further

39

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



guidance concerning the Training and Exercise Plan and the Training and Exercise Plan
Workshop can be found at https://hseep.dhs.qov.

Where applicable, the Training and Exercise Plans should include training and
exercises that support specialized programs, such as the Regional Catastrophic
Preparedness Grant Program.

Urban Areas are eligible for Regional Exercise Support Program (RESP) funds but must
do so in conjunction with the SAA.

States and Urban Areas are encouraged to exercise their capabilities with regard to
infants and children across all aspects of response and recovery, including pediatric
medical surge capabilities and integrating the accessibility and functional needs of
children and adults with disabilities.

Personnel Activities ISHSP, UASI, MMRS, CCP)
Personnel hiring, overtime, and backfill expenses are permitted under this grant in order
to perform allowable FY 2010 HSGP planning, training, exercise, and equipment
activities.

. A personnel cost cap of up to 50 percent of total SHSP and UASI program
funds may be used for personnel and personnel-related activities as directed
by the Personnel Reimbursement for Intelligence Cooperation and
Enhancement (PRICE) of Homeland Security,4cf (Public Law 1 10-412).
Grantees who wish to seek a waíver from the personnel cost cap must
provide documentation explaining why the cap is unacceptable; waiver
requests will be considered only under extreme circumstances. ln general,
the use of SHSP and UASI funding to pay for staff and/or contractor regular
time or overtime/backfill is considered a personnel cost. Neither MMRS nor
CCP have a personnel cosú cap. Activities that are considered "personnel"
and "personnel-related," and therefore count against the personnel cost cap
of 50 percent, include, but are not limited to:

o Operational overtime
. Overtime/backfill to participate in approved training or exercise

deliveries
. Salaries and personnel costs of intelligence analysts
. Overtime to participate in intelligence sharing activities
. Salaries and personnel costs of planners, equipment managers,

exercise coord inators, and/or train ing coord i nators
. Salaries and personnel costs under the M&A category
. Contractor costs associated with performing the above activities

These activities are also subject to the funding and eligibility requirements detailed
under the allowable cost categories. For fuither details SAAs should contact their
FEMA Headquarters Program Analyst.

40

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



FY 2010 HSGP funds may not be used to support the hiring of any personnel for the
purposes of fulfilling traditional public health and safety duties or to supplant traditional
public health and safety positions and responsibilities.

The following are definitions for the terms as used in this grant guidance:

. Hiring - State and local entities may use grant funding to cover the salary of
newly hired personnelwho are exclusively undertaking allowable FEMA
program activities as specified in this guidance. This may not include new
personnel who are hired to fulfill any non-FEMA program activities under any
circumstances. Hiring will always result in a net increase of Full Time
Equivalent (FTE) employees.

. Overtime - These expenses are limited to the additional costs which result
from personnel working over and above 40 hours of weekly work time as a
direct result of their performance of FEMA-approved activities specified in this
guidance. Overtime associated with any other activity is not eligible.

o Backfill-related Overtime - Also called "Overtime as Backfill," these
expenses are limited to overtime costs which result from personnel who are
working overtime (as identified above) to perform the duties of other
personnelwho are temporarily assigned to FEMA-approved activities outside
their core responsibilities. Neither overtime nor backfill expenses are the
result of an increase of FTE employees.

. Supplanting - Grant funds will be used to supplement existing funds, and will
not replace (supplant) funds that have been appropriated for the same
purpose. Applicants or grantees may be requíred to supply documentation
certifying that a reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds.

Construction and Renovation (SHSP, UASI)
Use of HSGP funds for construction is generally prohibited except as outlined below.
Such construction shall be strictly limited and allowable only when it is a necessary
component of a security system at critical infrastructure facilities. OPSG, CCP, and
MMRS funds may not be used for any type of construction. Project construction not
exceeding $1,000,000 is allowable as deemed necessary.

The following types of projects are considered to constitute construction or renovation
and must be submitted to FEMA for compliance review under Federal environmental
planning and historic preservation (EHP) laws and requirements prior to initiation of the
project:

. Construction and renovation of guard facilities which are intended to provide
enhanced security at grantee-designated critical infrastructure sites

. Renovation of and modifications, including the installation of security and
communication equipment, to buildings and structures that are 50 years old or
older

4I

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



. Any other construction or renovation efforts that change or expand the
footprint of a facility or structure, including security enhancements to improve
perimeter security

. Physical security enhancements includíng, but not limited to:
o Lighting
o Fencing
o Closed-circuit television (CCTV) systems
o Motion detection systems
o Barriers, doors, gates, and related security enhancements

In addition, the erection of communications towers that are included in a
jurisdiction's interoperable communications plan is allowed, subject to all
applicable íaws, regulations, and licensing provisions. Communication tower
projects must be submitted to FEMA for EHP review. Per the Department of
Homeland Security Appropriations Act, 2010 (Public Law 111-83),
communications towers are not subject to the $1,000,000 construction cap.

ln order to draw down funds for construction and renovation costs under HSGP,
grantees must provide to FEMA:

. A description of the asset or facility; asset location, whether the infrastructure
is publicly or privately owned, and the construction or renovation project

. Certification that a facility vulnerability assessment has been conducted

. An outline addressing how the construction or renovation project will address
the identifled vulnerabilities from the assessment

. Consequences of not implementing the construction or renovation project

. Any additional information requested by FEMA to ensure compliance with
Federal EHP requirements

For more information on FEMA's EHP requirements, SAAs should refer to FEMA's
lnformation Bulletin #329, Environmental Planning and Hístoric Preseruation
Requirements for Grants, available at
http://www.fema.qov/pdf/qovernmeniloranilbulletins/info329.pdf . Additional information
and resources can also be found at http://vvww.fema.qov/plan/ehp/ehp-applicant-
help.shtm.

Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention-Oriented Allowable Cosfs ISHSP, UASI)
Sections 2006 and 2008 of the Homeland Security Act of 2002, as amended by the 9i11
Act, includes, but is not limited to, the following allowable activities:

. Overtime expenses consistent with a State Homeland Security Plan, including
enhanced operations in support of Federal agencies, border security, and
border crossi ng enforcement

. Establishing, enhancing, and staffing State and Major Urban Area fusion
centers

42

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



. Paying salaries and benefits for personnel to serve as qualified intelligence
analysts

. lnformation sharing and analysis

. Target hardening
o Threat recognition
. Terrorist interdiction
. Subject to the limitations on organization and personnel costs outlined above,

overtime expenses consistent with a State Homeland Security Plan, including
for the provision of enhanced law enforcement operations in support of
Federal agencies, for increased border security, and border crossing
enforcement

. Subject to the limitations on organízation and personnel costs outlined above,
establishing, enhancing, and staffing State and Major Urban Area fusion
centers with appropriately qualified personnel

. Subject to the limitations on organization and personnel costs outlined above,
paying salaries and benefits for personnel, including individuals employed by
the grant recipient on the date of the relevant grant application, to serve as
qualified intelligence analysts

. Any other terrorism prevention activity authorized by the Administrator,
pursuant to authority(ies) provided by Congress directly or delegated to the
Administrator by the Secretary

OPSG Allowable Cosfs
The intent of OPSG is to focus on operational aspects of enhancing coordination
between Federal, State, local, tribal, and territorial law enforcement agencies to
increase the security of the U.S. Borders. While equipment is an allowable expense,
the FY 2010 OPSG is not intended to be an equipment-centric grant.

o Operational Overtime. Operational overtime costs associated with law
enforcement activities, in support of border law enforcement agencies for
increased border security enhancement. Per the PRICE of Homeland
Security Acf (Public Law 1 10-412), all grantees are allowed to utilize up to 50
percent of their FY 2010 OPSG funding for personnel related costs, which
include overtime activities. At the request of a grant recipient, the FEMA
Administrator may waive the 50 percent personnel cap. Waiver decisions are
at the discretion of the FEMA Administrator and will be considered on a case-
by-case basis. A formal FY 2010 OPSG personnel waiver request should:

o Be requested on official letterhead, include a written justificatíon, and
be signed by the authorized representative of the SAA

o lnclude a budget and method of calculation of personnel costs both in
percentage of the grant award and in total dollar amount. To avoid
supplanting issues, the request must also include a three-year staffing
history for the requesting entity

o lnclude an approved Operations Order from the CBP/BP Sector office
which supports the SAA's written justification

43

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



o Be fon¡rarded electronically by the SAA to FEMA GPD Program
Analyst

. Part Time Personnel. FY 2010 OPSG funds may be used to pay additional
current part time law enforcement personnel salaries in order to bring them to
full time status.

. Travel, Per Diem, and Lodging. Travel and per diem costs associated with
the deploymenUredeployment of personnel to border areas and for travel
associated with law enforcement entities assisting other localjurisdictions in
law enforcement activities. ln addition, costs to support up to six (6) month
deployment of law enforcement personnel to critical Southwest Border
locations to support operational activities (travel costs must be in accordance
with applicable travel regulations).

. Vehicle and Equipment Rentals

. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance

. Fuel Cost and/or Mileage Reimbursement. The reimbursement cap for
operational activities is removed under FY 2010 OPSG.

. Activate Reserve State, local, tribal, and territorial law enforcement
personnel. Supporting a request to the Governor to activate, deploy, or
redeploy specialized National Guard Units/Package and/or elements of State
law enforcement to increase or augment specialized/technical law
enforcement elements operational activities.

. Backfill. Costs associated with backfill for personnel supporting operational
activities.

. Law Enforcement Readiness. Use of FY 2010 OPSG funds may be used to
increase operational, material, and technological readiness of State, local,
tribal, and territorial law enforcement agencies.

OPSG Unallowable Costs. OPSG unallowable costs include costs associated with
staffing and general lT computing equipment and hardware, such as personal
computers, faxes, copy machines, modems, etc. The FY 2010 OPSG is not intended
as a hiring program. Therefore, applying funds toward hiring full{ime or permanent
sworn public safety officers is also unallowable. FY 2010 OPSG funding shall not be
used to supplant inherent routine patrols and law enforcement operations or activities
not directly related to providing enhanced coordination between local and Federal law
enforcement agencies. ln addjtion, no HSGP M&A funds may be used to support FY
2010 OPSG. Finally, constru'ction and/or renovation costs are prohibited under OPSG.
Applicants should contact their FEMA Headquarters Program Analyst at (800) 368-6498
for guidance and clarification.

Other Allowable Cosfs - Maintenance and Susfainment
The use of FEMA preparedness grant funds for maintenance contracts, warranties,
repair or replacement costs, upgrades, and user fees are allowable under all active and
future grant awards, unless otherwise noted. Grantees are reminded to be sensitive to
supplanting issues. Maintenance contracts, warranties, repair or replacement costs,
upgrades, and user fees previously purchased with State and or local funds cannot be

44

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



replaced with Federal grant funding. Routine upkeep (e.9., gasoline, tire replacement,
routine oil changes, monthly inspections, grounds, and facility maintenance, etc.) is the
responsibility of the grantee and may not be funded with preparedness grant funding.

. Maintenance Contracts and Warranties. To increase the useful life of the
equipment, maintenance contracts and warranties may be purchased using grant
funding from one fiscal year to cover equipment purchased with funding from a
different fiscal year. The use of grant funding for the purchase of maintenance
contracts and warranties must meet the following conditions:
o Maintenance contracts and warranties may only be purchased for equipment that

has been purchased using FEMA preparedness grant funding
o To avoid supplementing Congressional appropriations for specific programs,

maintenance contracts and warranties must be purchased using funds from the
same grant program used to purchase the original equipment

o The term of the maintenance contract or warranty shall not exceed the period of
performance of the grant to which the contract is being charged

o Equipment provided to States and localjurisdictions by the Commercial
Equipment Direct Assistance Program (CEDAP) is also eligible for support
through maintenance contracts and warranties since CEDAP is a one-time
equipment grant program and not a recurring grant (SHSP and UASI programs
only)

o Equipment and support provided directly to States and localjurisdictions by any
DHS component is also eligible for support through maintenance contracts or
warranties once funding for those programs has ended. This includes the
Domestic Nuclear Detection Office's (DNDO) limited duration programs such as
the Southeast Transportation Pilot (SETCP), West Coast Maritime Pilot (WCMP),
and Securing the Cities (STC) (SHSP and UASI programs only)

. Repair and Replacement Costs. The cost of repair and replacement parts for
equipment purchased using FEMA preparedness grant funding is an allowable
expense.
o Repair and replacement parts may only be purchased for equipment that has

been purchased using FEMA preparedness grant funding
o To avoid supplementing Congressional appropriations for specific programs,

repair and replacement parts must be purchased using the same grant program
used to purchase the original equipment

o Repair and replacement parts for equipment provided to States and local
jurisdictions by CEDAP are also eligible for support since CEDAP is a one-time
equipment grant program and not a recurring grant (SHSP and UASI programs
only)

o Repair and replacement parts for equipment provided directly to States and local
jurisdictions by any DHS component are also eligible for support once funding for
those programs has ended. This includes the DNDO's limited duration programs
such as the SETCP, WCMP, and STC (SHSP and UASI programs only)

45

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



. Upgrades. FEMA preparedness grant funding may be used to upgrade previously
purchased allowable equipment. For example, if the grantee purchased risk
management software with HSGP funds in FY 2005 and would like to use FY 2009
grant funding to upgrade the software, this is allowable.
o Upgrades may only be purchased for equipment that has been purchased using

FEMA preparedness grant funding
o To avoid supplementing Congressional appropriations for specific programs,

upgrades must be purchased using the same grant program used to purchase
the original equipment

o Upgrades for equipment provided to States and localjurisdictions by CEDAP are
also eligible for support since CEDAP ís a one-time equipment grant program
and not a recurring grant (SHSP and UASI programs only)

o Upgrades for equipment provided directly to States and localjurisdictions by any
DHS component are also eligible for support once funding for those programs
has ended. This includes the DNDO's limited duration programs such as the
SETCP, WCMP, and STC (SHSP and UASI programs only)

. User fees. User fees are viewed as costs for specifìc services required to maintain
and provide continued operation of equipment or systems. An example would be
the recurring service fees associated with handheld radios or mobile data
computers.
o User fees may only be paid for equipment that has been purchased using FEMA

preparedness grant funding
o To avoid supplementing Congressional appropriations for specific programs, user

fees must be paid for using the same grant program used to purchase the
original equipment. The service time purchased shall not exceed the period of
performance of the grant to which the user fee is being charged

o User fees for equipment provided to States and localjurisdictions by CEDAP are
also eligible for support since CEDAP is a one-time equipment grant program
and not a recurring grant (SHSP and UASI programs only)

o User fees for equipment provided directly to States and localjurisdictions by any
DHS component also eligible for support once funding for those programs has
ended. This includes the DNDO's limited duration programs such as the SETCP,
WCMP, and STC (SHSP and UASI programs only)

o Requests for maintenance, repair or replacement costs, upgrades or user fees
for equipment purchased with funds from FEMA preparedness grants that no
longer exist (e.9., Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention Program [LETPP]) are
allowable. Sufficient documentation should be maintained to identify the original
grant used to purchase the equipment (SHSP and UASI programs only)

o lmplementation. Planned or actual expenditures for maintenance contracts and
warranties, repair and replacement costs, upgrades, and user fees must be reflected
in the lnitial Strategy fmplementation Plan (lSlP) or Biannual Strategy
I mplementation Report (BS I R).

Grantees must comply with all the requirements in 44 CFR Part 13 and 2 CFR Part215.

46

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Other Allowable Cosfs - Secure ldentification (SHSP)
ln addition to the expenditures outlined above, SHSP funds may be used to support the
implementation activities associates with the Western Hemisphere Travel lnitiative
(WHTI), including the issuance of WHTI-compliant tribal identification cards. More
information on the WHTI may be found at
htt o ://www. d h s. q ov/f i I e s/proq ra m s/q c 1 20 0 69 3 57 97 7 6. s htm or
http : //www. q etvo u h o m e. q ov/htm l/e n q m a p. htm l.

Other Secure ldentification I nitiatives
SHSP funds may also be used to support the Department's additional efforts to
enhance secure identification. Activities that facilitate secure identification, including lT
enhancements for identification management and verification systems, are a priority.
DHS is currently developing and implementing a number of high profile screening
programs in which secure identification credentials figure prominently. These include
the Driver's License Security Grant Program (DLSGP) which aims to enhance the
security, integrity, and protection of licensing and identification systems across the
country; the Transportation Worker ldentification Credential (TWIC) program which
promotes tamper-resistant biometric credentials for workers who require unescorted
access to secure areas of ports, vessels, outer continental shelf facilities, and all
credentialed merchant mariners; and the credentialing of first responders which entails
enhancing real-time electronic authentication of identity and attribute(s) (qualification,
certification, authorization, and/or privilege) of emergency response/critical government
personnel responding to terrorist attacks or other catastrophic events.

DLSGP specific allowable activities include: planning activities related to DLSGP
compliance, related personal identification verification systems enhancements,
personnel and management costs related to DLSGP compliance activities, and
acquisitions for hardware and software related to ensuring compatibility with DLSGP
technologies.

With respect to TWIC, specific allowable activities include: projects that involve new
installations or upgrades to access control and identity management systems that
exhibit compliance with TWIC standards and program specifications.

As to credentialing of first responders, specific allowable activities include: development
of standards-based technologies, policies, protocols, and practicés for portable and
functional solutions to first responder identification and verification issues.

Note: Secure identification projects requested and funded under SHSP must directly
support SHSP mission goals and cannot supplant projects/activities funded under other
grant programs (e.9., DLSGP).

F. Other Submission Requirements
Federal employees are prohibited from serving in any capacity (paid or unpaid) on any
proposal submitted under this program. Federal employees may not receive funds
under this award.

47

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exhihit G

Part Vlll, Other lnformation - HSGP Allowable
Costs, HSGP Allowable Expenses, Allowable
PIanning, Training, and Exercise Examples

Specific to Law Enforcement Terrorism
P reventio n-oniented Activities

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



PART VIII.

OTHER INFORMATION
Section A - HSGP Allowable Gosts

FY 2010 Allowable Cost Matrix
Allowable Program Activities 

FEMA
Current as of FY 2010 Programs*

HSGP

See the respective program guidance for additional details and/orrequirements i F ff 
= 

I I
.AsorPubrication ß 2 8 d T B

Allowable Planninq Costs

Allowable Orqanizational Activities

Allowable Equioment Cateoories

70

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



= Allowable Pregram Activities

Current as of FY 2010 Programs*

See the respective program guidance for additional details andlor
requirements

*As of Publication

FEMA

HSGP

4E fi ã ç i

Allowable Traininq Costs

Allowable Exercise Related Costs

Terrorism Prevention, Response, and Mitiqation Equipment
CBRNE Prevention and Response Watercraft

Overtime and backfill for emergency preparedness and response

Overtime and backfill expenses for part{ime and volunteer emergency
response Dersonnel participatino ín FEMA trainino
Training workshops and conferences

Full- or part-time staff or contractors/consultants

Conduct, and Evaluate an Exercise

Full- or oart-time staff or contractors/consultants
Overtime and backfill costs, including expenses for part{ime and
volunteer emergency response personnel participating in FEMA
exerc¡ses

71

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Allowable Program Activitie+

Current as of FY 2010 Programs*

See the respective program guidance for additional details and/or
requirements

"As of Publication

FEMA

HSGP

ØFO=l-

4 ä ã ã fl i
Allowable Manaqement & Administrative Costs
Hiring of full- or part{ime staff or contractors/consultants to assist with
the management of the respective grant program, application
requirements, and compliance with reporting and data collection

72

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Section B - HSGP Allowable Expenses

Overview
The following provides guidance on allowable costs within planning, equipment, training,
and exercise activities.

P I a n n i ng Activ iti es I nfo rm ation
The FY 2010 HSGP Guidance and Application KrT defines five broad categories of
allowable planning costs. Following are examples for each of the categories. As noted
on page seven, an emphasis of this year's grant is to enhance and expand capabilities
through partnerships. A specific emphasis should be placed on the preparedness of
child congregate care systems, providers and facilities, and especially school districts
and child/day care. Additional examples are group residential facilities operated by
State and local child welfare authorities, and juvenile detention facilities.

. Developing hazard/threat-specific annexes that incorporate the range of
prevention, protection, response, and recovery activities

. Developing and implementing homeland security support programs and adopting
DHS national initiatives including but not limited to the following:

o lmplementing the National Preparedness Guidelines
o Pre-event recovery planning
o lmplementing the National lnfrastructure Protection Plan and associated

Sector Specific Plans
o Enhancing and implementing Statewide Communication lnteroperability

Plans (SCIP) and Tactical lnteroperable Communications Plans (TICP)
that align with the goals, objectives, and initiatives of the National
Emerge ncy Com m u n icati o n s P/an ( N EC P)

o Costs associated with the adoption, implementation, and adherence to
NIMS compliance requirements, including implementing the NIMS
National Credentialing Framework

o Modifying existing incident management and EOPs to ensure proper
alignment with the NRF coordinating structures, processes, and protocols

o Establishing or enhancing mutual aid agreements
o Developing communications and interoperability protocols and solutions
o Conducting local, regional, and tribal program implementation meetings
o Developing or updating resource inventory assets in accordance to typed

resource definitions issued by the NIMS lntegration Center (NlC)
o Designing State and local geospatial data systems

73

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



o Conducting public education and outreach campaigns, including
promoting individual, family, and business emergency preparedness;
alerts and warnings education; and evacuation plans as well as CBRNE
prevention awareness

o Preparing materials for State Preparedness Reports (SPRs)
o WHTI implementation activities including the issuance of WHTI-compliant

tribal identification cards

. Developing related terrorism prevention activities including:

o Developing law enforcement prevention activities, to include establishing
and/or enhancing a fusion center

o Hiring an lT specialist to plan, develop, and implement the lT applications
necessary for a fusion center

o Developing and planning for information/intelligence sharing groups
o Hiring contractors and consultants to make recommendations on the

development of capabilities at State and Major Urban Area fusion centers;
such centers should be designed in support of the analytic and other
baseline capabilities as outlined in the Global Justice lnformation Sharing
lnitiative's (Global) Baseline Capabilities for Sfafe and Major Urban Area
Fusion Centers

o lntegrating and coordinating public health care, public safety, and health
security data-gathering (threats to human and animal health) within State
and Major Urban Area fusion centers to achieve early warning and
mitigation of health events

o lntegrating and coordinating private sector participation with fusion center
activities

o Acquiring systems allowing connectivity to State, local, tribal, territorial,
and Federal data networks, such as the National Crime lnformation Center
(NCIC) and lntegrated Automated Fingerprint ldentification System
(lAFlS), as appropriate

o Planning to enhance security during heightened alerts, terrorist incidents,
and/or during mitigation and recovery

o Multi-discipline preparation across first responder community, including
EMS for response to catastrophic events and acts of terrorism

o Accessible public information/education: printed and electronic materials,
public service announcements, seminars/town hall meetings, and web
postings coordinated through local Citizen Corps Councils

o Citizen Corps volunteer programs and other activities to strengthen citizen
participation

o Conducting public education campaigns including promoting individual,
family, and business emergency preparedness; promoting the Ready
campaign; and/or creating State, regional, or local emergency
preparedness efforts that build upon the Ready campaign

o Evaluating Critical lnfrastructure Protection (ClP) security equipment
and/or personnel requirements to protect and secure sites

74

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



o CIP ccst assessments, including resources (e.9., financial, personnel)
req u ired for security enhancements/d eployments

o Multi-Jurisdiction Bombing Prevention Plans (MJBPP)8
o Underwater Terrorist Protection Plans

. Developing and enhancing plans and protocols, including but not limited to:

o Developing or enhancing EOPs and operating procedures
o Developing or enhancing local, regional, or Statewide strategic or tactical

interoperable emergency communications plans
o Activities associated with a conversion from wideband to narrowband

voice channels
o lmplementing Statewide Communications lnteroperability Plan (SCIP) and

Tactical lnteroperable Communications Plans (TlCPs) that align with the
goals, objectives, and initiatives of the National Emergency
Communications Plan (NECP)

o Developing protocols or standard operating procedures for specialized
teams to incorporate the use of equipment acquired through this grant
program

o Developing terrorism preventioniprotection plans
o Developing plans, procedures, and requirements for the management of

infrastructure and resources related to HSGP and implementation of State
or Urban Area Homeland Security Strategies

o Developing plans for mass evacuation and pre-positioning equipment
o Developing or enhancing border security plans
o Developing or enhancing cyber security plans
o Developing or enhancing secondary health screening protocols at major

points of entry (e.9., air, rail, port)
o Developing or enhancing cyber risk mitigation plans
o Developing or enhancing agriculture/food security risk mitigation,

response, and recovery plans
o Developing public/private sector partnership emergency response,

assessment, and resource sharing plans
o Developing or enhancing plans to engage and interface with, and to

increase the capacity of, private sector/non-governmental entities working
to meet the human service response and recovery needs of victims

o Developíng or updating local or regional communications plans
o Developing plans to support and assist jurisdictions, such as port

authorities and rail and mass transit agencies
o Developing or enhancing continuity of operations and continuity of

government plans

t The SAA should examine current bombing prevention and explosive device response capabilities as an
import risk reduction activity. An explosive devise recognition capability analysis can assist in determining
their opportunities for increasing the capability to execute steady state and threat initiated tasks to prevent
and respond to a bombing incident.

75

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



o Developing or enhancing existing catastrophic incident response and
recovery plans to include and integrate Federal assets provided under the
NRF

o Developing plans and response procedures for validating and responding
to an alarm from a chemical or biological detector (response procedures
should include emergency response procedures integrating local first
responders)

o Developing or enhancing evacuation plans
o Developing mechanisms for utilizing the National Emergency Family

Registry and Locator System (NEFRLS)
o Developíng or enhancing plans to prepare for surge capacity of volunteers
o Developing or enhancing the State emergency medical services systems
o Developing or enhancing plans for donations and volunteer management

and the engagemenUintegration of private sector/non-governmental
entities in preparedness, response, and recovery activities

o Developing or enhancing Bombing Prevention Plans
o Developing school preparedness plans
o Developing preparedness plans for child congregate care facilities,

including group residential facilities, juvenile detention facilities, and
public/private child care facilities

o Ensuring jurisdiction EOPs adequately address warnings, emergency
public information, evacuation, sheltering, mass care, resource
management from non-governmental sources, unaffiliated volunteer and
donations management, and volunteer resource integration to support
each Emergency Support Function, to include appropriate considerations
for special needs populations

o Developing and implementing civil rights, civil liberties, and privacy
policies, procedures, and protocols

o Designing and developing State, local, tribal, and territorial geospatial data
systems

o Developing and implementing statewide electronic patient care reporting
systems compliant with the Natíonal Emergency Medical Services
lnformation System (NEMS lS)

. Developing or conducting assessments, including but not límited to:

o Developing pre-event recovery plans
o Conducting point vulnerability assessments at critical infrastructure

sitesikey assets and develop remediation/security plans
o Conducting or updating interoperable emergency communications

capabilities assessments at the local, regional, or Statewide level
o Developing border security operations plans in coordination with CBP
o Developing, implementing, and reviewing Area Maritime Security Plans for

ports, wateruvays, and coastal areas
o Updating and refining threat matrices
o Conducting cyber risk and vulnerability assessments

76

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



o Conducting assessments and exercising existing catastrophic incident
response and recovery plans and capabilities to identify critical gaps that
cannot be met by existing local and State resources

o Conducting Bombing Prevention Capability Analysis
o Activities that directly support the identification of specific catastrophic

incident priority response and recovery projected needs across disciplines
(e.9., law enforcement, fire, EMS, public health, behavioral health, public
works, agricultu re, information technology, and citizen prepared ness)

o Activities that directly support the identification of pre-designated
temporary housing sites

o Conducting community assessments, surveys, and research of
vulnerabilities and resource needs, and determine citizen educatíon and
participation to meet the needs

o Conducting Citizen Corps program assessments and evaluations, citizen
preparedness surveys, volunteer impact studies, and cosUbenefit analysis

o Soft target security planning (e.9., public gatherings)
o Participating in the FEMA Gap Analysis Program

MMRS Planning. The MMRS Leadership shall ensure that local strategic goals,
objectives, operational capabilities, and resource requirements align with State and
Urban Area Homeland Security Strategies. Critical factors in planning are to ensure
that MMRS jurisdictions have:

. Applicable and up to date plans for responding to mass casualty incidents
caused by any hazards

. Applicable procedures and operational guides to implement the response
actions within the local plan including patient tracking that addresses
identifying and tracking children and keeping families intact where possible

. ldentified resources for medical supplies necessary to support children during
an emergency, including pharmaceuticals and pediatric-sized equipment on
which first responders and medical providers are trained

CCP Planning. lntegrating non-governmental entities into the planning process is
critical to achieve comprehensive community preparedness. To meet this important
objective, HSGP funds may be used to support the following:

. Establishing and sustaining bodies to serve as Citizen Corps Councils

. Assuring that State and local government homeland security strategies,
policies, guidance, plans, and evaluations include a greater emphasís on
governmenUnon-governmental collaboration, citizen preparedness, and
volunteer participation

. Developing and implementing a community preparedness strategy for the
State/local jurisdiction

. Developing or reproducing accessible public education and outreach
materials to: increase citizen preparedness and knowledge of protective
actions (to include the national Ready Campaign materials); promote training,

77

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



exercise, and vclunteer opportunities; and inform the public about emergency
plans, evacuation routes, shelter locations, and public alerts/warníngs

o All public education and outreach materials must include the national or
jurisdiction's Citizen Corps logo, tagline or website or the Ready logo,
tagline, or website and comply with logo standards. For morê information
go lo http://vvww.citizencorps.qov. ln addition, all public education and
outreach materials should incorporate special needs considerations, to
include language, content, and method of communication

o Allowable expenditures include:
. Media campaigns: Public Service Announcements (PSAs), camera-

ready materials, website support, and newsletters
. Outreach activities and public events: Booth displays, event

backdrops or signs, displays and demonstrations, utilizing translation
services, and informational materials such as brochures/flyers

. Promotional materials: Pens/pencils, pins, patches, magnets, souvenir
clothingiheadwear, etc. Expenditures for promotional items must not
exceed 15 percent of the total Citizen Corps Program allocation (see
CCP Equipment for information on equipment caps)

. Establishing, expanding, and maintaining volunteer programs and volunteer
recruitment efforts that support disaster preparedness and/or response.

o Citizen support for emergency responders is critical through year-round

. volunteer programs and as surge capacity in disaster response. Citizen
Corps funding may be used to establish, expand, or maintain volunteer
programs that support disaster preparedness and/or response including
but not limited to: Neighborhood Watch/USAonWatch, Community
Emergency Response Teams (CERT), Volunteers in Police Service
(VIPS), Medical Reserve Corps (MRC), Fire Corps, Citízen Corps Affiliate
Programs and Organizations, and jurisdiction specific volunteer efforts

o Allowable expenditures include:
. Recruiting, screening, and training volunteers (e.9., background

checks)
. Retaining, recognizing, and motivating volunteers (e.9., volunteer

recognition items such as certificates or plaques)
. Purchasing, maintaining, or subscribing to a system to track volunteers

(to include identification and credentialing systems, and to track
volunteer hours) and other available resources in compliance with
applicable privacy laws

. Necessary non-structural accommodations to include persons with
special needs (e.9., sign language interpreters)

. Evaluatingvolunteers

78

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



. Organizational activities supported with CCP funding are limited to 25 percent
of the grantee's CCP funding. Organizational activities include hiring of full-
or part-time staff or contractors for emergency management activities.

Add iti on a I Eq u i p m ent I nform ati o n

MMRS Equipment. MMRS funds may be used for equipment acquisition from
the MMRS equipment categories listed in the AEL. MMRS grant funds are
intended to ensure an appropriate supply of pharmaceuticals and equipment,
personal protective equipment, as well as detection equipment for chemical,
biological, radiological, nuclear, and explosive incidents for the first crucial hours
of a response to a mass casualty incident.

MMRS grant funds cannot be used to duplicate supplies already available
through local and State sources, including local/regional public health offices and
hospital associations, or other Federal programs.

Procurements should have a sound threat based justification with an aím to
reduce the cqnsequences of mass casualty incidents during the first crucial hours
of a response.

Prior to procuring pharmaceuticals and equipment with MMRS grant funds,
grantees must have in place an inventory management plan. The inventory
management plan should avoid large periodic variations in supplies due to
coinciding purchase and expiration dates. MMRS grantees are strongly
encouraged to enter into rotational procurement agreements with vendors and
distributors.

Purchases of pharmaceuticals have to include a budget for the disposal of
expired drugs within the períod of performance of the FY 2010 HSGP. The cost
of disposal cannot be carried over to another FEMA grant or grant period.

CCP Equipment. States and Urban Areas are encouraged to fully leverage all
HSGP resources for equipment to support volunteer personnel in preparedness
and response, All allowable equipment costs are listed in the AEL, available at
https://www.rkb.us.

Any equipment purchased with CCP funding must be used for specific
preparedness or volunteer training or by volunteers in carrying out their response
functions. CCP funding is intended only to be used for specific preparedness or
volunteer training or by trained volunteers in carrying out their response
functions. Examples of equipment used to support training and exercises for
citizens include items such as burn pans or sample preparedness kits.

Expenditures for kits used in volunteer response (e.9., CERT or MRC kits /
backpacks) or clothing for official identification must not exceed 30 percent of the

79

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



1.

2.

total Citizen Corps Program allocation. Clothing for official identification includes
those items that volunteers are required to wear when engaging in public safety
activities or disaster response (e.9., t-shirts for CERT members, baseball caps
for Neighborhood Watch/USAonWatch Program foot patrol members).

Training Information and Requirements

Training lnformation Reporting System ("Web-Forms"). Web-Forms is an
electronic form/data management system built to assist the SAA and its designated
State/territory Training Point of Contact (TPOC) with the reporting of State and
Federal sponsored traíning supported by HSGP funds. Web-Forms can be
accessed through the FEMA Toolkit located at.
htt p : //www. f i rstre s p o n d e ¡-tra i n i n q. q ovla d m i n.

Types of Training. FEMA facilitates a number of different training sources:

. FEMA Provided Training. These courses or programs are developed for and/or
delivered by institutions and organizations funded directly by FEMA. This
includes the Center for Domestic Preparedness (CDP), the National Domestic
Preparedness Consortium (NDPC), the Rural Domestic Preparedness
Consortium (RDPC), National Emergency Training Center (National Fire
Academy and the Emergency Management lnstitute), and FEMA Training
Partners funded through the Continuing and Competitive Training grant
programs.

o Training Not Provided by FEMA. These courses are either State sponsored or
Federal sponsored, coordinated and approved by the SAA or their designated
TPOC, and fallwithin the FEMA mission scope to prepare State, local, tribal, and
territorial personnel to prevent, protect against, respond to, and recover from acts
of terrorism or catastrophic events.

. State Sponsored Courses. These courses are developed for and/or delivered
by institutions or organizations other than Federal entities or FEMA and are
sponsored by the SAA or their designated TPOC.

. Approved State Sponsored Course Catalog. This catalog lists State/territory
sponsored courses that fall within the FEMA mission scope and have been
approved through the FEMA course review and approval process. An updated
version of this catalog can be accessed at http://www.firstrespondertraininq.qov.

. Federal Sponsored Courses. This catalog lists courses developed for and/or
delivered by institutions funded by Federal entities other than FEMA.

. Approved Federal Sponsored Gourse Catalog. This catalog lists Federal-
sponsored courses that fall within the FEMA mission scope, and have been
approved through the FEMA course review and approval process. An updated
version of this catalog can be accessed at http://www.firstrespondeñraininq.qov.

80

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



FEMA Provided Training. FEMA funds the direct delivery of a variety of courses that
States, tribes, and territories can request to meet training needs. These courses are
listed in the FEMA approved course catalog listed at
htt p : //www. f ir stre s p o n d eftra i n i n q. q ov.

Each FEMA training partner should contact the SAA or designated TPOC for locations
within the State that are appropriate for the training. When the direct delivery funds are
exhausted, the training partner can continue to offer the classes to the States through
one of two methods-the Voluntary Training Enhancement Program (VTEP) or the
Excess Delivery Acquisition Program (EDAP).

VTEP is a voluntary program designed to increase flexibility for States and territories
while enhancing FEMA's training delivery capability and complementing the current
training partner pool. Funding from previous fiscal years InÍU be used to support a
State, territory, or Urban Area's implementation of this program. Through WEP, the
SAA has the authority to adopt various Training and Exercise lntegration / Training
Operations (TEl/TO) provided programs for delivery by institutions within its State and
local jurisdictions, and designate institutions as recognized providers for the identified
standardized curriculum.

EDAP allows a FEMA training partner to charge for a course delivery when the Federal
grant that developed the program is completed or more deliveries of a requested class
are needed than the grant funds can accommodate. This cost per class is approved by
FEMA so that States pay for the cost of instruction only, not the curriculum development
costs that were paid by FEMA training grant funds. HSGP funds can be used to pay for
the delivery of these classes within a State at the request of the SAA/TPOC.

Attending Training Not Provided by FEMA (State or Federal Sponsored Courses).
States, territories, and Urban Areas are not required to request approval from FEMA for
personnel to attend training not provided by FEMA (State or Federal-sponsored
courses) provided that the training is coordinated with and approved by the SAA or
TPOC and falls within the FEMA mission scope and the jurisdiction's EOP and strategy
of preparing State, local, tribal, and territorial personnel or citizens to prevent, protect
against, respond to, and recover from acts of terrorism or catastrophic events.

States, territories, and Urban Areas are required, within 30 davs after attendance, to
submit information through the SAA or TPOC via Web-Forms on all training not
provided by FEMA, but supported with HSGP funds. This information will consist of
course title, course description, mission area, level of training, the training provider, the
date of the course, the number and associated disciplines of the individuals, and the
sponsoring jurisdiction. States, territories, and Urban Areas intending to use FEMA
funds to support attendance at training not provided by FEMA must ensure these
courses:

81

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



. Fall within the FEMA mission scope to prepare State, local, tribal, and territorial
personnel to prevent, protect against, respond to, and recover from acts of
terrorism and catastrophic events

. Build additional capabilities that: (a) support a specific training need identified by
the State, territory, and Urban Area, and (b) comport with the State, territory, or
Urban Area Homeland Security Strategy

. Address specific tasks and/or competencies articulated in FEMA's Emergency
Responder Guidelínes and the Homeland Security Guidelines for Prevention and
Deterrence

. Address specific capabilities and related tasks articulated in the September 2007
version of the TCL

. Support the specific program training activities identified in the índividual HSGP
grant programs (SHSP, UASI, OPSG, MMRS, CCP) for which the funding will be
used

. Comport with all applicable Federal, State, and local regulations, certifications,
guidelines, and policies deemed appropriate for the type and level of training

ln support of the continuing efforts to build common catalogs of approved training not
provided by FEMA, the SAA/TPOC will be allowed three deliveries of the same course
within a State/territory before the course is required to go through the FEMA State
course review and approval process. Additional course deliveries will be authorized
during the review period. However, if the course is dísapproved as part of the process,
no additional FEMA funds can be dedicated to attending the course.

State and Federal-Sponsored Course Catalogs. Courses approved by FEMA will be
added to either the approved State Sponsored Course Catalog or the Federal
Sponsored Course Catalog. Courses identified withín these catalogs may be attended
on an unlimited basis within any State/territory as long as the training is coordinated and
approved by the SAA/TPOC. A full description of the FEMA Course Development,
Review, and Approval Process, as well as the approved course catalogs, can be found
al http : //www.f i rstre s p o n d e ¡úra i n í n q. q ov/od p we bfo r m s.
FEMA will respond to the initial request for review within 15 days with one of the
following outcomes:

. Course concept is approved as consistent with the State plan and the State
should submit the full course package for subject matter expert review and
comment.

. Course concept is disapproved as inconsistent with State plan, FEMA guidance,
or is exactly the same as another course in the catalog (no need for another
approval, refer to the curriculum already developed and approved).

At any time, the SAA/TPOC (for State-sponsored courses) or the Federal Agency POC
(for Federal sponsored courses) may request the addition of a course to the
corresponding approved catalog by submitting the associated Web-Form (i.e., Request
for Addition to the Approved State-Sponsored Catalog) for review. lf a class on the
same subject is already in the catalog, the submitting State should provide
documentation as to why the course is unique, after contacting the owne(s) of the other

82

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



courses to review the curriculum. This step is required to avoid unnecessary duplication
of similar courses in the catalog, allow States to share course development costs,
permit all States to have access to new or unique courses developed by other
providers, and allow States to direct their training dollars to delivery rather than
development. lf it is determined that the proposed course meets the above listed
criteria, the providing entity (SAAiTPOC or Federal Agency POC) will be invited to
submit the Course Review and Approval Request Form along with all supporting
training materials.

For further information on developing courses using the instructional design
methodology and tools that can facilitate the process, SAAs and TPOCs are
encouraged to review the FEMA Strategy for Blended Learning and access the
Responder Training Development Center (RTDC) available at
htt p : //www. f i r stre sp o n d e ñra i n i n q. q ov/rtd c/state/.

FEMA funds must be used to supplement, not supplant, existing funds that have been
appropriated for the same purpose. FEMA will conduct periodic reviews of all State,
territory, and Urban Area training funded by FEMA. These reviews may include
requests for all course materials and physical observation of, or participation in, the
funded training. lf these reviews determíne that courses are outside the scope of this
guidance,
efforts.

States and territories are required to conduct an lmprovement Plan Workshop and
Training and Exercise Plan Workshop to identify best practices, capability gaps, key
priorities, and major events over a multi-year time frame and to align training and
exercises ín support of those priorities. A Multi-year Training and Exercise Plan will be
produced from the Training and Exercise Plan Workshop to include the State's training
and exercise priorities, associated training and exercise capabilities, and a multi-year
training and exercise schedule. Further guidance concerning the Multi-year Training
and Exercise Plan can be found in the Exercises discussion immediately following.

CCP Training. Training funded through the CCP includes but is not limited to: all-
hazards safety such as emergency preparedness, basic first aid, life saving skills, crime
prevention and terrorism awareness, school preparedness, public health issues,
mitigation/property damage prevention, safety in the home, light search and rescue
skills, principles of NIMS/ICS, community relations, volunteer management, serving
people with disabilities, pet care preparedness, any training necessary to participate in
volunteer activities, any training necessary to fulfill surge capacity roles, or other training
that promotes individual, family, or community safety and preparedness.
There is no cap on the number of deliveries State or localjurisdictions may conduct of
non-responder community-based training workshops, seminars, demonstrations, or
conferences. Examples include: CPR/AED training, identity theft workshops, terrorism
awareness seminars, chain-saw safety demonstrations, and community preparedness
conferences.

83

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Funding for CERT training includes the delivery of the CERT Basic Training Course,
supplemental training for CERT members who have completed the basic training, and
the CERT Train{he-Trainer training. Any CERT Basic training conducted by State or
local entities must: 1) include the topics covered in the FEMA CERT Basíc Training
Course; 2)be instructor-led; and 3) classroom-based, using lecture, demonstration, and
hands-on practice throughout. Note that the lndependent Study course, "lntroduction to
CERT' (lS 317) must not be substituted for classroom delivery of CERT Basic Training.
There is no cap on the number of deliveries State or localjurisdictions may conduct of
the CERT Basic Training, the CERT Train-the-Trainer, Campus CERT Train{he-
Trainer, or Teen CERT Train{he-Trainer courses, or supplemental/advanced training
for CERT program partícipants.

Any training supported with these CCP funds should be delivered with specific
consideration to include all ages, ethnic and cultural groups, persons with disabilities,
and special needs populations at venues throughout the community, to include schools,
neighborhoods, places of.worship, the private sector, non-governmental organizations,
and government locations. Expenditures to provide necessary non-structural
accommodations for persons with special needs is allowable (e.9., sign language
interpreters). Jurisdictions are also encouraged to leverage existing training provided
via educational/professional facilities and to incorporate non-traditional methodologies
such as the internet, distance learning, or home study whenever such delivery supports
training objectives. Pilot courses and innovative approaches to trainíng citizens and
instructors are encouraged.

lnstruction for trainers and training to support the Citizen Corps Council members in
their efforts to manage and coordinate the Citizen Corps mission is also an allowable
use of the FY 2010 CCP funding.

Allowable Trai n i ng Cosús
Allowable training-related costs include, but are not limited to, the following:

¡ Developing, Delivering, and Evaluating Training - lncludes costs related to
administering the training, planning, scheduling, facilities, materials and supplies,
reproduction of materials, and equipment.

. Overtime and Backfill - The entire amount of overtime costs, including
payments related to backfilling personnel, which are the direct result of
attendance at FEMA and/or approved training courses and programs, are
allowable. These costs are allowed only to the extent the payment for such
services is in accordance with the policies of the State or unit(s) of local
government and has the approval of the State or the awarding agency,
whichever is applicable. ln no æse is dual compensation allowable. That is, an
employee of a unit of government may not receive compensation from their unit
or agency of government AND from an award for a single period of time (e.9.,
1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.), even though such work may benefit both activities.

84

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



1.

. Trave¡- Costs (e.9., airfare, mileage, per diem, hotel) are allowable as
expenses by employees who are on travel status for official business related to
approved training.

. Hiring of Full or Part-Time Staff or Gontractors/Consultants - Payment of
salaries and fringe benefits to full or part-time staff or contractors/consultants
must be in accordance with the policies of the State or unit(s) of local
government and have the approval of the State or awarding agency, whichever is
applicable. Such costs must be included within the funding allowed for program
management personnel expenses, which must not exceed 15 percent of the total
allocation as specified in section E.6. ln no case is dual compensation allowable

Lsee above).
. Certification/Recertification of lnstructors - States are encouraged to follow

the FEMA lnstructor Quality Assurance Program to ensure a minimum level of
competency and corresponding levels of evaluation of student learning. This is
particularly important for those courses that involve training of trainers. This
information is contained in lnformation Bulletin #193, issued October 20,2005.

Exercise Requirements

Training and Exercise Plan Workshop. States and Urban Areas are required to
conduct an annual lmprovement Plan Workshop (lPW) and a Training and Exercise
Plan Workshop (TEPW). A Multi-year Training and Exercise Plan must be
developed from the workshops and submitted to the State's respective Exercise
Manager and Program Analyst. This plan must be updated annually.

The Training and Exercise Plan will include the State's prioritized capabilities and a
multi-year training and exercise schedule that supports the identified capabilities.
The Plan, inclusive of the training and exercise schedule, must be submitted within
90 days of the workshop. All scheduled training and exercises must be entered in
the National Exercise Schedule (NEXS), located in the HSEEP Toolkit on the
HSEEP website https://hseep.dhs.qov. An IPW and TEPW user guide and a
template of the Multi-Year Training and Exercise Plan can be found on the HSEEP
website http s://h see p. d h s. oov.

States must complete a cycle of exercise activity during the period of this grant.
States and Urban Areas are encouraged to use exercises as an opportunity to meet
the requirements of multiple exercise programs. To this end, grantees are
encouraged to invite representatives/planners involved with other Federally-
mandated or private exercise activities. States and Urban Areas are encouraged to
share, at a minimum, the multi-year training and exercise schedule with those
departments, agencies, and organizations included in the plan.

Exercise Scenarios. The scenarios used in HSGP-funded exercises must be
based on the State/Urban Area's Homeland Security Strategy and plans.
Acceptable scenarios for SHSP, UASI, MMRS, and CCP exercises include:
chemical, biological, radiological, nuclear, explosive, cyber, agricultural and natural

2.

85

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



or technological disasters. Exercise scenarios must be catastrophic in scope and
size as defined by the NationalResponse Framework.

The scenarios used in HSGP-funded exercises must focus on validating existing
capabilities and must be large enough in scope and size to exercise multiple tasks
and warrant involvement from multiple jurisdictions and disciplines and non-
governmental organizations. Exercise scenarios should also be based on the Multi-
year Training and Exercise Plan.

3. Special Event Planning. lf a State or Urban Area will be hosting a special event
(e.9., Super Bowl, G-8 Summít)they are approved to participate in a Tier I or Tier ll
exercise as approved by the National Exercise Program (NEP) Executive Steering
Committee per the NEP lmplementation Plan. They should plan to use SHSP or
UASI funding to fìnance training and exercise activities in preparation for those
events. States and Urban Areas should also consider exercises at major venues
(e.9., arenas, convention centers) that focus on evacuations, communications, and
command and control. States should also anticipate participating in at least one
Regional Exercise annually. States must include all confirmed or planned special
events in the Multi-year Traíning and Exercise Plan.

4. Exercise Evaluation. All exercises will be capabilities and performance-based and
evaluated using Exercise Evaluation Guides (EEGs) found on the HSEEP website at
https://hseep.dhs.oov. An After-Action Reporllmprovement Plan (AAR/IP) will be
prepared and submitted to the FEMA Grants and Preparedness Community of
lnterest (COl) on the Homeland Security lnformation Network (HSIN) within 90 days
following completion of the exercise, regardless of type or scope. AAR/lPs must
conform to the HSEEP format, should capture objective data pertaining to exercise
conduct, and must be developed based on information gathered through EEGs
found in HSEEP. All applicants are encouraged to use the Lessons Learned
lnformation Sharing System as a source for lessons learned and to exchange best
practices.

5. Self-Sustaining Exercise Programs. States are expected to develop a self-
sustaining exercise program. A self-sustaining exercise program is one that is
successfully able to implement, maintain, and oversee the Multi-year Training and
Exercise Plan, including the development and delivery of HSGP-funded exercises.
The program must utilize a multi-disciplinary approach to the development and
delivery of exercises, and build upon existing plans, training, and equipment.

6. Role of Non-Governmental Entities in Exercises. Non-governmental
participation in all levels of exercises is strongly encouraged. Leaders from non-
governmental entities should be included in the planning, conduct, and evaluation of
an exercise. State, local, tribal, and territorialjurisdictions are encouraged to
develop exercises that test the integration and use of non-governmental resources
provided by non-governmental entities, defined as the private sector and private
non-profit, faith-based, community, volunteer, and other non-governmental

86

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



organizations. Non-governmental participation in exercises should be coordinated
with the local Citizen Corps Council(s) and other partner agencies.

MMRS Exercises. The scenarios used in MMRS exercises should focus on incidents
that would be catastrophic to the grant ímplementer's community and/or have national
impact caused by any hazard. Grantees are encouraged to use scenarios with a focus
on medical issues related to preparedness and response. Scenarios should test
appropriate Target Capabilities that support the MMRS mission.

Citizen participation in exercises is strongly encouraged and should be coordinated with
the local Medical Reserve Corps and Citizen Corps Council. Volunteer roles and
responsibilities include, but are not limited to, backfilling non-professional tasks for first
responders deployed on exercise planning and implementation, providing simulated
victims, media, and members of the public, supporting surge capacity functions, and
participating in the after-action review.

MMRS jurisdictions, in coordínation with regional, Urban Area, and State exercises, and
public health officials (e.9., EMS), are expected to schedule, design, conduct, and
evaluate mass casualty exercises that are in compliance with both FEMA and CDC
Public Health Emergency Preparedness Cooperative Agreement Exercise requirements
and guidance.

CCP Exercises. Exercises specifically designed for or that include participation from
non-governmental entities and the general public are allowable activities and may
include testing public warning systems, evacuation/shelter in-place capabilities,
family/school/business preparedness, and participating in table{op or full scale
emergency responder exercises at the local, State, tribal, territorial, or national level, to
include the National Level Exercises (formally known as Top Officials Exercise

[roPoFF]).

Allowable Exercise Cosfs
Allowable exercise-related costs include:

o Funds Used to Design, Develop, Conduct, and Evaluate an Exercise -
lncludes costs related to planning, meeting space and other meeting costs,
facilitation costs, materials and supplies, travel, and documentation. Grantees
are encouraged to use government facilities to conduct meetings and
conferences whenever possible.

. Hiring of Full or Part-Time Staff or Contractors/Consultants - Full or part-
time staff may be hired to support exercise-related activities. Such costs must be
included within the funding allowed for program management personnel
expenses, which must not exceed 15 percent of the total allocation. The
applicant's formal written procurement policy or the Federal Acquisition
Regulations (FAR)- whichever is more stringent - must be followed. ln no case
is dual compensation allowable.

87

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



. Overt¡me arid Backfill - The entire amount of overtime costs, including
payments related to backfìlling personnel, which are the direct result of time
spent on the design, development, and conduct of exercises are allowable
expenses. These costs are allowed only to the extent the payment for such
services is in accordance with the policies of the State or unit(s) of local
government and has the approval of the State or the awarding agency,
whichever is applicable. ln no case is dual compensation allowable. That is, an
employee of a unit of government may not receive compensation from their unit
or agency of government AND from an award for a single period of time (e.9.,
1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.), even though such work may benefit both activities.

. Travel - Travel costs are allowable as expenses by employees who are on travel
status for official business related to the planning and conduct of exercise
project(s) or HSEEP programmatic requirements as described in the HSEEP
website (e.9., lmprovement Plan Workshops, Training and Exercise Plan).

. Supplies - Supplies are items that are expended or consumed during the course
of the planning and conduct of the exercise project(s) (e.9., copying paper,
gloves, tape, non-sterile masks, and disposable protective equipment).

. Other ltems - These costs include the rental of equipment (e.9., portable toilets,
tents), food, gasoline, exercise signs, badges, etc.

U na uthorized Exerc i se Cosfs
Unauthorized exercise-related costs include:

. Reimbursement for the maintenance and/or wear and tear costs of general use
vehicles (e.9., construction vehicles) and emergency response apparatus (e.9.,
fire trucks, ambulances).

r Equipment that is purchased for permanent installation and/or use, beyond the
scope of exercise conduct (e.9., electronic messaging signs).

88

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Section G - Allowable Plannihg, Training,
and Exercise Examples Specific to Law

Enforcement Terrorism Prevention-oriented
Activities

Planning Activity Examples

Establishment / Enhancement of Fusion Centers
. Hiring an lT specialist to plan, develop, and implement the lT applications

necessary for the fusion center
. Developing and planning for information/intelligence sharing groups
. Hiring contractors and consultants to make recommendations on the

development of capabilities qt State and Major Urban Area fusion centers; such
centers should be designed in support of the analytic and other baseline
capabilities as outlined in the Global Justice lnformation Sharing lnitiative's
(Global) Baseline Capabilities for Sfafe and Major Urban Area Fusion Centers

Other Allowable Planning Activity Examples
. Developing mass evacuation plans
. Conducting point vulnerability analyses and assessments
. Soft target security planning (e.9., public gatherings)
. Developing border security operations plans in coordination with CBP
¡ Developing, implementing, and reviewing Area Maritime Security Plans for ports,

waterways, and coastal areas
. Updating and refining threat matrices
. lntegrating and coordinating private sector participation with fusion center

activities
. Developing and implementing civil rights, civil liberties and privacy policies,

procedures, and protocols
. Acquiring systems allowing connectivity to State, local, tribal, territorial, and

Federal data networks, such as the National Crime lnformation Center (NCIC)
and lntegrated Automated Fingerprint ldentification System (lAFlS), as
appropriate

. Designing and developing State and local geospatial data systems

. Costs associated with the adoption, implementation, and adherence to NIMS
compliance requírements; including implementing the NIMS National
Credentialing Framework

. lntegrating and coordinating private sector participation with fusion center
activities

89

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Traíning Activity Examples
Law enforcement terrorism prevention protection-oriented funds may be used for a
range of law enforcement terrorism prevention related training activities to enhance the
capabilities of State and local personnel, including the following:

Establishment / Enhancement of Fusion Centers. Grant funds may be used to
support intelligence analyst training in the following manners:

. Participation in DHS approved intelligence analyst training: States wishing
to develop or sponsor intellígence analyst courses for a national audience should
submít courses to FEMA for review and approval in accordance with the process
outlined in Parts Vl and Vll of this guidance document. The list of approved
courses will be constantly updated and can be accessed in the FEMA catalog at
http ://vwvw.fírstre sp o nd ertrai n i n q. q ov/od p webform s.

. Limited participation in non-FEMA approved intelligence analyst training:
States may send'students to attend non-approved intelligence analysis courses
for up to three offerings in accordance with the training process outlined in Parts
Vl and Vll of this guidance document.

A certificate of completion of all intelligence analyst training must be on file with the SAA
and must be made available to Program Analysts upon request upon the hiring of
personnel.

Funds utilized to establish or enhance designated State and Major Urban Area fusion
centers must support the development of a statewide fusion process that corresponds
with the Global Justice/Homeland Security Advisory Council (HSAC) Fusion Center
Guidelines and the National Strategy for lnformation Sharing, and achievement of a
baseline level of capability as defined by Global's Baseline Capabilities for State and
Major Urban Area Fusion Centers, a supplement to the Fusion Center Guidelines,
located at http ://www. it. oip. qov/docu ments/base Ii necap abilitiesa. pdf .

Additional Allowable Training Activitìes
Allowable costs include training courses that focus on:

. Building information sharing capacities (especially among law enforceinent, non-
law enforcement, other government agencies, and the private sector)

. Methods of target hardening

. Facility law enforcement security personnel, to include facilities, vessels, and
ports

. CBRNE, agriculture, and cyber threats
o History of terrorism and social environments contributing to threats
. Surveillance and counter-surveillance techniques
o Privacy, civil rights, and civil liberties regulations, policies, procedures, and

protocols

90

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



. Critical lnfrastructure Protection training, to include identifying/assessing critical
infrastructure assets, vulnerabilities, and threats

. Cyber/agriculture/food security threats recognition and protective measures
training

. Cultural awareness training for community engagement activities and undercover
operations related to terrorist organizations

. Languages such as Arabic, Urdu, or Farsi which are spoken by known terrorists
and terrorist organizations

. Joint training with other homeland security entities (e.9., U.S. Secret Service,
cBP)

. Using interoperablecommunicationsequipment

. Collection, analysis, mapping, integration, and dissemination of geospatial data
and imagery

. Geospatial database use, design, development, and management training

. Volunteer participation to support law enforcement and community policing
activities related to increased citizen awareness of terrorism activities, to include
the Volunteers in Police Service and Neighborhood Watch programs

Exercise Activity Examples
Law enforcement terrorism prevention protection-oriented funds may be used to design,
develop, conduct, and evaluate terrorism prevention-related exercises, including the
following:

. Exercises to evaluate the effectiveness of information sharing plans, policies,
procedures, and protocols

. Exercises to evaluate NIMS implementation. This includes costs associated with
exercising components of the NIMS National Credentialing Framework

. Exercises to evaluate facility andior vessel security protection

. Exercises to evaluate area maritime security protection

. Exercises to evaluate threat recognition capabilities

. Exercises to evaluate cyber security capabilities

. Exercises to evaluate agricultural/food security capabilities

. Exercises to evaluate prevention readiness and techniques

. "Red Team" (force on force) exercises
o Interoperable communications exercises
. Critical infrastructure vulnerability, protectíon, and/or attack exercises

Where practical, these exercises should involve the public sector, non-governmental
partners, trained citizen volunteers, and the general public. State and local
governments should work with their Citizen Corps Councils to include volunteers from
programs such as Volunteers in Police Service, Neighborhood Watch, and the general
public.

91

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exhib¡t H

lntentionally Omitted

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exh¡b¡t I

Equipment Ledger

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



ffiræúnælàidaopfi atíonapprcuàLntdi@llot'ot'itoga;;ã; 
n 

", 
æ aae¿ ¡o eøv aàáit-¡eiu7råi¡ anv atÞù nnanút f'ànaseøÈt Íaæ wo¡f<þæk'

FMFWvt.09M- 06109 AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exh¡b¡t J

Training Roster

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



CAUFORNIA EMÊRGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENEY

n del¿y& apÞl¡Aüi1n aÐ¡oya[ múilicaËon or
Sabgrentæ æf beds@ lo Ev¡æand/arÊ-flbmitdnyaltetúF¡nanchl ManagenttFo¡ms Wùkfuk

äie:r:
t;i:i1i: þÍ¿rrìö #

,'.:l

;" ;oï

¡i ::j :....:-'ijjr;j. i:jji i.;,:::::i .ii;:i i¡

FMFWrl.oglvr 06,109

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exh¡bit K

Exercise Roster

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



CATIFORNIA ËMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY

5ufuBnlæs mayæ ¿rs4d þ revÍ* and/ot E-srbil¡t aõy alte!ú FÍnanclàl MemæMt FomE WorkM(.

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exhibit L

Planning Roster

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



CALÎFORNIA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY

Slrþgrêntees mèy be àsked to rcvise aad/or re-submit any altered frnâncìal l"tanãgement turms Workþook

FMFW y1,09M- 0Ê/09

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exh¡b¡t M

Modification Request Form

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Los Angeles/Long Beach UASI Grant

Modification Request Form

Rev.05.29.09 AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exhibit N

Sole Source Request Form

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY

Ilomeland Security Grant Program (please check):
! UASI FY 07, Grant #:2007-0008, CaIEMA ID #: 037-95050
! UASI FY 08, Grant #: 2008-0006, CaIEMA ID #: 037-95050
! UASI FY 09, Grant #: 2009-0019, CaIEMA.ID #: 037-95050
Subgrantee name: Los Angelesllong Beach Urban Area
Jurisdiction: AgencylDepartment:
Proj ect Master Line#/Sub-Iine# :

REOT]EST FOR SOLE SOURCE PROCTJREMENT AUTHORIZATION

1. Project name: Project Budget: $

2. Describe the project and/or activity that will be provided by the proposed sole source
vendor/contractor.

3. Describe your organization's standard procedures when sole source contracting is considered,
including the conditions under which a sole source contract is allowed, and any other applicable
criteria (i.e. approval requirements, monetary thresholds, etc.).

4. Indicate which of the following circumstances resulted in your organization's need to enter into a

sole source contact.

a. Itern/service is only available from one source (Describe the process used to make that
detennination. Please provide details.)

b. A public urgency or emergency will not perrnit a delay resulting from competitive
solicitation. According to the US Department of Homeland SecurityÆEMA, "Time
constraints will not be considered a factor if the subgrantee has not sought competitive
bids in a timely manner." (Describe the urgency or emergency. Please provide details)

c. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition was detemrined inadequate.
(Describe the solicitation process that determined competition was inadequate. Please

provide details, and attach any relevant supporting material, Request for Proposal, etc.)

5. Did your organization confirm that the contractor/vendor is not debarred or suspended?

6. Will your organiTa¡isabe able to complete all activities associated with the sole source contract
by the end of the grant performance period?

7. Has your organization determined the costs are reasonable?

8. Please attach a copy of the cost benefit analysis prepared for this procurement.

Date:Submitted by
(Name) (Signature)

Cal EMA SSRF rev 9/30/10

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exh¡b¡t O

lntentionallY Omitted

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exhib¡t P

Reimbursement Request Form

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



CITY OF LOS ANGELES

URBAN AREA SECURITY INITfATIVE GRANT

Reimbursement Request Form

Return Expenditure Reo?ests to:
Grant Specialist

Mayocs Office of Homeland Securlty and Publíc Safety

200 N. Spring St., Room #M175

Los Angeles, CA 9001 2

Fexl.213.978.0718

Project Letter:

Master ltem #:
Sub-Line #;

Jurisdiction:

Agency/Department:

Expenditure Period:

Prepared By:
Phone No.:

to

UASI FYOT

UASI FYOE

!
n Please mark this box to indícate

final request for reimbursement fl

Type of Expenditure
Authorized

Total Amount
Previously
Reouest

Current
Request

Gumulative
Request

Balance

Eouioment

Exercise

frainino

Planninq

Coerational Activities

[/anaoement & Admin

ThÍs reimbursement claîm is in allrespecfs true, correct, and all expenditures were made in accordance

with applìcabte 1aws, rules, regulations, and grant conditions and assttrances. ln addition, this claim

is for cost incurred within the Grant Pertormance Period. AIso, all supporting documentatìon related to

these expenditureswill be retained in acçordance with grant guídelines.

AuthorÌzed Department APProval : Please Remit Payment to:

Print Name Agency

C¡ty

Reference No.

Stale zipS¡gnature

Phone No. (extension) Fax No.

E-mail Address

DHS/OES Reimbursement Request BY: Transaction lD: Dáte:___ -

DHS/OES Reimbursement Rece¡ved:- Cash Receþt No. JV No.

Transfer to Depart Date:- JV No, lnvoice No.

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exh¡b¡t Q

Aviation EquiPment Request Form

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



2.

3.

GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Aviation Equipment Request

Homeland Security Grant Program (please check):
! UASI FY 08, Grant #: 2008-0006, OES lD: 037-95050
tr UASI FY 09, Grant #: 2009-0019, OES lD: 037-95050
! UASI FY 10, Grant #:2010-0085, OES lD: 037-95050

UASl/County Name: LA/LB
Jurisdiction/Agency:
Line #:
Date:

1. lndicate the type of equipment for this request

Aviation Equipment Aviation Related Equipment

Provide a description of the area that will be served by the requested equipment.

Please justify the need for the aviation equipment and how the requested platform
best meets that need as compared to other options. lnclude the cost, discipline, and
funding source.

Please certify on signed letterhead that an existing aviation unit is operating and will
continue to operate independent of the requested funding. Describe the active,
operating aviation unit and certify that no expenses will be charged against the grant
award for the general operational costs of such aviation unit.

5. ldentify the applicable goals and objectives in the State/Urban Area Homeland
Security Strategy that the requested aviation equipment addresses.

6. Explain how the requested aviation equipment fits into the State/Urban Area's
integrated operational plans.

7. Explain how this aviation equipment will support activities specifically related to
terrorism incident prevention and response efforts.

4.

OHS Fonn AVI Rev 03-08

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



OHS Aviation Request Form
Page Two

8. Please describe how this aviation equipment will be used operationally and which
response assets will be deployed using the requested aircraft.

g. Please describe how this aviation equipment will be utilized on a regular, non-
emergency basis.

10. Please certify licensing, registration fees, insurance, and all ongoing operational
expenses are (a) the responsibility of the grantee or the local units of government
and (b) are not allowable under this grant.

OHS Form AW Rev 03-08

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exhibit R

Establish/Enhance EOG Request Forrn

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Request to Establish/Enhance Emerqencv Operations Center (EOC)

Homeland Security Grant Program (please check):
! UASI FY 06, Grant #: 2006-0071, OES lD: 037-95050
¡ UASI FY 07, Grant #:2007-0008, OES lD: 037-95050
! UASI FY 08, Grant #: 2008-0006, OES lD: 037-95050

UASliCounty Name: LA/LB
Jurisdiction/Agency:
Line #:
Date:
EOC Address/Location:

Street Address, City, Zip Code

1. What type of EOC does your organization plan to establish/enhance? (Choose one of
the following)

Primary EOC Alternate/B ack-up/Duplicate EOC

2. Describe how the establishmenUenhancement of an EOC improves your
organization's ability to prevent, plan for, respond to, and recover from a terrorism
event (on a separate attachment).

3. ldentify anticipated costs to establish/enhance your organization's EOC.

L:\FIS-PS TeamWomeland Security GRANTS\UASI Handbook\Fonns\CalEMA Forms\EOC request
Form Rev 03.04.1O.doc

Supplies/Equipment Gost AEL
number

Computers
Network Servers
Printers

Computer accessory devices (i.e. surge protectors, battery backups,
etc.)
Computer maintenance contracts
Computer connections and cables (including fìber optic cabling)

Office Furniture (i.e. chairs, desks, tables, modular furniture, partitions,
etc.)

Lighting Systems
LCD projectors

Projection/plasma/fl at screens/monitors/televisions (Explain why
a regular television is unsuitable for the particular project, and explain how
this item will enhance your organization's overall ability to prevent, plan,

resoond to and recover from a terrorism event.)

Televisions

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Telephone systems
Software development
Com mercial offthe-shelf (COTS ) software

Moving Costs (Explain the circumstances under whích the moving or
leasino costs will be incurred.)

GIS plotter and software
Standardized mapping sofüvare

Standardized emergency management software

Fax machines

Copy machines
lnstallation of EOC items

Miscellaneous connections for EOC items

Leasing Costs'(lndicate starting and ending dates of lease and explain
the circumstances under which the moving or leasing costs will be
incurred.)

Other (must provide list/description of "other" items and costs)

TOTAL - EOC Supplies and Equipment

Other:

Prepared By:

L:VIS-PS TeamWomeland Security GRANTS\UASI Handbook\Forms\CalEMA Fonns\EOC request

FormRev 03.04.10.doc

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exhib¡t S

Establish/Enhance JRIC Request Form

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY MA,NAGEMENT AGENCY

Homeland Security Grant Program FY 

- 

Grant Number OES ID#
Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) FY 

- 

Grant Number OES ID#
Other GrantNumber OES ID#

ESTABLISHÆNIIANCE JOINT REGIONAL INTELLIGENCE CENTER (JRICI REOUEST

1 . What type of JRIC does your organization plan to establish/enhance? (Choose one of the

following)

Primary JRIC Alternate/Back-up/Duplicate JRIC

2. Physical address of facility

3. Describe how the establishmenlenhancement of an JRIC improves your organization's ability to

prevent, plan for, respond to, and recover from a ter¡orism event (on a separate attachment).

4. Identiff all other sources and uses of additional funds assisting the project in any way.

5. Identiff anticipated homeland security grant costs to est¿blish/enhance your organization's JRIC in
the table below.

SuopliesÆquipment AEL # Cost

Computers

Network Servers

Printers

Computer accessories (i.e. surge protectors, battery backups, etc.)

Computer maintenance contracts

Computer connections and cables (including fiber optic cabling)

Fax machines

Lighting Systems

LCD projectors

Proj ection/plasma/fl at sc¡eens/monitors/televrsrons

(Explain why a regrlar television is unsuitable for the particular project,
and explain how this item will enhance your organization's overall abilify

to prevent, plan, respond to and recover fiom a terrorism event.)

GIS plotter and software

Telephone systems

Software development

Commercial off-the-shelf (COTS) software

CaIEMA JRICRF rev 8/27/09

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Installation of JRIC items

Miscellaneous connections for JRIC items

S tandardized mapping software

Standardized emergency management software

Installation of JRIC items

Miscellaneous connections for JRIC items
Leasing Costs'(Indicate starting and ending dates of lease and explain
the circumstances under which the moving or leasing costs will be
incurred.)

Other (must provide list/description of "other" items and costs)

TOTAL - JRIC Supplies and Equipment 
I

6. Explanation of "other" items:

7. Has your orgatizationdetermined the costs are reasonable?

Submitted by-- .
(Name) (Sigratu¡e)

Date:

CaIEMA JRICRF rev 8/27/09

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



Exh¡bit T

Forma Project Timelíne

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



LARIGS UASI 1O PROJECT TIMELINE

ProiecUTask

Motorola Design Activities - January - March 2014

Jacobs Engineering Project
Management Activities

Environmental Consultant / El RylS/MND

Core 2 Hardware and Software

System on Wheels

Portable Radio Upgrade Kits

lnstallation, Optimization, Staging and Testing*

Performance Bond for Equipment*

Total Approved Expenditures

Expenditure

$3,000,000

$1,000,000

$677,000

$10,480,645

$1,200,000

$ 2,453,434

$ 500,000

$ 95,000

$19,406,079.00

Completion Date

03131114

03131114

03131114

03131114

03131114

03131114

03131114

03131114

* Pending confirmation from Motorola

AGENDA ITEM 7 - ATTACHMENT A



LOS ANGELES REGIONAL INTEROPERABLE
COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM AUTHORITY

2525 Corporate Place, Suite 200
Monterey Park, California 917 54

(323) 881-8291

LA.RICS

PATRICK J. MALLON
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

October 2,2014

Board of Directors
Los Angeles Regional lnteroperable Communications System Authority (the "Authority")

Dear Directors:

APPROVE NEGOTIATIONS FOR A SOLE SOURCE AGREEMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION
OF AN OUTSIDE FREQUENCY COORDINATOR FOR FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS

coMMtsstoN (Fcc) AND RADTO SPECTRUM MATTERS

SUBJECT

Board approval is requested to authorize the Executive Director to negotiate a sole source
agreement (Agreement) for acquisition of an outside Frequency Coordinator to serve as the
Authority's subject matter expert on all matters concerning the FCC, serve as a liaison between
the FCC and the Authority, and find suitable radio spectrum for the Authority's use.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

It is recommended that your Board:

Delegate authority to the Executive Director to enter into negotiations for an Agreement with
Mr. Ronald Wong to 1) serve as an FCC subject matter expert to the Authority, 2) serve as a
liaison between the FCC and the Authority, and 3) assist the Authority with finding suitable radio
spectrum, allfor a period not to exceed six (6) months.

BACKGROUND

On August 15,2013, your Board awarded Agreement No. LA-RICS 007 for Los Angeles
Regional lnteroperable Communications System Land Mobile Radio (LMR) Network, a hybrid,
integrated, regional public safety wireless communications system, operating in both UHF T-
Band and 700 MHz spectrum, that, when built, will provide public safety first responders real
time mission critical voice and data communications to support day-to-day, mutual aid, task
force, and provide immediate and coordinated assistance in times of emergency, thereby
minimizing the loss of life and property within the greater Los Angeles region.

The purpose of this hybrid system is to provide a logical path for the Authority to operate full
public safety grade communications on both spectrums and allow for a gradual migration that

AGENDA ITEM 8



LA-RICS Board of Directors
October 2,2014
Page 2

Mr. Wong is a current employee of the County in the lnternal Services Department ("lSD"), and
is expected to retire from County service in October 2014. While at LA-RICS, Mr. Wong's role
has been instrumental in representing the Authority in all matters concerning the Authority's use
of radio spectrum as well as coordinating and obtaining licensing applications and waivers
submitted to the FCC.

PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION

Approval of the recommended actions would allow the Authority to negotiate an agreement with
Mr. Wong, who the Authority considers an integral component to the LA-RICS project. lt is
crucial to the Authority to enter into an Agreement with Mr. Wong as he possesses extensive
knowledge of FCC licensing, applications, and waivers and maintains working relationships with
the FCC and Radio Frequency committees as it relates to the LA-RICS project. Mr. Wong is
currently employed with ISD and has been assigned to the LA-RICS project for approximately
five years. Mr. Wong serves as the current liaison between the FCC and the Authority, but is
expected to retire from the County of Los Angeles in October 2014. Mr. Wong has 43 years of
experience in this field, of which 25 have been working for the County of Los Angeles. He
currently sits on the California Public-Safety Radio Association (CPRA) as the Alternate
Frequency Planning Coordinator and is the past Chair of the 800 MHz Regional Planning
Committee. Due to the Authority's limited personnel resources and aggressive project
deadlines, an Agreement between the Authority and Mr. Wong would allow for LA-RICS to
continue to have its critical FCC matters timely handled by a person who is very knowledgeable
about the LA-RICS project and its FCC needs, while also allowing for a period not to exceed six
months to successfully transition Mr. Wong's position as an FCC Coordinator to another. The
Authority will return to your Board to request permission for delegated authority to execute an
Agreement between the Authority and Mr. Wong, if an agreement is successfully reached
between the parties.

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCI NG

There is no fiscal impact.

FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENT

ïhe Authority's counsel has reviewed the recommended actions.

AG REEMENTS/CONTRAGTI NG

Upon the Board's approval of the recommended action, on behalf of the Authority, the Executive
Director will have authority to enter into negotiations for an Agreement with Mr. Wong.



LA-RICS Board of Directors
October 2,2014
Page 3

c: Counsel to the Authority

Attachment

Respectfully submitted,

PATRICK J. LLON
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR



 

LOS ANGELES REGIONAL INTEROPERABLE 
COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM AUTHORITY 

2525 Corporate Place, Suite 200 
Monterey Park, California 91754 

(323) 881-8291 
 

PATRICK J. MALLON 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9 

 
 
October 2, 2014 
 
Board of Directors 
Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System (“LA-RICS”) Authority 
(the “Authority”) 
 
Dear Directors: 
 

ELECTIONS FOR AT-LARGE BOARD MEMBERS 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
It is recommended that your Board set April 2, 2015 for mail-in-ballot election of the four (4) At-Large 
Director and four (4) Alternate Director seats.  The Board should note that only member agencies of the 
Authority are eligible to vote for the At-Large Director seats and to hold such seats, and the current Opt-
Out period for member agencies following adoption of the Funding Plan does not run until November 24, 
2015.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On June 2, 2011, the Board of Directors approved a motion to suspend Section 3.01 of the Authority’s 
Bylaws for a period of one year (per Article III Section 3.01 of the Bylaws), thereby postponing the At-
Large Director and Alternate Director elections. 
 
On December 15, 2011, the Board of Directors approved a motion to set the At-Large Member Directors 
and Alternate Directors mail-in ballot elections for Thursday, June 7, 2012, with the caveat that the 
Authority's counsel would review the consistency of the Authority's Bylaws with the Joint Powers 
Agreement regarding which member cities may vote for the At-Large Directors and Alternate Directors. 
 
On February 2, 2012, the Board of Directors approved a motion to vacate the election timeline 
established since the date selected for the election did not meet the 6-month requirement outlined in the 
Bylaws due to the rescheduling of the December Board meeting.   
 
On February 27, 2012, we provided the Board of Directors with a confidential attorney-client 
communication from the Authority's counsel regarding the consistency of the Authority's Bylaws with the 
Joint Powers Agreement regarding which member cities may vote for the At-Large Directors and 
Alternate Directors. 
 
On April 5, 2012, the Board of Directors approved a motion to extend the terms of the existing At-Large 
Directors and Alternate Directors until the new Directors and Alternates were seated. 
 



 
 
LA-RICS Board of Directors 
Meeting of October 2, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
 

    

 
On June 7, 2012, an item was placed on the Board's agenda to set the date for the elections of the At-
Large Directors and Alternate Directors.  Board Chair Fujioka asked that the item be continued because 
critical decisions lay ahead for the Authority and an election would be disruptive.  Board Member 
Alexander concurred and suggested that the Board consider at the next meeting suspending the 
pertinent provisions of the Authority's Bylaws for a period of one year or whatever time is appropriate. 
 
On July 11, 2012, the Board of Directors approved a motion to suspend Section 3.01 of the Authority’s 
Bylaws until August 1, 2013, thereby suspending elections of the At-Large Directors and Alternate 
Directors. 
 
On March 14, 2013, the Board temporarily suspended Section 3.01 of the Authority's Bylaws and 
extended the term of the current At-Large Director and Alternate Director seats to April 3, 2014 to allow 
for continued consistency in the make-up of the Authority's Board to address and complete the LMR and 
LTE procurements and Funding Plan related issues, was approved. 
 
On October 3, 2013, before the April 3, 2014 term expired, the Board again temporarily suspended 
Section 3.01 of the Authority's Bylaws and extended the term of the current At-Large Director and 
Alternate Director seats to April 2, 2015 to allow for continued consistency in the make-up of the 
Authority's Board to address and complete the LMR and LTE procurements and Funding Plan related 
issues, was approved. 
 
To be in full compliance with the six-month requirement set forth in Section 3.01 of the Authority's 
Bylaws, the Board of Directors is required to announce and set at least six-months before, the date of 
April 2, 2015 as the Board of Directors meeting for which a mail-in ballot election of the At-Large Director 
and Alternate Director seats would be conducted.   
 
PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The purpose of this recommended action is to set the date for At-Large Member Directors and Alternate 
Directors mail-in ballot elections for Thursday, April 2, 2015.  This date is in compliance with the 
requirements in Section 3.01 of the bylaws.  
 
The following four (4) At-Large Director seats and four (4) Alternate director seats are up for election:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Director Seat 1 
Seat previously held 
by Torrance 

Director Seat 2 
Seat currently held 
by Culver City 

Director Seat 3 
Seat previously held 
by Burbank 

Director Seat 4 
Seat currently held 
by Covina 

Alternate Seat 1
Seat previously held 
by El Segundo

Alternate Seat 2
Seat currently held 
by Beverly Hills

Alternate Seat 3
Seat previously held 
by Pomona 

Alternate Seat 4
Seat currently held 
by Whittier 



 
 
LA-RICS Board of Directors 
Meeting of October 2, 2014 
Page 3 
 
 
 

    

Section 3.01(1) of the Bylaws set forth the requirements needed for member agencies to fill the various 
open seats.  A summary of those requirements follow below: 
 

 Seat 1 – Member city that operates both independent police and fire departments 
(At Large Director); 

 Seat 2 – Member city that operates an independent police and/or an independent 
fire department (At Large Director); 

 Seat 3 – Member city that operates an independent police and/or an independent 
fire department (At Large Director); 

 Seat 4 – Member city not otherwise represented on the Board (At Large Director); 
 Seat 5 - Member city that operates both independent police and fire departments 

(Alternate Director to Seat 1); 
 Seat 6 - Member city that operates an independent police and/or an independent 

fire department (Alternate Director to Seat 2); 
 Seat 7 - Member city that operates an independent police and/or an independent 

fire department (Alternate Director to Seat 3); 
 Seat 8 - Member city not otherwise represented on the Board (Alternate Director to 

Seat 4). 
 
Not later than ninety (90) days prior to the date set by the Board for the mail-in ballot election, member 
cities interested in being a candidate to fill an At Large Director or Alternate Director position will submit 
to the Secretary of the Board, a written statement containing: (1) the name of their member city; (2) the 
name of the primary representative to fill the Board seat; (3) the position and category of the seat for 
which the member city is a candidate ; (4) a written statement of the member city’s qualifications to hold 
office and any desired statements promoting their eligibility and/or candidacy.  
 
Thirty (30) days prior to the date set by the Board for the mail-in ballot election, the Secretary of the 
Board will mail out to each member city the names of all declared member city candidates, the 
written statements of each candidate and a self-addressed return envelope for the return of such 
ballots.  
 
Each member city eligible to vote will complete the ballot and return the ballot to the Secretary of the 
Board not later than the time and place of the Board of Directors meeting designated for the mail-in 
ballot election.  Completed ballots may be delivered in person or mailed, as long as the ballots are 
received prior to the final call for receipt of ballots.   
 
A summary of the timeline follows below: 
 

Event  Deadline

Mail Nomination Forms December 4, 2014

Candidate nominations due February 5, 2015

Ballots issued to member agencies March 5, 2015

Final call for ballots April 2, 2015
 



LA-RICS Board of Directors
Meeting of October 2,2014
Page 4

Staff will return to the Board, as needed, to address any logistical issues for each election event.

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING

There is no fiscal impact.

FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENT

The Authority's counsel has reviewed the recommended action.

AG REEM ENTS/CONTRACTI NG

No agreements necessary.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

PJM

Counsel to the Authority


	Agenda_Item_4_Jacobs September Monthly Report.pdf
	September, 2014 Monthly Report Draft 20140924.r3.pdf
	LMR Master_Sept
	LTE Master_Sept
	MSI_LA-RICS LMR Monthly Report_#13 20140924 Revised
	MSI_LA-RICS PSBN Monthly Report #07_2014-09-24 Revised

	Agenda_Item_5_NOP_of_EIR_Outreach_Attachment_B. LMR IS NOC_sig 20140819.pdf
	LA-RICS LMR IS NOC_sig 20140819
	NOP Mailing List




